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FOREBASE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

REEBZRAERAT

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Ly

Revenue Wz (HK$000 F87T)
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Notes 2014 2013 % Change
5 e S 11 E22 —F = SEE A
(restated)
(RHEF)
Results E 3
HK$'000 THE T
Revenue g 348,530 298,722 16.7%
Profit (loss) before tax FRBLATE A (E518) (94,053) (56,980) 65.1%
Profit (loss) after tax and FrBifg KA ]
attributable to owners HEA NREAG A (E518)
of the Company (91,806) (52,883) 73.6%
Assets and Liabilities g =R
HK$'000 THTT
Total assets B 368,488 407,685 -9.6%
Total liabilities A 347,400 276,092 25.8%
Shareholders’ equity B SRR £ 21,088 131,593 -84.0%
Per share data 5 R
HK cents A
Basic (loss) earnings FEAR (FE1R) BF) (28.24) (16.33) 72.9%
Diluted (loss) earnings i OBR) &R (28.24) (16.33) 72.9%
HK$ T
Net asset value HEFE 0.06 0.41 -85.4%
Financial Ratio MR
Current ratio R 1 1.46 2.03 -28.1%
Quick ratio B R 2 1.29 1.81 -28.7%
Notes: [ zE -
1) Current ratio represents current assets divided by current liabilities. 1) T E A Ui ) R AR ) AL A5
2)  Quick ratio represents current assets excluding inventories divided by 2)  ERB)HRIE AR B A RS E A B LUR B AL

current liabilities.
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FOREBASE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
FREBIRIZRERA

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
TEHRES

READY TO MOVE ON
ZBEH

The year 2014 has been a significant year for the Group.

Corporate changes signify business diversification

and bring in new revenue sources.
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FOREBASE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
REFRZERARAA

CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

THRHEF

YEAR UNDER REVIEW

The year 2014 was a significant year for Forebase International
Holdings Limited (the”Company”, together with its subsidiaries,
the “Group”). Corporate changes signify business diversification
and bring in new revenue sources.

Through the efforts of new management team and the directors
of the Company (the “Directors”), the Brentwood Bay Resort (the
“Resort”) inVictoria, British Columbia, Canada, which was acquired
by the Group in November 2013, has been in place to contribute to
the Company since 2014, so that the Board and the management
have been more confident of the new business strategies, i.e.
property investment, development and hotel operation.

Through the acquisition of a parcel of land located in Zhaotong
City, Yunnan Province, the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)
in September 2014, the Group has successfully diversified its
business to hotel and residential composite development. This
project with a total gross floor area of 243,000 sq.m for residential
properties and a total gross floor area of 41,000 sq.m for
commercial use is under construction. The completion is planned
to take place progressively from 2016 to 2017.

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

Revenue represents the sale value of goods supplied to
customers, net of returns and discounts, and rental income
under operating lease and service income from hotel operation.
Sales revenue accounted for approximately 86.5% (2013: 98.0%)
of the total revenue and the remaining 13.5% was related to the
properties investment and hotel operation in aggregate. The total
revenue increased by 16.7% to approximately HK$348,530,000
from approximately HK$298,722,000 in 2013, mainly due to the
acquisition of the Resort in Canada in November 2013 of which
only one month of hotel operating income was accounted for in
2013 as compared to the entire year being accounted for in 2014.

Gross profit increased by approximately HK$881,000 to
approximately HK$6,680,000 and gross profit margin remained
at 1.9% (2013: 1.9%).

PROSPECTS

Looking forward, in view of the slow economic recovery, the
sales demand for traditional electronic products in export
market has been declining gradually. With the intensified market
competition, the Group will continue to operate its traditional
electronics components business in this difficult environment,
meanwhile it will take appropriate business strategies to tackle
the continuing impacts from these tough conditions so as to
bring a turnaround for the Group.
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Through the acquisition of the Resort in Canada and a parcel of
land located in Zhaotong City, Yunnan Province, the PRC, the
Group has successfully diversified its business to hotel operation
as well as hotel and residential composite development. The
Group will continue to actively explore attractive investment
opportunities in hotel operation, property investment and
development both in the PRC and other overseas countries.

Going forward, as the era of population aging is approaching, the
PRC has placed the establishment of senior care service system
into“12th Five-Year” Plan ([ 1 .1 ] BIE R #). Healthcare and
senior care industry will be the industry with the best prospect
in the future. The Group intends to target healthcare and senior
care industry as its goal of corporate strategic transformation.
Leveraging on the Group’s resources and experience in areas
such as hotel operation as well as property investment and
development, the Group will continue to focus on premium
opportunities for property investment, and at the same time
will aim at becoming an integrated service provider for global
high-end healthcare and senior care industry through a series
of acquisition and cooperation, with high-end senior care
properties as a foundation as well as service management and
medical care as core resources.

The Group is considering certain acquisition targets at present
which, when materialized and completed, should improve the
Group’s assets base and financial position. The Group will make
further announcement should any acquisition materialize to
comply with the Listing Rules as and when required.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, I would like to express sincere thanks
and appreciation to our shareholders, business partners and
dedicated management as well as staff for their continued
support and valuable contributions to the Group.

Shen Yong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 March 2015
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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FOREBASE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
REFRZERARAA

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWED N

READY TO MOVE ON
T

During the year, the acquisition
of a parcel of land in China affirms that the Group has successfully
diversified its business to hotel and residential composite development.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue and Segmental Information

Revenue represents sales of goods, rental income and hotel
operating income. Sales of goods accounted for approximately
86.5% (2013: 98.0%) of the total revenue. Revenue increased by
16.7% to approximately HK$348,530,000 from approximately
HK$298,722,000 in 2013 which was due to the acquisition of a
resort in Canada in November 2013 of which only one month of
hotel operating income was accounted for in 2013 as compared
to the entire year being accounted for in 2014.

Cost of sales

Cost of sales increased by approximately HK$48,927,000 or
16.7% to approximately HK$341,850,000 which was in line with
the increase in revenue.

Gross Profit

Gross profit increased by approximately HK$881,000 to
approximately HK$6,680,000 and gross profit margin remained
at 1.9% (2013: 1.9%).

Other Income and Gains

Other income and gains increased by approximately
HK$2,471,000 from approximately HK$4,646,000 in 2013 to
approximately HK$7,117,000 in 2014. The increase in other
income and gains was primarily due to the fact that there was
an increase in gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
and gain arising from initial recognition of amount due to
ultimate holding company at fair value.

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses increased by approximately HK$30,747,000
from approximately HK$59,827,000 in 2013 to approximately
HK$90,574,000 in 2014. The increase was mainly due to net
effect of increase in expenses arising from the acquisition of
the resort that accounted for entire year in 2014 and increase in
research and development expenses arising from setting up of a
research and development office in Korea in June 2014.

Finance Costs

The increase in finance costs was mainly due to the interest
charged on secured loan/note and bonds issued by the Group
and imputed interest on amount due to ultimate holding
company and amount due to a director while no such item
reported in last year.
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FOREBASE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
REFRZERARAA

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEE DN

Taxation

Net tax credit decreased to approximately HK$2,247,000
from approximately HK$4,097,000 in 2013 was mainly due to
approximately HK$5,879,000 over-provision in prior years.

Loss for the Year

As a result of the foregoing combined effects of the above, the
Group recorded a net loss of approximately HK$91,806,000.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s net current assets and
current ratio were approximately HK$78,134,000 and 1.46
respectively (2013: approximately HK$122,200,000 and 2.03).
The decrease in current ratio mainly reflected the increase in
current liabilities as a result of increase in amounts due to related
companies and increase in trade and other payables which
include approximately HK$16,530,000 deposits received from
constructors as a guarantee for the construction project.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s net debt (total borrowings
net of cash and bank balance) over total adjust equity (the sum
of all components of equity, amount due to ultimate holding
company and amount due to a director) was approximately
95.5% (2013: approximately 23.0%)

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s bank balances and cash
amounted to approximately HK$45,861,000 which including
approximately HK$12,940,000 restricted bank deposits and
approximately HK$1,000,000 short-term bank deposit with
original maturity more than three months (2013: approximately
HK$78,377,000 which including approximately HK$10,007,000
restricted bank deposits).

Charge on Assets

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s bank deposits of
approximately HK$12,940,000 (2013: approximately
HK$10,007,000) and the land and buildings held for own use
of approximately HK$98,217,000 (2013: HK$108,655,000) were
pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the Group.

Capital Structure

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group financed its
liquidity requirements through a combination of cash flow as
generated from operations, bank borrowings, secured loan,
bonds, advances from a director and ultimate holding company.
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Capital Commitment and Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s capital commitments
were approximately HK$139,000,000 (2013: approximately
HK$7,059,000) and approximately HK$18,563,000 as operating
lease commitments (2013: approximately HK$22,612,000). As
at 31 December 2014, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities (2013: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

Composite Components Business

Revenue from composite components business represented
approximately 40.4% of the Group’s total revenue. The segment’s
revenue amounted to approximately HK$140,916,000, a slight
decrease of 3.3% compared with previous year’s figure of
approximately HK$145,750,000. This decrease was mainly due to
net effect of increase in sales of tablets and decrease in sales of
tuner module for car audios and home audios.

Unit electronic Components Business

Revenue from unit electronic components business accounted
for approximately 46.1% of the Group’s total revenue. The
segment’s revenue amounted to approximately HK$160,616,000,
representing an increase of approximately 9.3% against
approximately HK$146,934,000 in 2013. The increase mainly
reflected increase in sales of transformers during the year.

Properties Investment Business

Rental income from the property investment business decreased
by approximately 45.8% from approximately HK$1,662,000
in 2013 to approximately HK$900,000 in 2014. The decrease
was due to disposal of the Group’s investment properties in
Hong Kong and the PRC. The turnover amount represented
approximately 0.3% of the Group’s total revenue.

Hotel Operation Business

Revenue from hotel operation accounted for approximately
13.2% of the total revenue. The revenue was increased by
approximately HK$41,722,000 from approximately HK$4,376,000
in 2013 to approximately HK$46,098,000 in 2014. The increase
was mainly due to the acquisition of a resort located in Victoria,
British Columbia, Canada in November 2013 of which only one
month of revenue was accounted for in 2013 as compared to the
entire year being accounted for in 2014.
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FOREBASE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
FREBIRIZRERA

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWED N

BUSINESS REVIEW
E S ACINE
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Property Development Business

In September 2014, the Group acquired Best Dollar Group, which
owns a parcel of land located in Zhaotong City, Yunnan Province,
the PRC. After the acquisition, the Group has entered into a new
business segment — Property Development. This project with a
total gross floor area of 243,000 sq.m for residential properties
and a total gross floor area of 41,000 sq.m for commercial use
is under construction. Pre-sales are scheduled to be launched
starting from second quarter of 2015 and completion is planned
progressively from 2016 to 2017.

Staff and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had approximately 946
employees, including 806 based in the PRC, 41 based in Hong
Kong and 99 based in Canada. Staff costs for the year ended
31 December 2014 were approximately HK$108,999,000,
representing an increase of approximately HK$32,430,000 as
compared to approximately HK$76,569,000 of last year.

Employee remuneration is determined in accordance with
prevailing industry practice and employees’ performance and
experience. Discretionary bonuses are awarded to employees
with outstanding performance with reference to the performance
of the Group. Employees are also entitled to other staff benefits
including medical insurance and mandatory provident fund.

Foreign Exchange Fluctuation and Hedge

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk arising from
various currency exposures, primarily with respect to Renminbi
(“RMB”), United States Dollars, Canadian Dollar and South
Korean Won (“KRW”). Foreign exchange risk arises from
commercial transactions, recognised assets and liabilities and net
investment in foreign operations.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group did not
enter into any forward foreign currency contracts (2013: Nil).

Prospects

In view of the slow economic recovery, the sales demand for
traditional electronic products in export market was generally
declined. Coupled with the intensified market competition,
the Group still operated its traditional electronics components
business in a difficult environment. To cope with the challenges of
intense competition and hostile environment, the Group has taken
appropriate business strategies to weaken continuing impacts from
these tough conditions and to inspire a turnaround for the Group.
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The Group has been actively exploring attractive investment
opportunities in hotel operation, property investment and
development both in the PRC and other overseas countries.
Through the completion of the acquisition of Brentwood Bay
Resort in Victoria, British Columbia, Canada and a parcel of land
located in Zhaotong City, Yunnan Province, the PRC, the Group
has successfully diversified its business to hotel operation as well
as hotel and residential composite development.

According to the results of the Sixth China Population Census,
the population aged 60 or above has exceeded 178 million in the
PRC. At the end of 2014, the senior population exceeded 200
million in the PRC, representing 14.8% of the total population.
By 2050, the senior population in the PRC will reach its peak
where the senior population in the aged 60 or above will exceed
430 million. As the era of population aging comes, the PRC has
placed the establishment of senior care service system into“12th
Five-Year” Plan ([ + —F. JEIE#1#), healthcare and senior care
industry will be the industry with the best prospect in the future.

Going forward, the Group intends to make healthcare and
senior care industry be the Group’s goal of corporate strategic
transformation. Leveraging on the Group’s resources and
experience in areas such as hotel operation as well as property
investment and development, the Group will continue to focus
on premium opportunities for property investment, meanwhile
to become an integrated service provider for the global high-
end healthcare and senior care industry through a series of
acquisition and cooperation, of which with high-end senior
care properties as a foundation as well as service management
and medical care as core resources. As announced in February
2015, the Group has commenced the cooperation with Grange
Senior Living Limited, the latter is a renowned operator in
the healthcare and senior care industry with over 20 years of
experience.

Based on the strategic positioning stated above, the Group has
performed in-depth examination and exploration on potential
targets. In the long run, the Group expects that the above
business strategies will ultimately provide a remarkable return to
the shareholders of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE AND
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to achieving a high standard of
practices of corporate governance so as to ensure the protection
of shareholders’interests with better transparency. The Company
has complied with the code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code (the”CG Code”) set out in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December 2014, except
for the following:

Code Provision A.6.7

Pursuant to the Code Provision A.6.7, independent non-
executive directors and other non-executive directors, as equal
Board members, should attend the general meetings of the
Company.

The Company held its annual general meeting on 30 May 2014
(the”AGM”) and extraordinary general meeting on 10 September
2014 (“the EGM”), During the year ended 31 December 2014,
certain independent non-executive directors were unable to
attend the Company’s general meetings due to their unavoidable
business engagements.

The Company will continue to create excellent conditions for
independent non-executive directors and (if any) non-executive
directors to attend general meetings, so as to support executive
directors to respond to shareholders” questions in the general
meetings.

Code Provision E.1.2 stipulates that the Chairman of the Board
should attend the AGM. Due to other business engagements,
the Chairman of the Board was unable to attend the AGM.

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted Appendix 10, Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers of the
Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as the code of practice for
carrying out securities transactions by the directors of the
Company. The Company, having made specific enquiries to all
directors of the Company, confirmed that as at 31 December
2014, all directors have complied with the code provisions as set
out in the Model Code. The relevant employees who, because
of their office in the Company, are likely to be in possession of
unpublished inside information, have been requested to comply
with the provisions of the Model Code.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company’s overall management is vested in its Board,
which currently comprises eight members, coming from diverse
businesses and professional backgrounds. The biographical
details of directors are set out under the section “Directors and
Senior Management” on pages 32 to 37 of this annual report.
The Board currently comprises executive directors Mr. Shen
Yong (Chairman), Mr. Shen Ke, Mr. Zhao Enze, Mr. Fan Jiangang
and Mr. Hong Sang Joon and independent non-executive
directors Mr. Yu Lei, Ms. Zhang Cui Lan, and Mr. Ernst Rudolf
Zimmermann.

The Board meets at least four times annually to review business
development and overall strategic policies.

To facilitate the operation of the Board, the Board has established
a schedule of matters reserved for its approval. The specific
responsibilities reserved for the Board include (a) setting the
Group’s strategy and dividend policy; (b) approving budgets,
reviewing operational and financial performance; (c) approving
major investments and divestments; (d) reviewing the
internal control system of the Group; (e) ensuring appropriate
management development and succession plans in place; (f)
approving appointments of and remuneration policy for directors
and other senior executives; (g) approving corporate social
responsibility policies; and (h) ensuring effective communication
with shareholders.

For the financial reporting accountability, the Board has an
ultimate responsibility for preparing the financial statements. In
preparing the financial statements, the Board has ensured that (a)
the generally accepted accounting standards in Hong Kong have
been adopted; (b) appropriate accounting policies have been
used and applied consistently; and (c) reasonable and prudent
judgments and estimates have been made. Moreover, the Board
is not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions which may cast significant doubt over the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the Board
has continued to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the
financial statements.
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Being part of good corporate governance practices, a number
of board committees have been established. These committees
include five corporate governance related committees namely
the Executive Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the
Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee as well as one
ad hoc committee namely the Independent Board Committee
which is responsible for advising the matters in relation to the
continuing connected transactions. These committees operate
within specific terms of reference as prepared by the Company
and report their work and findings to the Board regularly.

DIRECTORS” ATTENDANCE RECORDS

The attendance records of the directors at Board Meetings,
Audit Committee Meetings, Remuneration Committee Meeting,
Executive Committee Meetings, Nomination Committee
Meeting, Independent Board Committee Meeting and General
Meetings during the year ended 31 December 2014 are set out
below:
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No. of meetings attended/held

L TTYE Jit/e
Independent
Board
Audit Remuneration ~ Executive Nomination —Committee General
Board Committee Committee ~Committee ~Committee B #H  meeting
#HE  HHZEE  FMERE WGZEE  RAZEE ZRE  BRAE
Executive directors Eg
Mr. ShenYong HEEE 718 nfa nfa 0/0 nfa 0/0 012
Nt Nt Nl
Mr. Ronald Lew Podlas"” e St 718 n/a n/a 0/0 n/a 0/0 012
Nl Nl Nl
Mr. Shen Ke Gitnpn 7/8 nla nla 0/0 nla 0/0 10
Nl Nl Nl
Mr. Li Zhi"” P 6/8 nla nla 00 nla 0/0 12
Nl Nl Nl
Mr. Xu Li Jian” BB 112 n/a nla 0/0 nla 0/0 nla
A Nl il Nl
Mr. Leung Kin Pang” ] o 212 nfa nfa 0/0 nfa 000 nfa
A Nl il Nl
Mr. Kwan Man Kit Edmond® BS540 6/6 nla nla 0/0 nla 0/0 1n
Nl Nl Nl
Mr. Hong Sang Joon Jdidt it 8/8 n/a n/a 0/0 nfa 0/0 22
Nl Nl Nl
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No. of meetings attended/held

L4 e
Independent
Board
Audit Remuneration ~ Executive Nomination — Committee General
Board Committee ~Committee ~Committee ~Committee ~ BV #F  meeting

B0 BHZHE  WMZRE  WNZHAE  RAZHRE ZRE  BEKE

Independent non-executive BB ITHEH

directors
MrYu Lei RS 6/8 202
Dr. Jiang Ying” B LY 112 11
Ms. Zhang Cui Lan RERLL 48 20
Mr. Brst Rudolf Zimmermann 306 6/8 22

212 n/a 11 1n 12
A

nla nla nla n/a n/a

NER NER NER NER NER

212 nla 11 11 12
A

212 n/a n n 12
REH

resigned on 16 February 2015
resigned on 1 April 2014
@ appointed on 10 June 2014 and resigned on 23 March 2015

@ resigned on 5 May 2014

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established five board committees, namely,
the Executive Committee, the Remuneration Committee,
the Nomination Committee, the Audit Committee and the
Independent Board Committee, for overseeing particular aspects
of the Company’s affairs. All board committees should report to
the Board on their decisions or recommendations made.

A. Executive Committee

The Executive Committee comprises Mr. Shen Yong
(Committee Chairman), Mr. Ronald Lew Podlas, Mr. Shen
Ke, Mr. Li Zhi, Mr. Kwan Man Kit Edmond and Mr. Hong
Sang Joon.

The major responsibilities of the Executive Committee are:

1.  to develop strategic plans for the consideration of the
Board;

2. toimplement the strategies and policies of the Group
as determined by the Board;

3. to monitor the daily operations and financial results
against plans and budgets; and

4. to guide the Company in various corporate affairs.
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There were no Executive Committee meetings held for the
year ended 31 December 2014.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three
independent non-executive directors Mr.Yu Lei (Committee
Chairman), Ms. Zhang Cui Lan and Mr. Ernst Rudolf
Zimmermann.

The major responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
are:

1.  toreview the remuneration packages of directors and
senior management;

2. to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration structure; and

3. toreview and guide the formulation of the Group’s
remuneration policy for directors and senior
management attributable to performance-driven
compensation commitment as well as market trend
and industry norms.

There were two Remuneration Committee meetings
held for the year ended 31 December 2014 to review
the remuneration packages of directors and senior
management according to the Group’s employment policy,
nomination policy, remuneration policy, and training and
development policy.

The Remuneration Committee is provided with sufficient
resources to perform its duties. Latest terms of reference
of the Remuneration Committee can be viewed on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Details of the remuneration to the directors on named
basis and members of senior management by band are
disclosed in notes 14 and 15 to the financial statements,
respectively.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises three
independent non-executive directors Mr.Yu Lei (Committee
Chairman), Ms. Zhang Cui Lan and Mr. Ernst Rudolf
Zimmermann.

The major responsibilities of the Nomination Committee
are:

1. to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of directors;

2. to review the structure, size and composition of the
Board and to ensure fair and transparent procedures
for the appointment or re-appointment of directors;

3. to propose the appointment of such candidates to the
Board for consideration; and

4. to review the qualifications of the relevant candidates
for determining the suitability to the Group on
the basis of his/her qualifications, experience and
background.

There was one Nomination Committee meeting held for
the year ended 31 December 2014 to discuss and consider
the following matters:

1. the composition of the Board with reference to certain
criteria. These criteria included qualifications required
under the Listing Rules or any other relevant laws
regarding characteristics and skills of the directors,
professional ethics and integrity, appropriate
professional knowledge and industry experience, as
well as ability to devote sufficient time to the work of
the Board and its committees and to participate in all
Board meetings and shareholders’ meetings;

2. the re-appointment of the retiring directors for
reelection at the previous general meeting;

3. procedures for election of directors and by
shareholders; and

4. independence of the independent non-executive
directors.

The Nomination Committee is provided with sufficient
resources to perform its duties. Latest terms of reference of
the Nomination Committee can be viewed on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee currently comprises three
independent non-executive directors Ms. Zhang Cui Lan
(Committee Chairman), Mr. Yu Lei and Mr. Ernst Rudolf
Zimmermann.

The main responsibilities of the Audit Committee are:

1.  to monitor the integrity of financial reporting of the
Company;

2. to review the internal control and risk management
systems of the Group; and

3. to review the corporate governance practices of the
Company.

There were two Audit Committee meetings held for the
year ended 31 December 2014 to discuss and review the
following matters:

1.  the 2013 annual report and accounts;

2. the 2014 interim report and accounts;

3. the Group’s financial controls, internal control and
risk management systems;

4. the financial reporting and relevant compliance with
external auditors; and

5. the auditors’ remuneration and recommended the
Board to re-appoint SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
as Company’s auditors in the year 2015, which
is subject to the approval of shareholders at the
forthcoming AGM.

The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources
to perform its duties. Latest terms of reference of the Audit
Committee can be viewed on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange.

Independent Board Committee

The Independent Board Committee currently comprises
three independent non-executive directors Mr. Yu Lei
(Committee Chairman), Ms. Zhang Cui Lan and Mr. Ernst
Rudolf Zimmermann.
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The major responsibilities of the Independent board
committee are:

1.  to consider and review matters regarding the
continuing connected transactions of the Group; and

2. to advise the independent shareholders whether the
Group’s transactions are fair and reasonable and in
the interests of the Company and shareholders as a
whole.

There was one Independent Board Committee meeting
held for the year ended 31 December 2014.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the following corporate
governance duties as required under the CG Code:

1. todevelop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance;

2. to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the directors and senior
officers of the Group;

3. toreview and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

4. to develop, review and monitor the codes of conduct
applicable to employees and the directors; and

5. to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Board considered
the following corporate governance matters:

1.  review of the compliance with the Code Provisions of the
CG Code; and

2. review of the effectiveness of the internal controls and
risk management systems of the Group through the Audit
Committee.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Company Secretary of the Company is a full time employee of
the Group and has day-to-day knowledge of the Company’s
affairs. During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company
Secretary, Mr. Leung Tak Chee Frankie, has duly complied with
the relevant professional training requirement under Rule 3.29 of
the Listing Rules. According to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, the
Company Secretary has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training. The biographical details of the Company
Secretary is set out on in the section entitled “Directors and
Senior Management”in this annual report.

TRAINING, INDUCTION AND
CONTINUING DEVELOPMENT FOR
DIRECTORS

Each newly appointed director receives a comprehensive and
formal induction to ensure that he/she has an appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Group, his/
her responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and
relevant regulatory requirements, the CG Code of the Company
and the Model Code.

Directors are continually updated on developments in the
statutory and regulatory regime and the business environment
to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities. Continuing
briefing and professional development for directors will be
arranged at the expenses of the Company whenever necessary.
The directors are committed to complying with Code Provision
A.6.5 of the CG Code on directors’ training effective from 1 April
2012. All directors have participated in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills
and provided their training records to the Company.

DIRECTORS” AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITY
INSURANCE AND INDEMNITY

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to
indemnify its directors and officers in respect of legal actions
against the directors. During the year ended 31 December 2014,
no claim had been made against the directors and the officers of
the Company.
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The Separate Roles of the Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer

The division of responsibilities between the Chairman of
the Board, Mr. Shen Yong, and the Chief Executive Officer,
Mr. Kwan Man Kit Edmond, is clearly defined and has been
approved by the Board. The Chairman provides leadership of
the Board, ensures the effectiveness of the Board and oversees
the corporate development; while the Chief Executive Officer,
as head of the executive directorate, is responsible for managing
the business development and strategic planning of the Group.

Their separate roles reinforce the continuous enhancement of
the Group’s corporate governance in terms of corporate fairness,
transparency and accountability.

Directors’ Independence

There are no financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationship(s) among members of the Board except that
Mr. Shen Yong, chairman of the Board is the father of Mr. Shen
Ke, an executive director of the Company.

The directors are given access to independent professional advice
at the Group’s expense, when the directors deem it necessary in
order to carry out their responsibilities.

The Board also advocates the participation of independent non-
executive directors and (if any) non-executive directors in various
board committees to safeguard objectivity and independence.

The Company has received the confirmation letters from each
of the independent non-executive directors, confirming their
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all independent non-executive directors are
independent.

Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for reviewing the effectiveness of the
internal control system of the Group. The scope of the review
is determined and recommended by the Audit Committee and
approved by the Board annually. The review covers:

1. all material controls, including but not limited to financial,
operational and compliance controls;

2. risks management functions; and

3. the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience
of staff in connection with the accounting and financial
reporting function of the Group and their training
programmes and relevant budget.
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The Audit Committee is satisfied with the Group’s internal
control system. The system is designed in consideration of the
nature of business and the organisation structure. The system is
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure in
operational system and to provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance against material misstatement or loss. The system
is designed further to safeguard the Group’s assets, maintain
appropriate accounting records and financial reporting, achieve
efficiency of operations and ensure compliance with the Listing
Rules and all other applicable laws and regulations.

The Group will continue to engage external independent
professionals to review its internal control system and further
enhance its internal control as appropriate.

There is currently no internal audit function within the Group.
The Board has reviewed the need for an internal audit function
and is of the view that in light of the size, nature and complexity
of the business of the Group, it would be more cost effective to
appoint external independent professionals to perform internal
audit functions for the Group as the need arises. Nevertheless,
the Board will continue to review the need for an internal audit
function annually.

DIRECTORS” AND AUDITORS’
RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
Company’s financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2014 which reflect true and fair view of the financial position of
the Company and the Group and in compliance with relevant
law and disclosure provisions of the Listing Rules. The Board is
responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and comprehensible
assessment extends to annual and interim reports, other inside
information announcements and other financial disclosures
required under the Listing Rules.

The Group appointed SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited as the
Group’s external auditors. The statement by SHINEWING (HK)
CPA Limited regarding their reporting responsibility to the
shareholders on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages
49 to 50 of this annual report.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the fees paid/payable
to the auditors in respect of audit and non-audit services
provided by the auditors to the Group were as follows:

A il 557

BEZ—WE+ A=+ —HILEE > i
A2 SR ) A 2 (o] B A A B R FE OIS 2 B S
£/ REAH TR 2 Z T -

HK$'000

Nature of services TR PR T

Audit services B 800
Non-audit services FEAZ RS

Other services oA AR B 550

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Board recognises the importance of maintaining effective
communications with shareholders. Annual reports and interim
reports provide shareholders with comprehensive information
of the Group’s operational and financial performances; while
general meetings offer a platform for shareholders to state and
exchange views with the Board directly.

The management continually communicates with analysts and
institutional investors and provides them with up-to-date and
comprehensive information regarding the Group’s development.
The Company practices timely dissemination of information and
makes sure its website www.kse.com.hk contains the most latest
information, including but not limited to annual reports, interim
reports, announcements, monthly returns and press releases,
and is updated in a timely manner to ensure transparency.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2014, there had been no
significant changes in the Company’s constitutional documents.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

A.

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting
by Shareholders

In accordance with section 566 of the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the laws of Hong Kong) (the
“Companies Ordinance”), shareholder(s) holding at the
date of the deposit of the requisition at least 5% of the
voting rights at general meetings of the Company, may
request the directors of the Company to convene an
EGM. The written requisition must state the objects of
the meeting and must be signed by the shareholder(s)
concerned and deposited at the registered office of the
Company for the attention of chairman of the Board or the
Company Secretary. The requisition may consist of several
documents in like form, each signed by one or more of the
shareholders concerned.

If the directors of the Company do not within 21 days from
the date of the deposit of the requisition proceed duly to
convene an EGM for a date not more than 28 days after
the date on which the notice convening the EGM is given,
the shareholder(s) concerned, or any of them representing
more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them,
may themselves convene an EGM, provided that the EGM
so convened shall not be held after the expiration of 3
months from the said date.

The EGM convened by shareholders shall be convened in
the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which
general meetings are to be convened by the directors of the
Company.

Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may put forward enquiries to the Board in
writing to the principal office of the Company in Hong
Kong.

The Company Secretary will forward the shareholders’
enquiries and concerns to the Board and/or relevant board
committees of the Company, where appropriate, to answer
the shareholders’ questions in writing.
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C. Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at
General Meetings by Shareholders

Shareholders are requested to follow sections 551 to 554
(written resolutions), section 579 (notice of resolutions),
sections 580 to 583 (statements), section 615, section 616
(resolutions for AGMs) of the Companies Ordinance for
including a resolution at AGM of the Company AGM. The
requirements and procedures are set out as follows:

1. A member of a company may request the company to
circulate a resolution that—

(a) may properly be moved; and
(b) is proposed as a written resolution under
section 549(b) of the Companies Ordinance.

If a member requests a company to circulate a
resolution, the member may request the company
to circulate with the resolution a statement of not
more than 1,000 words on the subject matter of the
resolution.

However, each member may only request the
company to circulate one such statement with respect
to the resolution.

2. A company must circulate a resolution proposed
as a written resolution under section 549(b) of the
Companies Ordinance and any statement mentioned
in section 551(2) of the Companies Ordinance if it
has received requests that it do so from the members
of the company representing not less than 5% of the
total voting rights of all the members entitled to vote
on the resolution (or a lower percentage specified for
this purpose in the company’s articles).

A request—

(@) may be sent to the company in hard copy form
or in electronic form;

(b) must identify the resolution and any statement
mentioned in section 551(2) of the Companies
Ordinance; and

(c) must be authenticated by the person or persons
making it.
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If by any provision of the Companies Ordinance
special notice is required to be given of a resolution,
the resolution is not effective unless notice of the
intention to move it has been given to the company
at least 28 days before the meeting at which it is
moved.

The company must, if practicable, give its members
notice of the resolution at the same time and in the
same manner as it gives notice of the meeting.

If that is not practicable, the company must give its
members notice of the resolution at least 14 days
before the meeting—

(@ by advertisement in a newspaper circulating
generally in Hong Kong; or

(b) in any other manner allowed by the company’s
articles.

If, after notice of the intention to move the resolution
has been given to the Company, a meeting is called
for a date 28 days or less after the notice has been
given, the notice is to be regarded as having been
properly given, though not given within the time
required.

Pursuant to Article 105 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, no person other than a director retiring
at the meeting shall, unless recommended by the
directors for election, be eligible for election as
director at any general meeting unless a notice signed
by a member (other than the person to be processed)
duly qualified to attend and vote at the meeting for
which such notice is given of his intention to propose
such person for election and also a notice signed
by the person to be proposed of his willingness to
be elected shall have been lodged at the registered
office of the Company provided that the minimum
length of the period, during which such notice(s) are
given, shall be at least seven days and that the period
for lodgement of such notice(s) shall commence no
earlier than the day after the despatch of the notice of
the general meeting appointed for such election and
end no later than seven days prior to the date of such
general meeting.

ANNUAL REPORT 2014
“ER-MEFR

UIRRPE 2N F R B AT T eSO E > 2]
AUTE Lk b B A S s As T 45
WA > JIBRIEAE % Bk D28 H
EL 1] A Bl 2 ) 3 o Bl Rk Y R 1)
A > 73 IR PR R R o

A B 2> R 2R (AN YD R AT AR R
LA B R A R B[R] IR > 4R
R o 1) HR B 3 ez
AR o

an Akl JE U T AT o R B
RIZHAA B gk i > 14 H > UF
a7y 2 H B 8% A B Pk
-

(@) FE— O s 2 T A
TSRS 5 5

(b) 7% AR AR AN R T A AT
] HAth 7 =8 o

AR f5E Bl A B DA R ) 28 R 1) A Bl 2 )
B o T R N B AR 19 28
H A B > HIRZHE SR 3 I A2 M
(O RRFFR AR > IR CAG b
$ o

R B5 AR 08 W) 22 41 Ak = R A0 HI) 26 105
ik BRIFEEFGIRHAZE > EH
BE R R il R & R (O
13 By Wl B3 ) %58 2 T4 0 gl B
HAEBHEE A2 MEgiER
N 755 2 TR R A B S A A
K BRSNS w R g - & RIBR
K E FIEATZ ERA > A4
B AR AT AT B SRR b s
Ao BE A0 IR D B L
H o5 $2 50 5%38 20 1Y) 3 ] P ot a2 st Bt g
WA EE S & 2 HB AR > B
BRI Z AL Ik -

31



SN

32

FOREBASE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
FREBIRIZRERA

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENEEEEAE

CHAIRMAN AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Shen Yong

Mr. Shen Yong, aged 52, is the Chairman of the Board and
an executive director of the Company. He is a director and a
shareholder of Ultra Harvest Limited (“Ultra Harvest”), the
controlling shareholder of the Company, holding 60% of its
issued shares. Mr. Shen has more than 15 years of experience
in hotel and commercial properties development, as well as
investment, corporate and general management.

Mr. Shen completed a postgraduate (advanced studies) course in
laws (civil and commercial law) from the Southwest University
of Politics and Law ( P4 Fg L% KER) in July 2000.

Mr. Shen served as a deputy to the 1st to 3rd Chongqing
Municipal People’s Congress in the PRC. Mr. Shen is currently
a member of the 4th Chongqing Municipal Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference of the PRC
and a deputy chairman of the Chongqging Municipal Federation
of Industry and Commerce (General Chamber). Mr. Shen is the
father of Mr. Shen Ke, an executive director of the Company.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Shen Ke

Mr. Shen Ke, aged 25, is an executive director of the Company.
He is a director and a shareholder of Ultra Harvest as to 40%
shareholding. Mr. Shen has over 5 years of experience in the
hospitality investment and management in the PRC.

Mr. Shen is the son of Mr. Shen Yong, the chairman of the Board
and an executive director of the Company.

Mr. Zhao Enze

Mr. Zhao Enze, aged 42, was appointed as an executive director
on 16 February 2015. He graduated from Renmin University
of China with a Bachelor’s degree in Economics in 1996 and
obtained his Master of Business Administration degree from
Donghua University in 2002. Prior to joining the Company, he
had held various senior management positions in Bank of East
Asia (China) Limited, Hang Seng Bank (China) Co., Ltd. and a
number of real estate companies. He has extensive experience in
corporate finance and financial management.
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Currently, Mr. Zhao is the senior vice president of Chongging
Forebase Industrial Investment (Holdings) Co., Ltd. ( 2 & Hi 5
B (M) AMRAA), acompany ultimately owned by Mr.
Shen Yong, the chairman and a controlling shareholder of the
Company.

Mr. Fan Jiangang

Mr. Fan Jiangang, aged 39, was appointed as an executive
director on 16 February 2015. He graduated from Southwestern
University of Finance and Economics with a Bachelor’s degree
in Economics in 1998 and achieved his economist qualification
in 2002. He is now studying his Master degree in Economics
in Southwestern University of Finance and Economics. He
had served as branch president, general manager of corporate
banking and other senior management positions in different
domestic and foreign financial institutions, such as Bank of
Communications, Industrial Bank, CITIC Bank and OCBC
Bank. He has extensive experience in strategic planning, risk
management and financial management.

Currently, Mr. Fan is also a senior advisor of Chongqing Forebase
Industrial Investment (Holdings) Co., Ltd. (B H JLEF 2 (5 H])
FBRZNF]), a company ultimately owned by Mr. Shen Yong, the
chairman and a controlling shareholder of the Company.

Mr. Hong Sang Joon

Mr. Hong Sang Joon, aged 46, is an executive director of the
Company. He holds positions as director of certain subsidiaries
of the Company, and is responsible for operational management
of the Group’s electronic business. He has over 20 years of
experience in investment, restructuring, strategic planning, and
financial management and control.

Mr. Hong obtained his bachelor degree in Chinese language and
Chinese literature, minoring in business administration from
Yonsei University in Korea, and a master degree in business
administration from The University of Hong Kong. He is a
CFA Charterholder, Certified FRM, and U.S. CPA for public
practice licensed by Washington State Board of Accountancy in
the United States of America (the “U.S.A.”), and he is a regular
member of CFA Institute, The Hong Kong Society of Financial
Analysts, Global Association of Risk Professionals, and American
Institute of CPAs. Mr. Hong is currently an executive director
of Siberian Mining Group Company Limited (Stock code:
1142) whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Yu Lei

Mr. Yu Lei, aged 44, is an independent non-executive director
of the Company. He has extensive experience in the real estate
industry and infrastructure sectors in the PRC.

Mr. Yu obtained his bachelor degree in economics and a master
degree in management from the Zhongnan University of
Economics and Law (H B &EBEEKE) in 1993 and 1999
respectively. Mr. Yu is also a qualified accountant conferred by the
Ministry of Finance of the PRC and a Certified Internal Auditor
conferred by The Institute of Internal Auditors.

Mr. Yu is currently a president assistant of Shenzhen Zhuojia
Industry Groups Co., Ltd. (I s {EFELEBMARAF), a
company specializing in real estate, healthcare and infrastructure
development and the provision of investment services in the
PRC. During March 2006 to August 2011, Mr. Yu was employed
as the president assistant of Great China International
Group(China) Limited (K #EEFRER () A RAH)
which is principally engaged in property, hotel, commercial and
infrastructure investment and development.

Ms. Zhang Cui Lan

Ms. Zhang Cui Lan, aged 51, is an independent non-executive
director of the Company. She has substantial experience in
finance and taxation areas in the PRC.

Ms. Zhang obtained her bachelor degree in economics from the
Shandong Economic University ( 11| HASPEELRE) in 1988. Ms.
Zhang is a Certified Public Accountant in the PRC, Certified Tax
Advisor, Certified Assets Valuer and Senior Accountant.

Ms. Zhang is currently the chairman of labor union of Huaxia
Life Insurance Co., Limited (FEE N\ F R H R A A .

Ms. Zhang is currently an independent director of Joyong Co.
Ltd (JLE A BRZS 7) (Stock code: SZ002242)whose shares
are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange.
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Mr. Ernst Rudolf Zimmermann

Mr. Ernst Rudolf Zimmermann, aged 66, is an independent non-
executive director of the Company. He has more than 40 years
of business experience in the international hospitality industry,
especially in the Greater China region.

Mr. Zimmermann is currently the president and CEO of AVA
Hospitality, a hotel management services company providing
specialized China-related hospitality management and
consultancy services and giving independent professional
advice on design brief on hotel component to hotel investors
and operators. Mr. Zimmermann now serves as the senior vice
president of Swiss-Belhotel International, an international
hotel management company offering unique fusion of Swiss
hospitality management in all aspects of the hotel, serviced
apartments and club. He is also an associate of Global Strategic
Associates, LLC, an independent, privately-owned international
advisory firm in New York, the United States of America.

Mr. Zimmermann started his hospitality career first in Stadl-
Paura, Austria in 1962 and accepted hospitality training in
Gmunden, Austria. Before relocating to Hong Kong as a
restaurant manager in Furama Hotel in 1974, he worked in a
number of food and beverage positions across various Western
Europe countries, including England, Switzerland, Italy, Bermuda
and so on. Mr. Zimmermann continued his hotel business in
a Holiday Inn Group (now known as InterContinental Hotels
Group) for subsequent years in senior managerial and executive
positions for the development of the hotel chain throughout the
Asia Pacific region, including, Hong Kong, Thailand and the PRC;
and later on, with extensive years of experience in the hospitality
field, Mr. Zimmermann established his own hotel management
business, namely, Zenith Hotels International Limited, providing
hotel management services and technical assistance to hotel
owners, developing more than 20 hotel properties throughout
the PRC and South-East Asia. More recently, Mr. Zimmermann
served as the vice president within the ACCOR Hotel Group
China to re-position new Sofitel Luxury Hotel in the PRC; and
being the senior vice president in the New World Hotels Group
to help promote its new hotel brand in the PRC. In previous
years, Mr. Zimmermann also held consultative positions in
certain companies in the PRC and Hong Kong.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Kwan Man Kit Edmond

Mr. Kwan Man Kit Edmond, aged 42, is a Chief Executive Officer
of the Company. He has extensive experience in corporate
finance, investment banking, financial management, regulatory
and auditing.

Mr. Kwan is currently a responsible officer in advising on
corporate finance for Taiping Capital Limited, a licensed
corporation under the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter
571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”). Prior to joining
the Company, Mr. Kwan was a managing director in corporate
finance and a director of Haitong International Capital Limited,
a subsidiary of Haitong International Group Limited (stock code:
665), the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
Mr. Kwan held senior positions at Sun Hung Kai International
Limited, a subsidiary of Sun Hung Kai & Co. Limited (stock
code: 86) the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange and the investment banking division of Piper
Jaffray Asia Limited. Mr. Kwan also held managerial positions at
the listing division of the Stock Exchange, TOM Group Limited
(stock code: 2383), the shares of which are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange and KPMG.

Mr. Kwan obtained his Bachelor of Arts degree in Business
Economics from the University of California, Los Angeles, the
U.S.A. and Master of Business Administration degree from the
Hong Kong University of Science and Technology.

Mr. Kwan was qualified as a US certified public accountant for
public practice and was licensed and registered as a member of
the California State of Board of Accountancy in the US. He is a
certified public accountant in Hong Kong and a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Ms. Bao Jing Tao

Ms. Bao Jing Tao, aged 39, is a Chief Operating Officer of the
Company. She obtained her bachelor’s degree in Accounting
from the Anhui University of Finance and Economics in
1997, and obtained a master’s degree in Finance from the
Southwestern University of Finance and Economics in 2001.
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Ms. Bao has previously held senior management positions in
various listed companies and has extensive experience in finance
and corporate management. Ms. Bao was an executive director
of Shanghai Industrial Urban Development Group Limited (a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange) (stock
code: 563).

Currently, Ms. Bao is also the assistant president of Chongging
Forebase Industrial Investment (Holdings) Co., Ltd. (FEEEH
FH ¥ (M) A RAF]), a company ultimately owned by Mr.
Shen Yong, the chairman and a controlling shareholder of the
Company.

Mr. Leung Tak Chee Frankie

Mr. Leung Tak Chee Frankie, aged 41, is Chief Financial Officer
and company secretary of the Company. He holds a Bachelor
Degree in Commence from University of Adelaide, Australia.
He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and CPA Australia. He has held managerial and
financial executive positions in various listed companies and
financial institutions in Hong Kong. He has more than 18 years
of experience in financial management, taxation, and corporate
finance.
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The directors submit herewith their report together with the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company.

The principal activities of its subsidiaries are the manufacture
and sale of electronic components, properties investment and
hotel operation. Upon the completion of the acquisition of Best
Dollar Group on 18 September 2014, the Group further extended
its principal activities to properties development in the PRC.

The principal activities and other particulars of the subsidiaries
are set out in note 20 to the financial statements. An analysis
of the Group’s performance for the year by business and
geographical segments is set out in note 9 to the financial
statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of revenue and cost of sales for the year ended
31 December 2014 attributable to the Group’s major suppliers
and customers are as follows:

Revenue

The largest customer 20.8%
Five largest customers combined 54.1%
Cost of sales

The largest supplier 14.9%
Five largest suppliers combined 35.3%

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholder (which,
to the knowledge of the directors, owns more than 5% of the
issued share capital of the Company) has a beneficial interest in
the five largest customers or suppliers of the Group.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014
and the state of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at that
date are set out in the financial statements on pages 51 to 188 of
this annual report.
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The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2014 (2013: Nil).

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves during the year are set out in
the“Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity” on pages 56
to 57 of this annual report.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the
year amounted to HK$1,205,000 (2013: HK$1,208,000).

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the movements in the investment properties of the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2014 are set out in
note 19 to the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 18 to the financial
statements.

SECURED NOTE/SECURED LOAN

Particulars of secured note/secured loan of the Group as at 31
December 2014 are set out in note 34 to the financial statements.

BONDS

Particulars of bonds of the Group as at 31 December 2014 are set
out in note 35 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SECURITIES IN
ISSUE

On 18 September 2014, the Company has allotted and issued
4,000,000 ordinary shares each of HK$2.03 in respect of a
consideration of the acquisition of Best Dollar Group. As at the
date of 31 December 2014, the Company maintained 327,896,933
issued ordinary shares.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year ended 31 December 2014.

DIRECTORS

The directors during the financial year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive directors

Mr. Shen Yong (Chairman)

Mr. Kwan Man Kit Edmond (Chief Executive Officer)"
Mr. Ronald Lew Podlas™

Mr. Shen Ke

Mr. Li Zhi”

Mr. Xu Li Jian®

Mr. Leung Kin Pang®

Mr. Zhao Enze"”

Mr. Fan Jiangang "

Mr. Hong Sang Joon

Independent non-executive directors

Mr.Yu Lei

Dr. JiangYing "

Ms. Zhang Cui Lan

Mr. Ernst Rudolf Zimmermann

#

appointed on 10 June 2004, resigned on 13 March 2015 and remained as
Chief Executive Officer

resigned on 16 February 2015

resigned on 1 April 2014

appointed on 16 February 2015

resigned on 5 May 2014

» O > 8

The biographical details of the current directors are set out under
the section “Directors and Senior Management” of this annual
report.

Pursuant to Article 92 of the Articles of Association, Mr. Zhao
Enze and Mr. Fan Jiangang shall hold office only until the
forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election. In accordance with Article 101 of the Company’s
Articles of Association, each of Mr.Yu Lei and Ms. Zhang Cui
Lan shall retire from the Board by rotation and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming AGM.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

As at the date of this report, the directors have entered into
either service contract or letters of appointment, subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election of their directorship in the
Company as set in the Company’s Articles of Association.

Save as disclosed above, no director of the Company, who
proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM, has an
unexpired service contract which is not determinable by the
Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year without
payment of compensation, other than normal statutory
obligations.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The directors’fees are subject to shareholders”approval at general
meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the Board of the
Company with reference to directors” duties, responsibilities and
performance and the results of the Group.

DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2014, the interests and short positions of
the Directors or chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which were required (i) to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests and short positions which they are
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO);
or (i) pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein; or (iii) pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out
in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules adopted by the Company (the
“Model Code”) (collectively“disclosure interests”) to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:
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Interests in Issued Shares of the Company

(1) A2 AT B £

Ordinary shares
v
Interest of Total % of
controlled number of total
Beneficial corporation shares held issued shares
Owner Z Ve FhHZ HE BT
Name of directors HHEBA HadEA A Z hE i JBe 4y BWMZ AL
Mr. Shen Yong HIB A 4,000,000 176,272,950 185,772,950 56.66%
(note 1)
(BEED)
Mr. Shen Ke S A 5,500,000 176,272,950 181,772,950 55.44%
(note 1)
(BfFEE1)
Mr. Kwan Man Kit, B SCf et 3,238,969 - 3,238,969 0.98%
Edmond (note 2)
(Fi5E2)
Notes: Fff&E -

(1)  These shares were held by Ultra Harvest Limited (“Ultra
Harvest”), of which Ultra Harvest was owned as to 60% by Mr.
ShenYong and 40% by Mr. Shen Ke. Mr. Shen Yong is the father
of Mr. Shen Ke.

(2)  This relates to the options granted under the share options
scheme of the Company to Mr. Kwan Man Kit, Edmond to
subscribe for 3,238,969 shares from 1 April 2017, all at the
exercise price of HK$2.41 per share.

Interests in Ordinary Shares of USD1.00 each
in the Issued Share Capital in Ultra Harvest,

@

@

W% % % # | Ultra Harvest Limited ([ Ultra
Harvest]) ¥4 > 1 Ultra Harvest i H 55 56
HHEH 60% B AW SE A HEA 40% - HIBE JeE
Ty WA e 2 ACHL o

ntmaa‘g%ztx/\?zs%ﬁx%%Jmﬁaw et
P A 3] G AN W) 3,238,969 IR R 17 2
T EARE ﬁ Q%*tﬁmﬂ —FM s fTHE
B B A 2.41 HE T ©

(2) A WM A ¥ Ultra Harvest
CEITR AP R 1.00% L2 E

the Associated Corporation of the Company 720 JBEHE A
% of total
issued shares
Nature of interest/ Total number of of Ultra Harvest
Capacity shares held il SRR
Name of directors #HF k4 HESS MR By Fifi Z Iy B8 M AN
Mr. Shen Yong H B8 S Beneficial owner 60 60%
A A
Mr. Shen Ke A S A Beneficial owner 40 40%

A A



Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, none of the
directors and/or the chief executive of the Company, or their

respe

ctive associates had any other discloseable interests as

required.

As at

31 December 2014, the following persons (other than

the directors or chief executive of the Company) had interests
or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
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Company under Section 336 of the SFO or as otherwise notified ARAFZ HEAR BRI INT -
to the Company were as follows:
Ordinary shares
3 i
No. of ordinary % of issued
shares held Nature of share capital
Substantial shareholders A2z interest/Capacity IR I3
FER R syl dE] WELR PR By J&e oy i 43 kb
Ultra Harvest (Note 1) 176,272,950 (L) Beneficial owner 53.76%
Ultra Harvest (Fi&E 1) HadEa A
Ms. Meng Qing (Note 2) 180,272,950 (L) Interest of spouse 54.98%
wH Tt (EE2) Fic A 2 W 2
5,500,000 (L) Beneficial owner 1.68%
HaEA A
Ms. Peng Jingyi (Note 3) 181,772,950 (L) Interest of spouse 55.44%
PE— 2t (KM5E3) Fic {8 2 HE £
(L) Long position L) T8
Notes: [T
(1)  Ultra Harvest is owned as to 60% by Mr. Shen Yong and 40% by Mr. (1) Ultra Harvest 73 Fll B A7 55 5624 & RURT S 4= B 60%
Shen Ke. Pursuant to the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV Fe40% o AR 55 w8 5 B 7 B W 1 55 XV I AR 2 e 3 4y
of the SFO, each of Mr. Shen Yong and Mr. Shen Ke is deemed to be TR MBER o HY B S A R H AT Sl A A 4 A Ulltra
interested in all the ordinary shares in which Ultra Harvest is, or is Harvest #E A7 5l 451 24 8 A7 W 45 2 it A7 35 28 B o 98
deemed to be, interested. Mr. Shen Yong is the father of Mr. Shen Ke, AHELS o B B A e 2 A1 - WA 5
both of whom are directors of Ultra Harvest. Ultra Harvest Z ¥ % o
(2)  Ms. Meng Qing is the spouse of Mr. Shen Yong. Pursuant to the Q) dmE bR EEA A - IR K
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, she is deemed 155 XV T4 2 Je 343 2 MG » At 2 I W B 5
to be interested in all the ordinary shares in which Mr. Shen Yong is, or A A B B B E RS 2 T A X A P A A o
is deemed to be, interested.
(3)  Ms. Peng Jingyi is the spouse of Mr. Shen Ke. Pursuant to the (B) EW—LbmWREAE R RIEHELHE

provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, she is deemed
to be interested in all the ordinary shares in which Mr. Shen Ke is, or
is deemed to be, interested.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, no other
interests required to be recorded in the register kept under
Section 336 of the SFO had been notified to the Company.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The share option scheme (the “Old Scheme”) adopted by
the Company on 16 June 2003 expired on 15 June 2013. The
Company has adopted a new share option scheme (the “New
Scheme”) on 3 June 2013 whereby the directors of the Company
are authorised, at their discretion, to invite, among other eligible
participants, employees of the Group (including directors of
any member of the Group), advisers and consultants, to take
up options to subscribe for shares of the Company. Each option
gives the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary share of
the Company. The New Scheme shall be valid and effective for a
period of ten years ending on 2 June 2023, after which no further
options can be granted.

Particulars of the movement of the options held by each of
the directors and, the employees of the Company in aggregate
granted under the New Scheme during the year ended 31
December 2014, were as follows:

B bSO 8k FH AN i S F —HAE T A
=l AN RIS 2 A T B R BRI K
PRI SR B9 55 336 WRIE T A 2 B Re il
2GR o

J B 20

VNN e == S SUAN = e RVANIE B 3 T - 41
HE ((&ERED) ER=F—=F A T+HH
JEIE o ARNFI FE—Z4ENH = H R AGH
RSB (THrREE ) » A w3 SRR 1
M (AL HAL A B2 ) ALEEES (B2
ALEBARAEM R E AT 2 EF) ~ B R A
P A R 2 A DR AR A R A o
"§'1' PSR S R A AN BRI — A A FD
o MiEtEIAAMIAL T EE F AN
H:EIJJ: » HAR A AT $2 RSN A o

R E—E+F T H =+ —HIEFEE > R
FHER T AN E R KRS 2 RS B R
AT

Number of outstanding share options

WAL g H
Exercise
price
per share Held at Granted Exercised Lapsed Held at
BRRG  1January 2004 during during during 31 December 2014
Category of Date of Exercise il REZ-TE the year the year theyear — R-Z—JNA
participants grant period HKS$ ~A-H ARG ARGEE RRER +ZA=F-H
A agil] frfEd i i o fifi % i
Directors of the Company
ARES
Mr. Kwan Man Kit,
Edmond
Bk 10.6.2014 14.2017-9.6.204 241 - 3,238,969 - - 3,238,969
Total

ahk

3,238,969 - - 3,238,969




The fair value of the options determined at the date of grant
using the Binomial model was approximately HK$4,172,000.

The following assumptions were used to calculate the fair value
of the share options:
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AH+H

Grant date share price 2 H I 2 B HK$2.38 ¥ 7T
Exercise price AT {HAE HK$2.41 #5750
Expected life T4 10 years 4
Expected volatility TEHH I 0 54.65%
Dividend yield R A 0%
Risk-free interest rate 3 o 1) 5 2.053%

The Binomial model has been used to estimate the fair value of
the options. The variables and assumptions used in computing
the fair value of the share options are based on the directors’best
estimate. Changes in variables and assumptions may result in
changes in the fair value of the options.

Other than disclosed above, no other share options had been
granted during the year. No share options had been cancelled or
had lapsed during the year.

As at 31 December 2014, the total number of outstanding share
options under the New Scheme were 3,238,969 share options.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of its directors, the directors
confirmed that the Company has maintained the amount of
public float as required under the Listing Rules during the year
and up to the date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed under the sections headed “Connected
Transactions” and note 44 to the financial statements, no
contracts of significance, to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party, and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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AL N R EAAE R R 1k > AR
FIA R NP o
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at 31 December 2014, Mr. Shen Yong, the chairman of
the Company, was the director and ultimate shareholder, of
Chongging Forebase Industrial Investment (Holdings) Co., Ltd.,
which together with its subsidiaries, are engaged in hotel real
estate development business in the PRC.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, none of the
Directors and his/her respective associates had interests in the
businesses which competes or was likely to compete, whether
directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group. Mr. Shen
Yong has undertaken to the Company that for so long as he
remains as a Director or a controlling Shareholder, all enquiries
and actual or potential business opportunities received by him
(and/or his associates) in relation to hotel real estate business (the
“Business Opportunities”) shall be referred to the Company on a
timely basis and the Business Opportunities must be first offered
or made available to the Group.

There has been no material change in directors’ interests in any
competing business subsequent to 31 December 2014.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, one of the subsidiaries of the Group had
entered into an acquisition agreement with Mr. Shen Yong, the
Chairman of the Company, to acquire 100% of equity interest of
Best Dollar Group.

The acquisition was completed on 18 September 2014 and the
consideration was settled by issue of 4,000,000 ordinary shares
each of HK$2.03 pursuant to the acquisition agreement.

Saved as disclosed above, details of the material related party
transactions during the year are set in note 44 to the financial
statements.
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CONTINUING OBLIGATIONS UNDER
CHAPTER 13 OF THE LISTING RULES -
LOAN AGREEMENT WITH COVENANTS
RELATING TO SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE
OF THE CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

In accordance with the requirements under Rule 13.21 of
the Listing Rules, the directors of the Company reported the
following loan facility which included a condition relating
to specific performance of the controlling shareholder of the
Company. On 24 December 2014, a facility agreement (the
“Facility Agreement”) was entered into between, among other
persons, the Company and a wholly owned subsidiary of a
licensed bank in Hong Kong (the “Lender”) under which the
Lender agrees to grant a term loan facility in the principal
amount of up to US$13,000,000 (the “Loan”) for a term of 12
months from and including the date of the Facility Agreement
(or, if the Company has requested the Lender in writing and
the Lender agrees, 24 months from the date of the Facility
Agreement). The facility is for the purpose of refinancing
the outstanding financial indebtedness under a 13% senior
guaranteed secured notes due 2014 with aggregate principal
amount of up to US$15,000,000.

It is required under the terms of the Facility Agreement, among
other things, that during the period beginning on the date of the
Facility Agreement and ending on the date on which all present
and future obligations and liabilities (other than those of the
Lender) under the Facility Agreement and other documents
relating to the Loan have been unconditionally and irrevocably
paid and discharged in full, unless prior written consent has
been obtained from the Lender:

e Mr. Shen Yong and Mr. Shen Ke (both being controlling
shareholders (as defined under the Listing Rules) of the
Company) shall together hold, directly or indirectly, at least
50% of the total issued share capital of the Company from
time to time;

o each of Mr. Shen Yong and Mr. Shen Ke shall maintain
as a Director (subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election in accordance with the articles of association of the
Company); and
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e  Mr. Shen Yong shall hold from time to time, directly or
indirectly, at least 50% of the entire equity interest in &
HILE2E (4 M) H RN 7], a company established under
the laws of the PRC and owned by Mr. Shen Yong directly
and indirectly as to 100% of its equity interests as at the date
of this report, which will provide a corporate guarantee in
favour of the Lender in connection with the Loan.

As at 31 December 2014 and the date of this report, there is no
breach of the above covenants.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

Details of the retirement schemes participated by the Group are
set out in note 38 to the financial statements.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 189 of
this annual report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive directors, an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers that all the independent non-executive directors are
independent.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2014 have been audited by SHINEWING (HK)CPA
Limited.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited will retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for reappointment. A resolution for there
appointment of SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited as auditor of
the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

By order of the Board

Shen Yong

Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 March 2015
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT
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SikpAe
Shine?0: ng

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
43/F.,The Lee Gardens

33 Hysan Avenue
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF FOREBASE
INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
B 5 [ B 42 M A PR 24 )

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements of Forebase
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out
on pages 51 to 188, which comprise the consolidated and the
Company’s statements of financial position as at 31 December
2014, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS” RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 141 of the
predecessor of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
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report. We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group and the Company as at
31 December 2014 and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Chan Wing Kit

Practising Certificate Number: P03224

Hong Kong
31 March 2015
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
A4S 32 3¢
ceERkEMEZERE R
For the year ended 31 December 2014 % & — U4+ = H =+—H LA
2014 2013
—ZF— N4 =
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
BEE Tt THETT
(Restated)
(&)
Revenue e 8 348,530 298,722
Cost of sales B A (341,850) (292,923)
Gross profit EH 6,680 5,799
Other income and gains HAb g A Mk 25 10 7,117 4,646
Selling and distribution expenses 8 M or 8B 5 (11,773) (8,334)
Administrative expenses AT (33,475) (26,417)
Research and development expenses W5 BH S (13,142) (11,057)
Other operating expenses HAh &84 B S (32,184) (14,019)
Change in fair value of BEY A R fEEHEE)
investment properties 19 - (5,157)
Finance costs il A 11 (17,276) (2,441)
Loss before tax R A s TR (94,053) (56,980)
Income tax credit PR BB 5 12 2,247 4,097
Loss for the year A R 13 (91,806) (52,883)
Other comprehensive (expense) income H 1% (%) Wat
Items that will not be reclassified to AN ER I E R HE -
profit or loss:
Actuarial gains on long service RIS R YE 2 K I i
payment obligations 36 - 548
Release of deferred tax upon HER S Y 3
disposal of investment properties TRE I 2 I RE B TE 32 2,074 2,211
2,074 2,759
Items that may be reclassified KEFWM A ERmAYEA -
subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising on PRI B3 T 78 A 2 B . 25
translation (9,067) 2,484
Other comprehensive (expense) AAEREHAD A T (B30) Wdd
income for the year (6,993) 5,243
Total comprehensive expense AR B A TH] BH SRR
for the year (98,799) (47,640)
HK cents HK cents
Loss per share (5309 7 <1 17 Al WAl
Basic HA (28.24) (16.33)
Diluted i (28.24) (16.33)
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As at 31 December 2014 i* —F—U4F+ —H =+—H

31 December 31 December 1 January
2014 2013 2013
e Sl 112 —E = —F—=
+ZA=Z+—H +ZHA=+—H —H—H
Notes HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000
i Tt T T
(Restated) (Restated)
(% H71) (8 E51)
Non-current assets FEw B E
Property, plant and equipment Wi - W Rl 18 120,764 136,420 23,112
Investment properties WEYE 19 - 29,823 56,292
Club memberships g 21 600 600 600
Deposits for purchase of property, HEE Y% - ## )
plant and equipment Bl P 347 - 106
121,711 166,843 80,110
Current assets TR
Inventories pedy 22 29,579 26,385 26,384
Properties under development (ERigaeE/ES 23 66,950 57,441 =
Trade and other receivables BIE 5 R EAbESR 24 104,301 78,639 94,136
Restricted bank deposits 5 PR SRAT A 25 12,940 10,007 11,009
Short-term bank deposit JEZHA A B =1E A
with original maturity BT
more than three months 25 1,000 - -
Bank balances and cash WETHEER N B & 25 31,921 68,370 99,368
246,691 240,842 230,897
A disposal group classified NEEEELE
as held for sale 2 EA R 26 86 = =
246,777 240,842 230,897
Current liabilities B £ 1A
Trade and other payables JEATE 5 B ARk 27 104,470 67,615 74,513
Amounts due to related companies A} B #2735 H 28 61,593 45,655 16,322
Tax payables JEABIIH 2,440 5,239 10,757
Bank borrowing — due WATHEE
within one year — —EREM - = 19,548
Obligations under finance lease B & ST 29 140 133 =
168,643 118,642 121,140
Net current assets B 78,134 122,200 109,757

Total assets less current liabilities % & 48 I i B £11& 199,845 289,043 189,867
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As at 31 December 2014 i* —F—U4F+ —H =+—H

31 December 31 December 1 January
2014 2013 2013
B ZE - x4
+=ZH=+—H +ZHA=1+—H —H—H
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
iz Tt T T
(Restated) (Restated)
(% H 7)) (48 H 7))
Capital and reserves B A T gt
Share capital i &N 30 99,076 32,390 32,390
Reserves bt (77,988) 99,203 146,843
Equity attributable to owners N/NiE 7 ZEDN
of the Company and total equity ~ JE i S KR M £ 21,088 131,593 179,233
Non-current liabilities FEw B A 1E
Deferred tax liabilities AR AR T £ 1 32 211 7,647 10,183
Obligations under finance lease il & & HAT 29 304 444 =
Amount due to ultimate JREASH o AR
holding company YNGIE¢L | 33 41,998 16,565 -
Amount due to a director AT — 2 EFH 5 IE 33 15,397 16,478 =
Secured note EIRUIE k- 34 - 116,316 =
Secured loan ISR 34 100,847 = =
Bonds &% 35 20,000 - -
Long service payment obligations = iR #5 4 &I 36 - - 451
178,757 157,450 10,634
199,845 289,043 189,867

The consolidated financial statements on pages 51 to 188 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on

31 March 2015 and are signed on its behalf by:

Shen Yong
Director

Zhao Enze
Director

o TSR AR EE

H1 %
A

A

EOIRFISSHZHEAMBEH LN T —H
A=t HEES e R RS I
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As at 31 December 2014 i* —F—U4F+ —H =+—H

2014 2013
R 4R —F—=
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 Tic T
Non-current assets JEUR Bh & A

Property, plant and equipment W - AR A 18 301 580
Investments in subsidiaries TR B A 2 & 20 105,368 186,949
105,669 187,529

Current assets B A
Other receivables HAth R AR 3K 24 1,123 10,639
Amounts due from subsidiaries T BB N W] 3K T 20 134,486 118,243
Bank balances and cash SRATHEER Bl & 25 3,847 3,750
139,456 132,632

Current liabilities i B £
Other payables FoAt REAST HR K 27 3,641 1,805
Amounts due to subsidiaries AR B 2 ) kI 20 14,136 11,053
Tax payables JREAS R IR - 3,084
17,777 15,942
Net current assets BN A A 121,679 116,690
Total assets less current liabilities & M R B B 227,348 304,219
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B 7% AR R 3R
As at 31 December 2014 A —F—JU4E+—"H=+—H
2014 2013
R 4R —F—=
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
i RN T
Capital and reserves B B Ak
Share capital A 30 99,076 32,390
Reserves (=2 31 (49,713) 122,560
Total equity AR AR 49,363 154,950
Non-current liabilities e B B 1
Amount due to ultimate holding company A} fx 4 /A 7 0E 33 41,998 16,565
Amount due to a director JEA— 2 FE KT 33 15,140 16,388
Secured note L 34 - 116,316
Secured loan R B 34 100,847 =
Bonds &5 35 20,000 =
177,985 149,269
227,348 304,219

The financial statements on pages 51 to 188 were approved and FHIEBISBHZMBHMEC R ~F —LFE=
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 31 March 2015 A=t — A EEE g R > Wl T

and are signed on its behalf by: S ERERE
Shen Yong 3

Director A

Zhao Enze o

Director 2
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 # % ~F— M4+ H=1+—H IL4FE

4= A

Retained
Properties profits
revaluation Share (accumulated
Share Share Merger ~ Contribution reserve  Statutory options  Exchange losses)
aapital  premium Teserve reserve b teserve eserve reserve  [RBAH Total
Bk RBEE  AORE NERE BEEGRE  GeRB O WRERE  EIRE  (RHER) it
HK$000 HKS$'000 HK§000 HK§000 HKS'000 HK$/000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$/000
Tk Tk Tk Tikn Tk Tk Tk Tikn Tk Tk
(Notea) (Noteb) (Note) (Noted) (Notee)
(Hite) (ztb) (Mike) (Hitd) (Hte)
At January 2013 as orginally sated) o S |
(0 %F)f if) 32390 58,560 = 8478 B4 10215 = (6,686) 40,605 166,770
Effecton adopting merger accounting ity £ {3
for common control combination AftertRE B - = 12,460 - - = - - 3 12463
At January 2013 (testated) AF-=F—f1-H
(“Eﬁ ) 32,39 58,566 12,460 8478 8142 10215 = (6,686) 40,668 17923
Loss forthe year (restated) KEEER (257) - - - - - - - - (52,883) (52,883)
Other comprehensive income for the year ~ AZFRE L2 il
- Actuarial ains on long servce payment -~ fe &ML
obfgations (Note 3¢ HeRltds (H:ta) - - - - - - - - 548 548
~Release of defered tax upon disposl - B R
of investment properties (Note 32) CERRE (W) - = - - 21 = - - = 2011
- Buchange differences arsing - Fsm
on franslaton LA : = = - - - - 2484 - 2481
- - - - m - - 2484 48 543
Total comprehensive income (expense) KRBT E
forthe ear (B3 4 - - - - 21 = = 2484 (323%) (A7640)
Disposal of investment properties s g = = = = (14,956) = = - 1496 -
At31 December 2013 (restated) REE—=4
TA=T-H (EE) 359 58,566 12,460 8478 10,397 10215 = (4202) 3289 13159
A1 Januery 2014 (restated) e sgiiLa
A—H (EE7) 32390 58,560 12460 8478 10397 10215 - (4202) 3289 13159
Toss for the ear KEFER - - - - - - - - (91,806) (91,806)
Other comprehensive incorme (expense) AEREHBARNE (FR)
for the year
- Release of deferred tax upon disposel - B E SR
of investment properties (Note 32) CERRE (W) - = = = 2,074 = = = = 2,074
~Bchange diffrences aisng on translaion - REEHALZERER - - - - - - - (9.067) - (9,067)
- - - - 2074 - - (9,067) = (6993)
Totel comprehensive income (expense) AEERTIG (R 4%
fr the year . . B, . 2074 . . b6 @88 G8T9)
Trensfer upon aboliton of par value wnder ~ REATAAT AR
the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance i EFFHEE (Jf12430)
(Note 30) ) 58,566 (58,566) = = = = = = = =
Recogniton of equity-setted share-based ~ HERRMARAESE 52
payment expenses (Note 43) IR (HE43) - - - - - - 89 - - 829
Merger reserve arising from common KRB L
control combination A ke - - (20,635) - - - - - - (20,655)
Issue of shares (Note 30) BHRA (H:E30) §120 = = = = = = = = 8120
Disposal of investment properties HiESE = = = = (12,471) = = - 1241 -
At31 December 2014 RoF-E
+=A=1-0 907 - 81%) 8478 - 1025 09 BX) (M) 208
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #% ~F— M4+ H =1+—H IL4FE

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Share premium

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the application of the share
premium is governed by section 48B of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. With effect from 3 March 2014, under the new Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), the concept of authorised share
capital no longer exists and the Company’s shares no longer have a
par value. The share premium was transferred to share capital upon
the abolition of par value under the new Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Merger reserve

During the year ended 31 December 2014, Forebase International
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (hereinafter
collectively referred to as the “Group”) acquired 100% of equity
interest in Best Dollar International Limited and its subsidiaries from
Mr. Shen Yong, the beneficial owner of the Company. The acquisition
was accounted for using merger accounting as detailed in note 4.

Contribution reserve

Contribution reserve represents contributions from shareholders for
indemnity liabilities payable for periods prior to 30 June 2003.

Properties revaluation reserve

The properties revaluation reserve has been set up and is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policies adopted for land and
buildings held for own use in note 4. The reserve was arising from land
and buildings under revaluation model adopted in prior years. The
land and buildings were transferred to investment properties during
the year ended 31 December 2012 and the properties revaluation
reserve was released upon the disposal of the respective properties.

Statutory reserve

In accordance with the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)
laws applicable to wholly-foreign owned investment enterprises,
subsidiaries of the Company operating in the PRC are required to set
up a general reserve fund and appropriate at least 10% of respective
company’s annual profit after tax, as determined under the PRC
accounting rules and regulations, to the general reserve fund until the
balance of the reserve equals to 50% of its registered capital. This fund
can be used to make good losses and to convert into paid-up capital.

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

e Ay i

WE X =+ HA=+—HILEERN > KK
i 8 2 B 2 vl I8 W IR 26 ASB R - A =%
—IHAE = A = HGE S R A RS (5 622
) > ANFATEEE AN BE > AR R
LA TR o 8 i 1 AR 820 75 2 W e f g
IR T o 8 2 A

£ PGl

BE-F—WE+ A=+ —HIEFEER > AL
B R P A BRA | (TAS A | ]) S BB A ) (5
Tl [ASSE 1) )AL A)E 22 AT N HR O Sl A i g
Best Dollar International Limited K H ff J& 2% 7
100% JBHE o & TE S 2 B A B 5 4 ok 1) & O &
FHEHE R ALE o

Hibegrdid

B fRA TE ORI — R T =4 A =+ H AT
ZIENTBEA RN E -

W B A Al

W E A B A )45 W 4 BT A B B b R
MR 2 G T BUR R BOEHE s R R4
JE 3 Ml M AT PR AN AL AT A A o A R
FE—T"HEF+H=+—HILEE L RFiE
[ EXVS L/ E YT/ E TR A Y INTRRElLE S
IRFR R o

W Gl

AR T AP A 36 2 rh e N RSEANE ([
B 1) R s AR R R B ) A B A
S A AR A > AR A R iR D 10% 2 AR R
AR (45 R AR I B e 5T 5) $3 A —Jiefi
RidE4 - H A BRE 2 HGEM AR 50% £ 1k o
et R < T T A A e 4R B A AR AS -
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FOREBASE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
FREBIRIZRERA

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

MERETRER

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #% ~F— M4+ H =1+—H IL4FfE

2014 2013
e S e —F—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
T TH#TT
(Restated)
(&)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES R
Loss before tax i Hif e 1 (94,053) (56,980)
Adjustments for: AT FI A& TR H i
Interest income FLE A (576) (639)
Finance costs A& A 17,276 2,441
Depreciation e 10,518 9,327
Impairment loss recognised EDN; S & i
on property, plant and equipment Z I E 1R - 873
Impairment loss recognised JRENS B 5 R R e
on trade receivables Z WE R 123 71
Reversal of impairment loss HURE I 5 iR sk e R
recognised on trade receivables Z WS (EL R AR [ 43¢ - (317)
Decrease in fair value of BEYHEZ A AEE D
investment properties - 5,157
Allowance for inventories T a 1,644 -
Reversal of allowance for inventories Fr B 2 [ 43 (1,642) (2,134)
Gain on disposal of property, HEYIZE - B KX
plant and equipment A A 2 W i (1,149) (50)
Loss on disposal of investment HE R EYE R
properties 6,716 2,956
Share-based payment expenses AR S A 2 B 52 829 -
Decrease in long service payment TR B R 2 h
obligations - 97
Gain arising from initial recognition of F N FABEBI IR ERR
amount due to ultimate holding JREAS) e 48422 B/
company at fair value PR A 2 W (3,264) (1,287)
Gain arising from initial recognition of F5 5 SUAEAER) R WERR IE AT
amount due to a director at fair value — 4 R I A 2 W g (1,197) (1,281)
Operating cash flows before BEESSEH KA B SR
movements in working capital (64,775) (41,766)
(Increase) decrease in 8 (3m) Wb
inventories (3,183) 2,106
Increase in properties BHEE s 2E R I
under development (10,022) (57,441)
(Increase) decrease in JREW & 5 I oAb HiR 3k
trade and other receivables (389m) W (60,318) 23,030
Increase (decrease) in TEATE 5 Je HoA B 2%
trade and other payables WA () 36,821 (11,598)
(Decrease) increase in JREAS B 2 W)
amounts due to related companies (I ) 8 (147) 118
Cash used in operations BT Z B4 (101,624) (85,551)
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid BRI H (3,084) -
PRC Corporate Income Tax paid E A B 3E TG B (2,839) (1,746)
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING R Bl & H
ACTIVITIES (107,547) (87,297)
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—2-mEFR
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
=
HEREMER
For the year ended 31 December 2014 #% ~F— M4+ H =1+—H IL4FE
2014 2013
- 111 E2 3 —F—-=
HK$’000 HK$000
T#x THEIT
(Restated)
(R&H)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES P& B
Proceeds on disposal of investment BB ST OH
properties 22,956 18,751
Proceeds on disposal of property, EYE - BEAS R T 1S 3K IH
plant and equipment 1,195 50
Interest received B 576 639
Increase in deposits for purchase of IS EY)E - Has Kt 2 % a1
property, plant and equipment (347) =
Placement of short-term deposit T IBUE A K (1,000) -
(Increase) decrease in restricted Z IR ERITAEE (Bm) b
bank deposits (2,933) 1,002
Purchase of property, W B - M DA
plant and equipment (3,978) (7,441)
NET CASH FROM INVESTING BEE B 2 BT H
ACTIVITIES 16,469 13,001
FINANCING ACTIVITIES i )
Advance from related companies EﬁL’ NCIE T4 32,780 29,210
Advance from ultimate holding T BN TR
company 27,850 17,852
Proceeds from issurance of bonds BT R P A5 2K E 20,000 -
Repayment of obligations P L R % AT
under finance lease (133) (125)
(Repayment to) advance from a director (fH72) — A EFRK (728) 17,759
Interest paid AR (9,086) (2,441)
Repayment of secured note 15 ﬁBTEﬂﬁa R (15,530 -
Repayment of bank borrowing R SRAT K - (19,548)
NET CASH FROM FINANCING T 3 0 P 1 2 B R
ACTIVITIES 55,153 42,707
NET DECREASE IN CASH Bl & BBl &5 Z WA H 8
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (35,925) (31,589)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS A —H —HZB&LHEFHEY
AT 1 JANUARY 68,370 99,368
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [ % 5 B} i 28 (438) 591
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RT_H=1—HZHRE&ERREFED
AT 31 DECEMBER, represented Ja4a S8R4T &5 R B Bl
by bank balances and cash 32,007 68,370
Represented by: HAorfufg :
— Bank balances and cash — SRATHE R IR A 31,921 68,370
— A disposal group classified - B ARHER &2 HEHR
as held for sale (note 26) (B3 26) 86 -

32,007 68,370
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FOREBASE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
REFRZERARAA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 ¥R 3 MY &

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #% ~F— M4+ H =1+—H IL4FfE

GENERAL

Forebase International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability
and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of
the registered office and principal place of business of
the Company are disclosed in the corporate information
section to the annual report.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, Ultra
Harvest Limited (“Ultra Harvest”), a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability, is the
ultimate holding company of the Company and Mr. Shen
Yong, the Chairman of the Company, is the ultimate
controlling party of the Company.

On 18 September 2014, one of the subsidiaries of the
Group, Forebase China Limited (“Forebase China”)
acquired 100% equity interest of Best Dollar International
Limited (“Best Dollar”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as “Best Dollar Group”), of which Mr. Shen
Yong is the beneficial owner of Best Dollar Group. Since
the Company, Forebase China and Best Dollar Group
are ultimately controlled by Mr. Shen Yong both before
and after this acquisition. Accordingly, the financial
statements of the Group has been prepared on the basis
as if the Company had always been the holding company
of Best Dollar Group throughout the two years ended 31
December 2014, using the principles of merger accounting
in accordance with Accounting Guideline 5 Merger
Accounting for Common Control Combination as set out
in note 4 below. Details are set out in note 37.

As a result of the above, the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows including the results
and cash flows of the companies comprising the Group
have been prepared as if the current group structure had
been in existence throughout the year ended 31 December
2013 or since their respective dates of incorporation or
establishment up to 31 December 2014. The consolidated
statement of financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2013 and 1 January 2013 have been restated
to present the assets and liabilities of the companies
comprising the Group as if the current group structure had
been in existence as at those dates.

R

B MR A PR A A (TR H ) —
T 7 s Rk WS 2 A PR A > e it
TS A RAA (THAR]) L
o AN R 2 5 o e E B S
RASAE R o VBB — Hi 4 % -

AR\ 7 # H R 5 > Ultra Harvest Limited
([Ultra Harvest | > & %% & i & B 5 5 it
WAL Z B RAT) BN 2 ik fﬂx"
A > RN T EEHE AR RNTFZ
BRI -

A E—NFEILA TNE > REE L HE
SRR A BR A ([ HEE R E]) ik
Ii# Best DollarInternational Limited ([ Best
Dollar|) K Hf &/~ 7 (%% [Best Dollar
EH 1) Z100% MHE - 1 55 55 A 2 Best
Dollar £ B 2 H#w #EA N o HRAAH -
FH I A [ K Best Dollar 4 [ 5% 2 vk i il /i
A2 357 Fh FR BB SR B A I > R AR AEE
PATS R O 4 BECR SCI 5 4 Pr 19 & 5148
5155598 [ BtILR EEH 2 & R IEEA I E
FhOE I | A A OF g Rt R R > R an
ARANFERE - F—N4E+ - H=1+—H
1 4E— B 5 Best Dollar 4 B 2 A2 7
ZHEMELR B o FEIG AR EE 37 o

B Bl I 2 S AR AR A R4
it 3R ~ S A MER B H) R KA BLER
BRRNOEALEEEG AR ZER/ RIS
T WA EEEEERE _F—=
FHZA=+T—HIEFESRA KB Z 5k
Wor sk HE 2 — & — U4+ H
=+t —HIEH—BEFAE - ALK -F
— ST A ST H R CE A
—HZ B MBI RN KD TES > LIRS
AEEB T AR EE KA > WA
A SR 255 H E AR AE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 ¥R 3 MY &

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #% ~F— M4+ H =1+—H IL4FE

GENERAL (Continued)

The Company is an investment holding company and the
principal activities of its subsidiaries are the manufacture
and sale of electronic components, properties investment
and hotel operation. In addition, upon the completion
of the acquisition of Best Dollar Group on 18 September
2014, the Group further extended its principal activities to
properties development in the PRC.

The functional currency of the Company is Hong Kong
dollar (“HK$”) and the functional currencies for certain
subsidiaries are Renminbi (“RMB”), Canadian dollar
(“CAD”) and Korean Won (“KRW”). For the purposes of
presenting the financial statements, the Group adopted
HKS$ as its presentation currency as its shares are listed in
Hong Kong.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis notwithstanding that the Group had incurred
loss of approximately HK$91,806,000 for the year ended
31 December 2014. This condition indicates the existence
of a material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt
about the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the Group
should be able to maintain itself as a going concern within
the next twelve months from the end of the reporting
period.

The directors of the Company consider that the Group
will have sufficient working capital to meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due within the next
twelve months from the end of the reporting period.
Accordingly, the directors of the Company are satisfied that
it is appropriate to prepare these consolidated financial
statements on a going concern basis. The consolidated
financial statements do not include any adjustments
relating to the carrying amount and reclassification of
assets and liabilities that might be necessary should the
Group be unable to continue as a going concern.

—RER ()

AN Sy PG T > HLHHE S F R E
EEGANERHEEBR T LM WERK
B T S o BEAk s R E—PAEJLA
+/\ H 5 Bl il Best Dollar & M 1% > AN4E
B 5 - B — P R B P R
% °

ARFAZNEER BT (M) > &
THEBARZIRERAARY (AR
WD)~ kT (Tl KR (7%
B1) - 2SI B IRE = - A5 B R AN
WA HEIRN > WARLBOHREEL
o

S5 A 2 A I

AW B M EILTFEEERR - 2 %
—EFZA=+—HILEE > AEHEE
A TG 15 #7 91,806,000 95 T o 7%k L £ B AT
TEERAHBIFEE > iR B AREED
PR ae AR - AN EH
RE > BEAEBARFRR T ZMA N
AR EE [ BE A FR A S o

AARIEERR - EAEENMBRIEA
o WA FHR AT 8 A MBI - A
A B0 BT 00 B SR AT RS R
& o I > A% R 35 A% o AL A
ARG A MR G - REH BT
R AR A A5 5 B S B AR A A TR ]
it A AT ] SR T (LA R 1 o B I
HiE AR ER M -
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FOREBASE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
FREBIRIZRERA

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group and the Company have
applied the following new and revised HKFRSs, which
includes HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKAS(s)”), amendments and Interpretations (“Int(s)”),
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the”HKICPA”).

Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment Entities
HKEFRS 12 and HKAS 27

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities
Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable Amount
Disclosures for
Non-Financial Assets
Amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of Derivatives
and Continuation of
Hedge Accounting
HK(FRIC)* — Int 21 Levies

* HK(IFRIC) represents the Hong Kong (IFRS Interpretations
Committee)

Except as described below, the application of the new and
revised HKFRSs in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group’s and the Company’s financial
performance and positions for the current and prior
years and/or on the disclosures set out in these financial
statements.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 ¥R 3 MY &

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #% ~F— M4+ H =1+—H IL4FfE

3.

TRAPT T M REA5 0T 7 8 S 05 i o
W) ([ i B 5 i o MR S0 1)

TAAAESE > AR KA F SR A
At~ ([ g st g ) sz T3
AT M ACAERT i S o YE R (AR
BB AL FEGFHER (FEe
FHERLD) ~ BT Rk ([eRE))) -

T vk B ik HE L) Eilggct:|
$10%E
T Vs B A HE )
1258
FUs G ERIEE 27 98
(EHTA)
HseFrEL RS 4 i E
53298 (BRTA) oA=L
HseFEL FEE Rl E 2 AT
H36uE (BFTA) Wi ] 4 E P 77

A ERHE Rt TAER K
395 (BRTA) HbEtik
A
i (MBS R
aRZET)
— e PR 21 98
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 ¥R 3 MY &

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #% ~F— M4+ H =1+—H IL4FE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. PRANBGT AR EET B B iR

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27 Investment Entities

The Group has applied the amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKEFRS 12 and HKAS 27 Investment Entities for the first
time in the current year. The amendments to HKFRS
10 define an investment entity and require a reporting
entity that meets the definition of an investment entity
not to consolidate its subsidiaries but instead to measure
its subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss in its
consolidated and separate financial statements.

To qualify as an investment entity, a reporting entity is
required to:

° obtain funds from one or more investors for
the purpose of providing them with investment
management services;

° commit to its investor(s) that its business purpose
is to invest funds solely for returns from capital
appreciation, investment income, or both; and

e  measure and evaluate performance of substantially
all of its investments on a fair value basis.

Consequential amendments have been made to HKFRS 12
and HKAS 27 to introduce new disclosure requirements for
investment entities.

As the Company is not an investment entity (assessed
based on the criteria set out in HKFRS 10 as at 1 January
2014), the application of the amendments has had no
impact on the disclosures or the amounts recognised in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.

W) ([ o o 2 o e S0 D) ()

9 B i R SR 10 9% ~ A
5 oty Y B 58 12 9% B A vk eyt R
527 9% (BRI A) [ & T
JAARAERE SR I U T A o A S
HE QISR 1058 + 7 vl P 5 e o B T 2R 12 9%
LAEBGFHERNS 2798 (BITA) [HER
] o 7 U S i A YE RIS 10 9E (IERTAR)
BEREHERE LA E - WREFS AR
HERZ HMABGES R ALKE AR
17 2R L A BB S BA S R h 4k 8 A B
Ert A B 7R E AR

e BERERBCEHE ZHERA

o HRHEZHBEEZEEISF
R By B S SR A B PR

o MEEER - KB ITEE SR
PR ACEATHE ~ BCE AR [ ek
FHWEZHE 5 &

o RN AMERYERHR KEPAG BRI
BEZ KB -

s S i o T 2 12 B S B s e
27 2 HARERT A C ARG > DISIA
FRRABUEH M PR RE

B AR A B OIG E B (R %
—PHAE— H — H s s o RIS 10 5%
Jir i 2 W RIETALT) > e P G S A8 R T I e
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FOREBASE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
FREBIRIZRERA

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS 32
Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities for
the first time in the current year. The amendments to
HKAS 32 clarify the requirements relating to the offset of
financial assets and financial liabilities. Specifically, the
amendments clarify the meaning of ‘currently has a legally
enforceable right of set-off’ and ‘simultaneous realisation
and settlement’.

The amendments have been applied retrospectively. As
the Group does not have any financial assets and financial
liabilities that qualify for offset, the application of the
amendments has had no impact on the disclosures or
on the amounts recognised in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable Amount
Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS 36
Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets
for the first time in the current year. The amendments
to HKAS 36 remove the requirement to disclose the
recoverable amount of a cash-generating unit (CGU) to
which goodwill or other intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives had been allocated when there has been
no impairment or reversal of impairment of the related
CGU. Furthermore, the amendments introduce additional
disclosure requirements applicable to when the recoverable
amount of an asset or a CGU is measured at fair value less
costs of disposal. These new disclosures include the fair
value hierarchy, key assumptions and valuation techniques
used which are in line with the disclosure required by
HKERS 13 Fair Value Measurements.

The application of these amendments may result in more
disclosures being made in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 ¥R 3 MY &

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #% ~F— M4+ H =1+—H IL4FfE

3.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #% ~F— M4+ H =1+—H IL4FE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of
Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge
Accounting

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS 39
Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge
Accounting for the first time in the current year. The
amendments to HKAS 39 provide relief from the
requirement to discontinue hedge accounting when a
derivative designated as a hedging instrument is novated
under certain circumstances. The amendments also
clarify that any change to the fair value of the derivative
designated as a hedging instrument arising from the
novation should be included in the assessment and
measurement of hedge effectiveness.

The amendments have been applied retrospectively. As
the Group does not have any derivatives that are subject to
novation, the application of these amendments has had no
impact on the disclosures or on the amounts recognised in
the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

HKIFRIC) - Int 21 Levies

The Group has applied HK(IFRIC) — Int 21 Levies for the
first time in the current year. HK(IFRIC) — Int 21 addresses
the issue as to when to recognise a liability to pay a levy
imposed by a government. The Interpretation defines a
levy, and specifies that the obligating event that gives rise
to the liability is the activity that triggers the payment of
the levy, as identified by legislation. The Interpretation
provides guidance on how different levy arrangements
should be accounted for, in particular, it clarifies that
neither economic compulsion nor the going concern basis
of financial statements preparation implies that an entity
has a present obligation to pay a levy that will be triggered
by operating in a future period.

HK(IFRIC) — Int 21 has been applied retrospectively. The
application of this Interpretation has had no material
impact on the disclosures or on the amounts recognised in
the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 ¥R 3 MY &

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #% ~F— M4+ H =1+—H IL4FfE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet

effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

HKFRS 9

HKEFRS 15

Amendments to HKAS 1
Amendments to

HKEFRS 10, HKERS 12
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 11

Amendments to HKAS 16

and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKAS 27

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRSs

0 . 4
Financial Instruments

Revenue from Contracts
with Customers®
Disclosure Initiative®

Investment Entities: Applying
the Consolidation
Exception®

Accounting for
Acquisitions of Interests
in Joint Operations’

Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation
and Amortisation’

Agriculture: Bearer Plants’

Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee Contributions'

Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements®

Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an Investor
and its Associate
or Joint Venture®

Annual Improvements to
HKERSs 2010 -
2012 Cycle'
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #% ~F— M4+ H =1+—H IL4FE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. PRANBGT AR EET B B iR

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs ~ Annual Improvements to
HKEFRSs 2011 -

2013 Cycle!

Amendments to HKFRSs ~ Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2012 -

2014 Cycle’

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2017.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018.

HKEFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKEFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial assets.
HKERS 9 was subsequently amended in 2010 to include
requirements for the classification and measurement of
financial liabilities and for derecognition, and further
amended in 2013 to include the new requirements for
general hedge accounting. Another revised version
of HKFRS 9 was issued in 2014 mainly to include a)
impairment requirements for financial assets and b)
limited amendments to the classification and measurement
requirements by introducing a ‘fair value through other
comprehensive income’ (FVTOCI) measurement category
for certain simple debt instruments.

W) ([ o o 2 o e S0 D) ()

A £ EL 19 AR A R = T T e A 4 T
9 S e R A ()

TS U s e R T it AT i o
CCHEN) A =& ——4F
BOER D4
A R
&
s i e R T s AT i
(EFTA) R =& —4F
TR —JO4E
A 2 AR
¢
! AT PAE-b H — H sk AR B i 2 4 R 1Y)
A 2
2 T B NE—H — B MBI 2 AR
R
S T E AR B MBI A 2 AR
A
C R E— A H M B R 2 AR
F'Eﬁ’fli%( °

Mg AR 99k [l T A |

T F R LR M Y T o B 5 i e U
SEOUESIA T A Bl E 0 B E R
BUE o HARI % — T RAERT I & v I
s ot Y B 2 9 BE L9 A B < A B R0 8T
et A R BOH RS HE > 2RI —F
— AR B RT DU A B — i b g
FHE B 2 BBUE o B & — DU AR I 2 A
W B i ME RS 9 9k S — B RT A £
TN a) A B < Rl 72 2 SRAEL AR GE B b) St
T ERARE TRIIA THA R E AR A
fle st ) FHEBUH > B BILGTER
EAEHARRERT -



SN

68

FOREBASE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
FREBIRIZRERA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #% ~F— M4+ H =1+—H IL4FfE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described below:

All recognised financial assets that are within
the scope of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement are subsequently
measured at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically,
debt investments that are held within a business
model whose objective is to collect the contractual
cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. Debt instruments that are held within a
business model whose objective is achieved both
by collecting contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets, and that have contractual terms of
the financial asset give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding, are
measured at FVTOCI. All other debt investments
and equity investments are measured at their fair
value at the end of subsequent accounting periods.
In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may make an
irrevocable election to present subsequent changes in
the fair value of an equity investment (that is not held
for trading) in other comprehensive income, with
only dividend income generally recognised in profit
or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #% ~F— M4+ H =1+—H IL4FE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. PRANBGT AR EET B B iR
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING R ([FHl B s ¥R ) (4)
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued) HWMEHREERNE R[S T A |

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss,
HKEFRS 9 requires that the amount of change in the
fair value of the financial liability that is attributable
to changes in the credit risk of that liability is
presented in other comprehensive income, unless the
recognition of the effects of changes in the liability’s
credit risk in other comprehensive income would
create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit
or loss. Changes in fair value of financial liabilities
attributable to changes in the financial liabilities’
credit risk are not subsequently reclassified to profit
or loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire amount of the
change in the fair value of the financial liability
designated as fair value through profit or loss was
presented in profit or loss.

In relation to the impairment of financial assets,
HKEFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss model,
as opposed to an incurred credit loss model under
HKAS 39. The expected credit loss model requires
an entity to account for expected credit losses and
changes in those expected credit losses at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition. In other words, it is no longer
necessary for a credit event to have occurred before
credit losses are recognised.
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FOREBASE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
FREBIRIZRERA

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

e The new general hedge accounting requirements
retain the three types of hedge accounting. However,
greater flexibility has been introduced to the types
of transactions eligible for hedge accounting,
specifically broadening the types of instruments that
qualify for hedging instruments and the types of risk
components of non-financial items that are eligible
for hedge accounting. In addition, the effectiveness
test has been overhauled and replaced with the
principle of an ‘economic relationship’. Retrospective
assessment of hedge effectiveness is also no longer
required. Enhanced disclosure requirements about
an entity’s risk management activities have also been
introduced.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of HKFRS 9 in the future may have a material
impact on amounts reported in respect of the Group’s and
the Company’s financial assets and financial liabilities.
Regarding the Group’s financial assets, it is not practicable
to provide a reasonable estimate of that effect until a
detailed review has been completed.

HKERS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

In July 2014, HKEFRS 15 was issued which establishes
a single comprehensive model for entities to use in
accounting for revenue arising from contracts with
customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue
recognition guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS
11 Construction Contracts and the related Interpretations
when it becomes effective.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (Continued)

HKEFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Continued)

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically,
the standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue
recognition:

e Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

e  Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

J Step 3: Determine the transaction price

e  Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

e  Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when
(or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
‘control’ of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer. Far
more prescriptive guidance has been added in HKFRS
15 to deal with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive
disclosures are required by HKFRS 15.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of HKFRS 15 in the future may have a material
impact on the amounts reported and disclosures made
in the Group’s and the Company’s financial statements.
However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable
estimate of the effect of HKFRS 15 until the Group
performs a detailed review.
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FOREBASE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
FREBIRIZRERA

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative

The amendments clarify that companies should use
professional judgement in determining what information as
well as where and in what order information is presented
in the consolidated financial statements. Specifically, an
entity should decide, taking into consideration all relevant
facts and circumstances, how it aggregates information
in the consolidated financial statements, which include
the notes. An entity does not require to provide a specific
disclosure required by a HKERS if the information resulting
from that disclosure is not material. This is the case even
if the HKFRS contain a list of specific requirements or
describe them as minimum requirements.

Besides, the amendments provide some additional
requirements for presenting additional line items, headings
and subtotals when their presentation is relevant to
an understanding of the entity’s financial position and
financial performance respectively. Entities, in which
they have investments in associates or joint ventures, are
required to present the share of other comprehensive
income of associates and joint ventures accounted for using
the equity method, separated into the share of items that (i)
will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss; and
(ii) will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when
specific conditions are met.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #% ~F— M4+ H =1+—H IL4FE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. PRANBGT AR EET B B iR

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative
(Continued)

Furthermore, the amendments clarify that:

@) an entity should consider the effect on the
understandability and comparability of its
consolidated financial statements when determining
the order of the notes; and

(i) significant accounting policies are not required to be
disclosed in one note, but instead can be included
with related information in other notes.

The amendments will become effective for financial
statements with annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2016. Earlier application is permitted. The
directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
Amendments to HKAS 1 in the future may have a material
impact on the disclosures made in the Group’s and the
Company’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 28 Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception

The amendments clarify the requirements when accounting
for investment entities as well as provide relief in particular
circumstances, which will reduce the costs of applying the
standards. Specifically, a parent entity that is a subsidiary
of an investment entity is exempted from preparing
consolidated financial statements. A parent entity which is
also a subsidiary of an investment entity and hold interests
in associates and joint ventures is exempted from applying
equity method if it meets all the conditions stated in
paragraph 4(a) of HKFRS 10.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #% ~F— M4+ H =1+—H IL4FfE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. PRANBGT AR EET B B iR

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 28 Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception (Continued)

Besides, the amendments clarify if an investment entity
has a subsidiary that is not itself an investment entity
and whose main purpose and activities are providing
investment-related services that relate to the investment
entity’s investment activities to the entity or other parties,
it should consolidate that subsidiary. If the subsidiary that
provides the investment-related services or activities is
itself an investment entity, the investment entity parent
should measure that subsidiary at fair value through profit
or loss. If an entity that is not itself an investment entity
has an interest in an associate or joint venture that is an
investment entity, the entity may, when apply the equity
method, retain the fair value measurement applied by
that investment entity associate or joint venture to the
investment entity associate’s or joint venture’s interests in
subsidiaries.

Furthermore, if a parent that is an investment entity and
has measured all of its subsidiaries at fair value through
profit or loss, that investment entity should present the
disclosures relating to investment entities required by
HKEFRS 12 in its financial statements. If an investment
entity has consolidated its subsidiary in which the
subsidiary itself is not an investment entity and whose
main purpose and activities are providing services that
relate to the investment activities of its investment entity
parent, the disclosure requirements in HKFRS 12 apply
to financial statements in which the investment entity
consolidates that subsidiary.
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3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. PRANBGT AR EET B B iR

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 28 Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception (Continued)

The amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS
28 will become effective for financial statements with
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016.
Earlier application is permitted. As the Company is not
an investment entity and does not have any investments
in investment entities, the directors of the Company do
not anticipate that the application of the amendments to
HKEFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 will have a material
impact on the Group’s and the Company’s financial
statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for
Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations

The amendments to HKFRS 11 provide guidance on how
to account for the acquisition of a joint operation that
constitutes a business as defined in HKFRS 3 Business
Combinations. Specifically, the amendments state
that the relevant principles on accounting for business
combinations in HKFRS 3 and other standards (e.g. HKAS
36 Impairment of Assets regarding impairment testing of
a cash generating unit to which goodwill on acquisition
of a joint operation has been allocated) should be applied.
The same requirements should be applied to the formation
of a joint operation if and only if an existing business is
contributed to the joint operation by one of the parties that
participate in the joint operation.

A joint operator is also required to disclose the relevant
information required by HKFRS 3 and other standards for
business combinations.

The amendments to HKFRS 11 apply prospectively for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016.
The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of these amendments to HKFRS 11 will have
a material impact on the Group’s and the Company’s
financial statements.
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FOREBASE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
FREBIRIZRERA

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38
Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation

The amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit entities from
using a revenue-based depreciation method for items of
property, plant and equipment. The amendments to HKAS
38 introduce a rebuttable presumption that revenue is not
an appropriate basis for amortisation of an intangible asset.
This presumption can only be rebutted in the following
two limited circumstances:

(a) when the intangible asset is expressed as a measure
of revenue; or

(b) when it can be demonstrated that revenue and
consumption of the economic benefits of the
intangible asset are highly correlated.

The amendments apply prospectively for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2016. Currently, the
Group and the Company use the straight-line method for
depreciation and amortisation for its property, plant and
equipment, and intangible assets respectively. The directors
of the Company believe that the straight-line method is
the most appropriate method to reflect the consumption
of economic benefits inherent in the respective assets and
accordingly, the directors of the Company do not anticipate
that the application of these amendments to HKAS 16 and
HKAS 38 will have a material impact on the Group’s and
the Company’s financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #% ~F— M4+ H =1+—H IL4FE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit
Plans: Employee Contributions

The amendments to HKAS 19 clarify how an entity should
account for contributions made by employees or third
parties to defined benefit plans, based on whether those
contributions are dependent on the number of years of
service provided by the employee.

For contributions that are independent of the number
of years of service, the entity may either recognise the
contributions as a reduction in the service cost in the
period in which the related service is rendered, or to
attribute them to the employees’ periods of service using
the projected unit credit method; whereas for contributions
that are dependent on the number of years of service,

the entity is required to attribute them to the employees’

periods of service.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of these amendments to HKAS 19 will have
a significant impact on the Group’s and the Company’s
financial statements as the Group does not have any
defined benefit plans.
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FOREBASE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
FREBIRIZRERA

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in
Separate Financial Statements

The amendments allow an entity to account for
investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in
its separate financial statements

° At cost

J In accordance with HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
(or HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement for entities that have not yet adopted
HKFRS 9), or

e  Using the equity method as described in HKAS 28
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures.

The accounting option must be applied by category of
investments.

The amendments also clarify that when a parent ceases to
be an investment entity, or becomes an investment entity,
it shall account for the change from the date when the
change in status occurred.

In addition to the amendments to HKAS 27, there are
consequential amendments to HKAS 28 to avoid a
potential conflict with HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial
Statements and to HKERS 1 First-time Adoption of Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of these amendments to HKAS 27 will have
a material impact on the Group’s and the Company’s
financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #% ~F— M4+ H =1+—H IL4FE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012
Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle
include a number of amendments to various HKFRSs,
which are summarised below.

The amendments to HKFRS 2 (i) change the definitions
of ‘vesting condition” and ‘market condition’; and (ii)
add definitions for ‘performance condition” and ‘service
condition” which were previously included within the
definition of ‘vesting condition’. The amendments
to HKFRS 2 are effective for share-based payment
transactions for which the grant date is on or after 1 July
2014.

The amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify that contingent
consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability
should be measured at fair value at each reporting date,
irrespective of whether the contingent consideration is
a financial instrument within the scope of HKFRS 9 or
HKAS 39 or a non-financial asset or liability. Changes in
fair value (other than measurement period adjustments)
should be recognised in profit and loss. The amendments
to HKFRS 3 are effective for business combinations for
which the acquisition date is on or after 1 July 2014.

The amendments to HKFRS 8 (i) require an entity to
disclose the judgements made by management in applying
the aggregation criteria to operating segments, including
a description of the operating segments aggregated
and the economic indicators assessed in determining
whether the operating segments have ‘similar economic
characteristics’; and (ii) clarify that a reconciliation of the
total of the reportable segments’assets to the entity’s assets
should only be provided if the segment assets are regularly
provided to the chief operating decision-maker.
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FREBIRIZRERA

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012
Cycle (Continued)

The amendments to the basis for conclusions of HKFRS
13 clarify that the issue of HKFRS 13 and consequential
amendments to HKAS 39 and HKFRS 9 did not remove the
ability to measure short-term receivables and payables with
no stated interest rate at their invoice amounts without
discounting, if the effect of discounting is immaterial. As
the amendments do not contain any effective date, they are
considered to be immediately effective.

The amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 remove
perceived inconsistencies in the accounting for
accumulated depreciation/amortisation when an item of
property, plant and equipment or an intangible asset is
revalued. The amended standards clarify that the gross
carrying amount is adjusted in a manner consistent with
the revaluation of the carrying amount of the asset and that
accumulated depreciation/amortisation is the difference
between the gross carrying amount and the carrying
amount after taking into account accumulated impairment
losses.

The amendments to HKAS 24 clarify that a management
entity providing key management personnel services to a
reporting entity is a related party of the reporting entity.
Consequently, the reporting entity should disclose as
related party transactions the amounts incurred for the
service paid or payable to the management entity for the
provision of key management personnel services. However,
disclosure of the components of such compensation is not
required.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of these amendments will have a material effect
on the Group’s and the Company’s financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #% ~F— M4+ H =1+—H IL4FE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013
Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle
include a number of amendments to various HKFRSs,
which are summarised below.

The amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify that the standard
does not apply to the accounting for the formation of all
types of joint arrangement in the financial statements of
the joint arrangement itself.

The amendments to HKFRS 13 clarify that the scope of
the portfolio exception for measuring the fair value of a
group of financial assets and financial liabilities on a net
basis includes all contracts that are within the scope of,
and accounted for in accordance with, HKAS 39 or HKFRS
9, even if those contracts do not meet the definitions of
financial assets or financial liabilities within HKAS 32.

The amendments to HKAS 40 clarify that HKAS 40 and
HKEFRS 3 are not mutually exclusive and application of
both standards may be required. Consequently, an entity
acquiring investment property must determine whether:

(@) The property meets the definition of investment
property in terms of HKAS 40; and

(b) The transaction meets the definition of a business
combination under HKFRS 3.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of these amendments will have a significant
impact on the Group’s and the Company’s financial
statements.
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FOREBASE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
FREBIRIZRERA

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014
Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle
include a number of amendments to various HKFRSs,
which are summarised below.

The amendments to HKFRS 5 introduce specific guidance
in HKERS 5 for when an entity reclassifies an asset (or
disposal group) from held for sale to held or distribution
to owners (or vice versa), or when held-for-distribution
accounting is discontinued. The amendments apply
prospectively.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 provide additional guidance
to clarify whether a servicing contract is continuing
involvement in a transferred asset for the purpose of the
disclosures required in relation to transferred assets and
clarify that the offsetting disclosures (introduced in the
amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosure — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities issued in December 2011
and effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January
2013) are not explicitly required for all interim periods.
However, the disclosures may need to be included in
condensed interim financial statements to comply with
HKAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting.

The amendments to HKAS 19 clarify that the high quality
corporate bonds used to estimate the discount rate for
post-employment benefits should be issued in the same
currency as the benefits should be issued in the same
currency as the benefits to be paid. These amendments
would result in the depth of the market for high quality
corporate bonds being assessed at currency level. The
amendments apply from the beginning of the earliest
comparative period presented in the financial statements
in which the amendments are first applied. Any initial
adjustment arising should be recognised in retained
earnings at the beginning of that period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #% ~F— M4+ H =1+—H IL4FE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014
Cycle (Continued)

The amendments to HKAS 34 clarify the requirements
relating to information required by HKAS 34 that is
presented elsewhere within the interim financial report but
outside the interim financial statements. The amendments
require that such information be incorporated by way of a
cross-reference from the interim financial statements to the
other part of the interim financial report that is available
to users on the same terms and at the same time as the
interim financial statements.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of these will have a material effect on the
financial statements.

In addition, the financial statements requirements of Part 9
“Accounts and Audit” of the new Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622) come into operation as from the
Company’s first financial year commencing on or after
3 March 2014 in accordance with section 358 of that
Ordinance. The Group is in the process of making an
assessment of expected impact of the changes in the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance on the financial statements
in the period of initial application of Part 9 of the new
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). So far it has
concluded that the impact is unlikely to be significant and
will primarily only affect the presentation and disclosure of
information in the financial statements.
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FREBIRIZRERA

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
financial statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, which for this financial year and the
comparative period continue to be those of the predecessor
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32), in accordance with
transitional and saving arrangements for Part 9 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), “Accounts and
Audit”, which are set out in sections 76 to 87 of Schedule
11 to that Ordinance.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain properties and
financial instruments that are measured at fair values
at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKERS 2, leasing transactions
that are within the scope of HKAS 17, and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair
value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in
use in HKAS 36.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

e  Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the

asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

e  Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset

4.

FEREFBOR ()

AR (%)

BRAh - A B T S > A S EFHRARE
A AREFREA G BEEERA R
(L 22 i A 0 36 0 1 B M
M — - TE = FEEWE

o ARBI—EAERTEBNEHE A M
DATRUARH 4 1 ] 6 7 B R0 1 B i 355
ZHRME CRECTHE) ;

o HRAI EWAERLTEUE E BA M IR
B[] 1t T B 2 A DR (BR AR
— BT AR AERRSN) 5 K

o ARBI=EA BRI E RS A FEI A

or liability. B A ERY
The principal accounting policies are set out below. ERGFHBORHER 3
Basis of consolidation NS

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
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e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
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listed above.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from
the date the Group gains control until the date when the
Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income
and expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Investments in subsidiaries

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss.

Merger accounting for business combination
involving entities under common control

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements items of the combining entities or
businesses in which the common control combination
occurs as if they had been combined from the date when
the combining entities or businesses first came under the
control of the controlling party.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Merger accounting for business combination
involving entities under common control
(Continued)

The net assets of the combining entities or businesses
are consolidated using the existing book values from the
controlling party’s perspective. No amount is recognised
in respect of goodwill or excess of acquirer’s interest in
the net fair value of acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities over cost at the time of common
control combination, to the extent of the continuation of
the controlling party’s interest.

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income includes the results of each of the
combining entities or businesses from the earliest date
presented or since the date when the combining entities
or businesses first came under the common control,
where this is a shorter period, regardless of the date of the
common control combination.

The comparative amounts in the consolidated financial
statements are presented as if the entities or businesses
had been combined at the end of the previous reporting
period or when they first came under common control,
whichever is shorter.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the
business less any accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s CGU (or groups of CGU)
that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

A CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently whenever there
is indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill
arising on an acquisition in a reporting period, the CGU to
which goodwill had been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable
amount of the CGU is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to
the other assets of the unit on a pro-rata basis based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment
loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant CGU, the attributable amount
of goodwill is included in the determination of the amount
of profit or loss on disposal.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as
held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than
through continuing use. This condition is regarded as
met only when the asset (or disposal group) is available
for immediate sale in its present condition subject only
to terms that are usual and customary for sales of such
asset (or disposal group) and its sale is highly probable.
Management must be committed to the sale, which should
be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale
within one year from the date of classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss
of control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and liabilities
of that subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the
criteria described above are met, regardless of whether the
Group will retain a non-controlling interest in its former
subsidiary after the sale.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held
for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount
and fair value less costs to sell.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #% ~F— M4+ H =1+—H IL4FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings and
leasehold land (classified as finance leases) held for
use in production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes, are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off of assets less
their residual values over their estimated useful lives,
using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over
their expected useful lives on the same basis as owned
assets. However, when there is no reasonable certainty that
ownership will be obtained by the end of the lease term,
assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term
and their useful lives.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
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Investment properties a<g/ES

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are measured
at their fair values. Gains or losses arising from changes
in the fair value of investment properties are included in
profit or loss for the period in which they arise.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investment properties (Continued)

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in the profit or loss in the period in which
the property is derecognised.

Club memberships

Club memberships with indefinite useful lives are stated
in the consolidated and the Company’s statements of
financial position at cost less impairment losses.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost of inventories are determined on a weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated
costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Properties under development

Properties under development are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value.

Cost comprises the costs of land use rights, construction
costs and other direct development expenditure.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs to
completion and applicable selling expenses.

On completion, the properties are transferred to properties
held for sale at their carrying values on the date of transfer.

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances and cash in the consolidated and the
Company’s statements of financial position comprise
cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with
a maturity of three months or less. For the purpose of
the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits as
defined above.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #% ~F— M4+ H =1+—H IL4FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified as loans and receivables.
The classification depends on the nature and purpose of
the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis
for debt instruments.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables (including trade and other receivables,
amounts due from subsidiaries, restricted bank deposits,
short-term bank deposit with original maturity more than
three months, bank balances and cash) are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
any identified impairment loss (see accounting policy on
impairment of financial assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired when there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated
future cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

e  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

*  breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
into bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

e  disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade
and other receivables, assets that are assessed not to
be impaired individually are, in addition, assessed for
impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the
Group’s and the Company’s past experience of collecting
payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments
in the portfolio past the average credit period, observable
changes in national or local economic conditions that
correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss recognised is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade and other receivables and amounts due
from subsidiaries, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. Changes in the
carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised
in profit or loss. When a trade and other receivable or an
amount due from a subsidiary are considered uncollectible,
it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to
profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and other
payables, amounts due to subsidiaries, amounts due to
related companies, obligations under finance lease, amount
due to ultimate holding company, amount due to a director,
secured loan/note and bonds are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition

The Group and the Company derecognise a financial asset
only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset
and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity. If the Group and the
Company neither transfer nor retain substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control
the transferred asset, the Group continues to recognise
the asset to the extent of its continuing involvement and
recognises an associated liability. If the Group and the
Company retain substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group and
the Company continue to recognise the financial asset and
also recognise a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

The Group and the Company derecognise financial
liabilities when, and only when, the Group’s and the
Company’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold and services provided in the normal course
of business. Revenue is reduced for estimated customer
returns, discounts and sales related taxes.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #% ~F— M4+ H =1+—H IL4FfE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

()

(ii)

(iii)

Sales of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when
the goods are delivered and titles have passed, at
which all the following conditions are satisfied:

e the Group has transferred to the buyer the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of
the goods;

e the Group retains neither continuing
managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership nor effective control
over the goods sold;

° the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably;

e it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the transaction will flow to the
Group; and

e the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of
the transaction can be measured reliably.

Sales of properties

In respect of sale of properties in the ordinary course
of business, deposits and instalments received from
purchasers prior to meeting the above criteria for
revenue recognition are included in the consolidated
statement of financial position under current
liabilities.

Service income from hotel operation

Service income from hotel operation is recognised
when services are rendered.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FEGHBUR ()

(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
(iv) Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised
when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the amount of income can be
measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is
the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

The Group’s accounting policy for recognition of revenue
from operating leases is described in the accounting policy
for leasing below.

Share-based payment arrangements
Share-based payment transactions of the Company

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and
others providing similar services are measured at the fair
value of the equity instruments at the grant date. Details
regarding the determination of the fair value of equity-
settled share-based transactions are set out in note 42.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-
settled share-based payments is expensed on a straight-
line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s
estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest,
with a corresponding increase in equity.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its
estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to
vest. The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if
any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative
expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding
adjustment to share options reserve.

For share options that vest immediately at the date
of grant, the fair value of the share options granted is
expensed immediately to profit or loss.
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FOREBASE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
FREBIRIZRERA

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Share-based payment arrangements (Continued)

Share-based payment transactions of the Company
(Continued)

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
share capital. When the share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in share options reserve will
be transferred to retained earnings.

Research and development expenditure

Research and development costs comprise all costs that are
directly attributable to research and development activities
or that can be allocated on a reasonable basis to such
activities. Because of the nature of the Group’s and the
Company’s research and development activities, the criteria
for the recognition of such costs as an asset are generally
not met until late in the development stage of the project
when the remaining development costs are immaterial.
Hence both research costs and development costs are
generally recognised as expenses in the period in which
they are incurred.

Employee benefits
Retirement benefit costs

Payments for defined contribution retirement schemes to
local governments in the PRC, Canada and Korea pursuant
to the relevant labour rules and regulations in the PRC,
Canada and Korea and the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the”MPF Scheme”) in Hong Kong are recognised
as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)
Long service payment obligations

For defined benefit retirement benefit plans, the cost of
providing benefits is determined using the projected unit
credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at
the end of each annual reporting period. Remeasurement,
comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the
changes to the asset ceiling (if applicable) and the return
on plan assets (excluding interest), is reflected immediately
in the statement of financial position with a charge or
credit recognised in other comprehensive income in the
period in which they occur. Remeasurement recognised in
other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in
retained earnings and will not be reclassified to profit or
loss. Past service cost is recognised in profit or loss in the
period of a plan amendment. Net interest is calculated by
applying the discount rate at the beginning of the period
to the net defined benefit liability or asset. Defined benefit
costs are categorised as follows:

. service cost (including current service cost,
past service cost, as well as gains and losses on
curtailments and settlements);

o net interest expense or income; and
O remeasurement.

The Group presents the first two components of defined
benefit costs in profit or loss. Curtailment gains and losses
are accounted for as past service costs.

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position represents
the actual deficit or surplus in the Group’s defined benefit
plans. Any surplus resulting from this calculation is limited
to the present value of any economic benefits available in
the form of refunds from the plans or reductions in future
contributions to the plans.

A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at the
earlier of when the Group entity can no longer withdraw
the offer of the termination benefit and when it recognises
any related restructuring costs.
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FOREBASE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
FREBIRIZRERA

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.

The Group or the Company as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets
of the Group at their fair value at the inception of the
lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum
lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor
is included in the consolidated and the Company’s
statements of financial position as a finance lease
obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses
and reduction of the lease obligations so as to achieve a
constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability. Finance expenses are recognised immediately
in profit or loss, unless they are directly attributable to
qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalised in
accordance with the Group’s and the Company’s general
policy on borrowing costs (see the accounting policy
below). Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses in
the periods in which they are incurred.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease, except where another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic
benefits from the leased asset are consumed.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing (Continued)
Leasehold land and buildings

When a lease includes both land and building elements,
the Group and the Company assess the classification of
each element as a finance or an operating lease separately
based on the assessment as to whether substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each element
have been transferred to the Group and the Company,
unless it is clear that both elements are operating leases
in which case the entire lease is classified as an operating
lease. Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including
any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated between
the land and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the land
element and building element of the lease at the inception
of the lease.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group and the Company
will comply with the conditions attaching to them and that
the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which
the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
non-current assets are recognised as a deduction from the
carrying amount of the relevant asset in the consolidated
statement of financial position and transferred to profit or
loss on a systematic and rational basis over the useful lives
of the related assets.
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FREBIRIZRERA

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Impairment on tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group and the
Company review the carrying amounts of its tangible
assets to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
and the Company estimate the recoverable amount of the
CGU to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate
assets are also allocated to individual CGU, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of CGU for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value-in-use. In assessing value-in-use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or the CGU) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 ¥R 3 MY &

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #% ~F— M4+ H =1+—H IL4FfE

4.

FEREFBOR ()

fid B A

HEREARAT & E M B E R A AE R
ATHBRAGEEELNA  HEARE
FER B AT AR EE A& 2y 1k > A EAR B
E T e W= g ] TR DA A B E iR 2
3

Jv A FG A i RS T E A 0 ] A 48 4 e

T & A WAR

AR AR B AR AR R
FEZRME UEEZFEEARGHE
BIRZAEMTIR R - L BA BRI R - &1k
RS 2 AT i e e LA 28 E (s 1R 2 7R
JEE o G0 SR 3 Al T ) E 2 AT i ]
o ARG LA F AR P B
< AR LA 2 AT ] R o AN S BT —
BBk > A EE G BB ) B
EEERA > SR E BN — 22 /BT
% ELEB R RO 2 R/ AL o

T AL [ 5 R i R 2 OB (R B A
AL (A W & P 2 B o FERT Al
FEERE - FHETRACH & i & 4% i S
"R T T 855 3 o M (L o 7 2
JE B A (R ST el T A A B U
TR TR ) 2 BRBLATRE BRI B -

il vt G (BB A B ) 2wl i ol
SRR R (E - A B B 2 R (E
71898 2 L W i ] B K HE o (B R TR
R iRy AR 2 B S > BRIEA B (BB
R HAL) 2  —EHIEHR 2 A RS
MR RIS DLT - AR & B8 % e Rl IH
T EEBRD



ANNUAL REPORT 2014 1(3
“ER-MEFR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 ¥R 3 MY &

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #% ~F— M4+ H =1+—H IL4FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment on tangible assets (Continued)

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or the CGU) is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or the
CGU) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount under another
standard, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss
is treated as a revaluation increase under that standard.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from“loss before tax”as reported
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s and the
Company’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
generally recognised for all deductible temporary difference
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

4.

FEREFBOR ()

TR B EE AR ()

fied FLAR (] 4888048 - R BB (B 4
PR MR T B 3 A ERT B AT Al
T S SR o P T4 PR T RS AR
R ez B (BBl A B0 ) R AL 4R
Sl 0 i 2k R B R < DR AT (L o 4R 1] 4B
& R BF R R a FERD S LA > BRIEA B E
o —MERIFH R 2 EAESFIMR > R
WR > BB B8 f az R AERTE T 2 E A
B

i H
PSR B S 9 B B A B I AR AEBEIH

B Ry AR 0 T T 4 A 4 JEE B R B U ) R
B o MERRBL It A BELAR & G T K 45 M Ho b 4
AR K P BT [ERBLAT A ] AR >
T A TR I A L4 1 L A 4 5 R R T
FOBLUCA BB 3 - 3l B A G AR R B
AP Z T H o ARG R A BRI
IR 2 il AR A BB AR A 2 B R
AHBIHA L -

R SE B T AR YR 7 T s i o S I L fRUR
TE {0 B FI DA T B R i A A 2 2 B
fhF 22 A RS o DA A FUA W G AT A
B RO 2 B D, o R AE BT — M
Tk B A AT ek i B 2 AR AR AT RE R
T R B ey 2 BRI - B RO v A R o
fisf i —JHZS Gy b o R B B R A 3 R DA
B RLE YR R A A R B T S B
I Ry 22 0 SO A 5 B B i P O A B
w0 % S A A L U 7 I
ff o



SN

104

FOREBASE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
FREBIRIZRERA

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group and the Company are able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group and the Company expect, at
the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities
or deferred tax assets for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts
of such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment property is
depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time,
rather through sale. If the presumption is rebutted, deferred
tax liabilities and deferred tax assets for such investment
properties are measured in accordance with the above
general principles set out in HKAS 12 (i.e. based on the
expected manner as how the properties will be recovered).

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
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FOREBASE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
FREBIRIZRERA

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations
are translated into the presentation currency of the Group
(i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of
each reporting period. Income and expenses items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the period.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity (under
the heading of exchange reserve).

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s and the Company’s
accounting policies, which are described in note 4, the
directors of the Company are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that
are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from
those involving estimations (see below), that the directors
of the Company have made in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

Going concern consideration

Although the Group had incurred loss of approximately
HK$91,806,000, the Group manages its liquidity risk by
monitoring its current and expected liquidity requirements
regularly and ensuring sufficient liquid cash to meet the
Group’s liquidity requirements in the short and long term.
The directors of the Company consider that the Group has
no significant liquidity risk.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax asset arising from investment properties that
are measured using fair value model, the directors of the
Company have reviewed the Group’s investment property
portfolio and concluded that the Group’s investment
properties are not held under a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment properties over time.
Therefore, in measuring the Group’s deferred taxation
on investment properties, the directors of the Company
have determined that the presumption that the carrying
amounts of investment properties measured using the
fair value model are recovered entirely through sale is not
rebutted. As a result, the Group has recognised deferred
taxes on changes in fair value of the investment properties
located in the PRC and Korea. On the other hand, the
Group does not recognise any deferred tax on changes in
fair value of the investment properties located in Hong
Kong as the Group is not subject to any income taxes on
disposal of the investment properties in Hong Kong.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustments to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The Group and the Company review the carrying
amounts of the assets at the end of each reporting period
to determine whether there is objective evidence of
impairment. When indication of impairment is identified,
management prepares discounted future cash flow to
assess the differences between the carrying amount
and value-in-use or fair value less costs of disposal
and provide for impairment loss. Any change in the
assumption adopted in the cash flow forecasts or fair value
assessments would increase or decrease in the provision of
impairment loss and affect the Group’s and the Company’s
net asset value. At 31 December 2014, the carrying value
of property, plant and equipment of the Group was
approximately HK$120,764,000 (2013: HK$136,420,000),
net of accumulated impairment losses of approximately
HK$873,000 (2013: HK$873,000). At 31 December 2014,
the carrying values of property, plant and equipment of the
Company were HK$301,000 (2013: HK$580,000).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Impairment of trade and other receivables

Impairment losses on trade and other receivables are
assessed and provided based on the directors’ regular
review of ageing analysis and evaluation of collectability.
A considerable level of judgement is exercised by the
directors when assessing the credit worthiness and
past collection history of each individual customer. An
increase or decrease in the above impairment loss would
affect the profit in the year and in future years. As at 31
December 2014, the carrying amount of trade receivables
and other receivables of the Group were approximately
HK$74,284,000 and HK$30,017,000 (2013: HK$51,372,000
and HK$27,267,000) respectively, net of allowance for
impairment loss of approximately HK$10,965,000 (2013:
HK$10,960,000). As at 31 December 2014, the carrying
amount of other receivables of the Company were
approximately HK$1,123,000 (2013: HK$10,639,000).

Allowance for inventories

The Group perform regular review of the carrying amounts
of inventories with reference to aged inventories analysis,
expected future consumption and management judgement.
Based on this review, write down of inventories will be
made when the carrying amounts of inventories decline
below their estimated net realisable value. Significant
judgement is required. In making this judgement, the
Company evaluates, amongst other factors, the duration
and extent and the means by which the amount will be
recovered. These estimates are based on the current market
condition and past experience in sales of similar products.
It could change significantly as a result of changes. Due
to changes in technology and market conditions, actual
consumption may be different from estimation and profit or
loss could be affected by differences in this estimation. As
at 31 December 2014, the carrying amount of inventories
of the Group was approximately HK$29,579,000 (2013:
HK$26,385,000), net of allowance for inventories of
approximately HK$21,637,000 (2013: HK$22,550,000).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Income taxes

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement
on the future tax treatment of certain transactions and
interpretation of tax rules. The Group and the Company
carefully evaluate tax implications of transactions and tax
provisions are set up accordingly. The tax treatment of
such transactions is reconsidered periodically to take into
account all changes in tax legislation. Details of taxation
are set out in note 12.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised for unutilised
tax losses and deductible temporary differences. As those
deferred tax assets can only be recognised to the extent
that it is probable that future profit will be available against
which the unused tax credit can be utilised, management’s
judgement is required to assess the probability of future
taxable profits. Management’s assessment is constantly
reviewed and additional deferred tax assets are recognised
if it becomes probable that future taxable profits will allow
the deferred tax asset to be recovered. Details of deferred
tax are set out in note 32.

Estimated net realisable value of properties under
development

In determining whether allowances should be made to
the Group’s properties under development, the directors
of the Company take into consideration the current
market environment and the estimated market value (i.e.
the estimated selling price less estimated costs to sell)
less estimated costs to completion of the properties. An
allowance is made if the estimated market value is less
than the carrying amount. If the actual net realisable value
of properties under development is less than expected as
a result of a change in market condition and/or significant
variation in the budgeted development cost, material
provision for impairment losses may result. As at 31
December 2014, the carrying amount of properties under
development was approximately HK$66,950,000 (2013:
HK$57,441,000). No impairment was provided for both
years.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Estimate of fair value of investment properties

As described in note 19, the Group’s investment properties
were revalued at the end of the reporting period on an
open market value basis by an independent professional
valuer using property valuation techniques. Such
valuations were based on certain assumptions, which are
subject to uncertainty and might materially differ from
the actual results. In making the judgement, the Group
considers information from current prices in an active
market for similar properties and uses assumptions that
are mainly based on market conditions existing at the end
of each reporting period. As at 31 December 2013, the
carrying value of investment properties of the Group was
approximately HK$29,823,000 (2014: nil).

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries and
amounts due from subsidiaries

Determining whether the investments in subsidiaries
and amounts due from subsidiaries are impaired requires
an estimation of the future cash flows expected to arise
from the subsidiaries in order to calculate the present
value. Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, a material impairment loss may arise. No
impairment loss was recognised during the year ended
31 December 2014 and 2013. As at 31 December 2014,
the carrying amount of investments in subsidiaries of
the Company was approximately HK$105,368,000 (2013:
HK$186,949,000), net of provision for impairment loss of
approximately HK$148,487,000 (2013: HK$66,906,000).
As at 31 December 2014, the carrying amount of amounts
due from subsidiaries of the Company was approximately
HK$134,486,000 (2013: HK$118,243,000).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Long service payment obligations

Certain of the Group’s employees have completed the
required number of years of service to the Group in
order to be eligible for long service payments under the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance in the event of the
termination of their employment. The Group is liable to
make such payments in the event that such a termination
of employment meets the circumstances specified in the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. An obligation is
recognised in respect of the probable future long service
payments expected to be made. The Group’s long service
payment obligations are determined with reference to
statutory requirements, the employees’ remuneration,
their years of service and age profile, and demographic
assumptions. The basis of estimation is reviewed on an on-
going basis and revised where appropriate. Any changes
to these assumptions will impact the carrying amount
of long service payment obligations and the results and
financial position of the Group. As at 31 December 2014,
the carrying amount of long service payment obligations of
the Group was nil (2013: nil).

Amortised cost of amount due to ultimate holding
company and amount due to a director

The directors of the Company use their best estimation
to determine the effective interest rate in calculating the
amortised cost of amount due to ultimate holding company
and amount due to a director, with reference to the market
rates. Should the estimates applied are different, the
carrying value of these amounts will be changed. As at 31
December 2014, the carrying amounts of amount due to
ultimate holding company and amount due to a director
were approximately HK$41,998,000 and HK$15,397,000
(2013: HK$16,565,000 and HK$16,478,000) respectively.
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. HEAMbEE A
The Group and the Company manage its capital to ensure ALEH e A w LB A » DIHER A £
that entities in the Group and the Company will be able to B R AR w2 B RN RE A SR A - R IR
continue as a going concern while maximising the return Z R A A5 B PR A 4 8 T B R 7 i
to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and SRR ] # o A SR [ Je AN R 2 RE R R M
equity balance. The Group’s and the Company’s overall H RAEDIARHER A8 -
strategy remains unchanged from prior year.
The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, AEEE Y EARPE O EFRE > BIEHR
which includes bank borrowing, obligations under finance TeE - MEHEERTE - BAREERA
lease, amount due to ultimate holding company, amount FlGRIE ~ A — 4% SR - R R
due to a director, secured note/loan and bonds, net of cash BN AER  Be KBS S EYFE LA
and cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of AT NG S (6 C AT IRA K
the Company, comprising issued share capital and reserves. Tt ) ©
The directors of the Company review the capital structure A F) R AR AR ZE R o VR b
on a regular basis. As a part of this review, the directors Wy AR EERS > RA A KA
of the Company consider the cost of capital and the P Bl AR AS A B o IRIEH S 2 M
risks associated with each class of capital. Based on i o AN F R R AR SR AT A
recommendations of the directors of the Company, the [B] LA e B AT 155 B o) B A 5 Oy 2
Group will balance its overall capital structure through new HrRe i AN -
share issues and share buy-backs as well as issue of new
debt or the redemption of existing debt.
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 7. &MTH
(a) Categories of financial instruments (@) st THpH
The Group The Company
AGH /|
2014 2013 2014 2013
“EF-NE —F = “FNE CF=F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T
(Restated)
(REHEZ1)
Financial assets Lk
Loans and receivables B MR 3K
(including cash and (BB
cash equivalents) HEZEY)) 139,023 144 854 139,311 126,609
Financial liabilities EmaE
Amortised cost L 8 A 332,521 261,725 195,762 162,127




SN

114

FOREBASE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
FREBIRIZRERA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B %5 3R AR Y &

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #% ~F— M4+ H =1+—H IL4FfE

7.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
trade and other receivables, restricted bank deposits,
short-term bank deposit with original maturity
more than three months, bank balances and cash,
trade and other payables, amounts due to related
companies, obligations under finance lease, amount
due to ultimate holding company, amount due to a
director, secured note/loan and bonds.

The Company’s major financial instruments include
other receivables, amounts due from subsidiaries,
bank balances and cash, other payables, amounts
due to subsidiaries, amount due to ultimate holding
company, amount due to a director, secured note/
loan and bonds.

Details of these financial instruments of the Group
and the Company are disclosed in respective notes.
The risks associated with these financial instruments
include market risk (currency risk and interest rate
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on
how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on
a timely and effective manner.

Market risk
Currency risk

The Group are exposed to currency risk primarily
through sales and purchases which give rise to
receivables, payables and bank balances and
borrowing that are denominated in a foreign currency
i.e. a currency other than the functional currency
of the operations to which the transactions relate.
The currencies giving rise to the risk are primarily
United States dollars (“US$”), RMB, CAD and KRW.
The Group ensure that the net exposure is kept to
an acceptable level, by buying or selling foreign
currencies at spot rates where necessary to address
short-term imbalances.
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 7. BT H (4)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) BAW RS BE H AR R BUR (4H)
policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued) B mEE ()
Currency risk (Continued) S SR B (48)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s monetary assets N RFEIIALE B R s R DL RE R
and liabilities denominated in currencies other than Wbz Bt B EE A
the respective functional currencies of the relevant IR -
group entities at the end of the reporting period are
as follows:
The Group ASEH
2014 2013
e Sl 1'E: 3 ZER-ZAF
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
B ffK B Al
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T Tt T T
Us$ B 94,239 116,199 66,360 120,579
RMB AR 90 653 1,330 645
CAD e 6 101 2,961 -
94,335 116,953 70,651 121,224
The Company Ao
2014 2013
— s —z—=
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
3 ff B AfH
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000
Tt Ti#x T T
US$ Em 4 101,101 927 116,316
RMB ARH 7 - - _
CAD e 6 101 2,961 -

17 101,202 3,888 116,316




SN

116

FOREBASE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
FREBIRIZRERA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 ¥R 3 MY &

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #% ~F— M4+ H =1+—H IL4FfE

7.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicated the instantaneous
change in the Group’s loss after tax (and accumulated
losses/retained profits) and the Company’s loss
after tax (and retained profits) that would arise if
the foreign exchange rates to which the Group has
significant exposure at the end of the reporting
period had changed at that date, assuming all other
risk variables remained constant. In this respect, it
is assumed that the pegged rate between the HK$
and the US$ would not be materially affected by any
changes in movement in value of the US$ against
other currencies.

7. &MITH (%)
(b) S5 B 48 PR H A2 S BOR (48)

5 g (4)
S B ()
TR 7

N RBURA G B B A m] A R
M L B R JL gt - A1 EE 4 77 H 2
BALEBRBEER (XR5HEER/
PREUEA]) AN mBRBUAR A (K&
RE ) 2 BIRpE2 RS A
JEU B S BANSE o BT R - TR E
a0 2 P T LT RE RN & R R IT
JH A B e MEAR A 2 2 AR AT B T 2 3
EDN-Z

The Group AL
2014 2013
“ -
Increase Increase

(decrease) (Increase) (decrease) (Increase)
in foreign decrease in foreign decrease
exchange in loss exchange in loss
rates after tax rates after tax
FAERER  BRBIRIEE SMEERERE  BRBIRER
EFICFRE) (i) 7d BJ (R G /Bid
HK$’000 HK$000
Ti#x T
US$ *ET 0.5% (92) 1.0% (453)
(0.5%) 92 (1.0)% 453
RMB NG 3.0% (14) 2.0% 11
(3.0%) 14 (2.00% (11)
CAD s 10.0% ®) 6.0% 148
(10.0%) 8 (6.0)% (148)
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il TH (45)
(b) S5 B 48 PR H A2 S BOR (48)

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 7.

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued) B mEE ()

Currency risk (Continued) S SR B (48)

The Company Ao
2014 2013
e S ko3 e Saead
Increase Increase

(decrease) (Increase) (decrease) (Increase)
in foreign decrease in foreign decrease
exchange in loss exchange in loss
rates after tax rates after tax
APRERER  BRBLR IR SMERER  BRBIEEE
B CFRE) () WA EFF (PR () 8
HK$’000 HK$'000
Tt T
US$ F0 0.5% (422) 1.0% (963)
(0.5%) 422 (1.0)% 963
CAD s 10.0% ®) 6.0% 148
(10.0%) 8 (6.0)% (148)

Results of the analysis as presented in the above table
represent an aggregation of the instantaneous effects
on each of the group entities’ profit or loss for the
year and equity measured in the respective functional
currencies, translated into HK$ at the exchange
rate ruling at the end of the reporting period for
presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change
in foreign exchange rates had been applied to
remeasure those financial assets and liabilities held
by the Group which expose the Group to foreign
currency risk at the end of the reporting period. The
analysis excludes differences that would result from
the translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations into the Group’s presentation currency.
The management adjusted the sensitivity rate for
assessing currency risk after considering the impact
of the volatile financial market conditions during the
year ended 31 December 2014.

LR R I Z AR R BUR A S &
VB HE LA 31 2 RE 68 W R Rl 4
SR 2 BB 5 8 5y i U Ry 2 A 4 P ik
) sl 4 B £ 2 RV &5 D 52 288 o

BURE T C RSN MR 2 B
JR T B AR S T BT 4 A Sl T R
SO AR A 2 TR B 7 R B: - <l
EREME o BT A ELIE A S SE RS
Z BRI A AL 2 B R
FREAZ %R - EHBEEEHE
FZ—WEF A=+ —HIEFERE
AT BRI B R BE - R
RESD IR
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 7. BT H (4)
(b) S5 BG4S 2 H A R BOSR (%)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Interest rate risk

The Group and the Company are exposed to
fair value interest rate risk in relation to fixed-
rate obligations under finance lease (see note 29),
secured note/loan (see note 34) and bonds (see
note 35). The Group and the Company currently do
not have an interest rate hedging policy. However,
the management of the Group and the Company
monitor interest rate exposure and will consider
other necessary action when significant interest rate
exposure is anticipated.

The Group and the Company are also exposed to
cash flow interest rate risk in relation to variable-rate
bank deposits.

The Group’s and the Company’s exposures to
interest rates on financial liabilities are detailed in
the liquidity risk management section of this note.
The Group’s and the Company’s cash flow interest
rate are mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of
(i) prevailing market rates arising from the Group’s
and the Company’s bank balances denominated in
HKS$ and (ii) RMB base deposit rate stipulated by the
People’s Bank of China arising from the Group’s and
the Company’s bank balances denominated in RMB.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for non-
derivative instruments at the end of the reporting
period. The analysis is prepared assuming the
financial instruments outstanding at the end of the
reporting period were outstanding for the whole
year. A 10 basis points (2013: 10 basis points)
increase or decrease is used when reporting interest
rate risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates.

5 g (4)
VUESN

AEERANFREE BRMERE
AT 1 3 oA A =R A B (R R
29) ~ AR/ B (R EE34) K&
&% (M EE35) o A4 E H wij i 4
FI BB o SR B FE G
IR RS > S A TR B R R %
JEBGE B 5 i B M BT R AT

AR B T AN W) T B B S SR A T A
A B 2 B e A AR o

AR AN ) 2 4 R R R L B
oI SR WAL B < L e B o R —
B o AGE B B AR ) 2 B g UM
By AR R () A A AT L
HITRHEZ SRATA BRI AR B BT T
SR eE) > K (i) AR AL
A% R SIE R SRAT S5 8R b P A
FRERAT R I FE A A 3 B -

5

TR 7

DATR i SRR Al T B A AR T
LA s A AR U T B 2 ) L T e
FE o A BB THBEOR e AR 2 ok
I 25 4 T T L AR ) A B 8 SR AE R T
Bl o 101MFEEy (—F—=4F 1 101H
FE) B EFECRSTm EEE A
B R HR 2 A = m b R A > aAR
PR R R ] RE s E) 2 A B EEAY o
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 7. BT H (4)
(b) S5 BG4S 2 H A R BOSR (%)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)
Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

If interest rates had been 10 basis points (2013: 10
basis points) higher/lower and all other variables
were held constant, the Group’s loss for the
year ended 31 December 2014 would decrease/
increase (2013: decrease/increase) by approximately
HK$14,000 (2013: HK$58,000) and the Company’s
loss for the year ended 31 December 2013 would
decrease/increase by approximately HK$1,000 (2014:
nil).

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s and the
Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk which
will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure
to discharge an obligation by the counterparties
provided by the Group and the Company is arising
from the carrying amount of respective recognised
financing assets as stated in the consolidated and the
Company’s statements of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group and the Company have delegated a
team responsible for determination of credit limits,
credit approvals and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the Group and the
Company review the recoverable amount of each
individual trade debt at the end of the reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
directors of the Company consider that the Group’s
and the Company’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

5 g (4)
R JmbE (4)
TR ()

MR BT R0 (=%
— =AF 10 fRIEEE) H O HA T A S
MR AEEEE T —UF
+A=+—HILEENEER (—F
— AR W RN M, s
#)14,000 % 7 ( & — = 4F : 58,000
BIL) RARNFAHE_F— =41+
A=+—HIEF R R, 1
fn&) 1,000 0T (ZF—PU4E « fiE) o

fri BB

RoFE—PEFH=+—H > K&
] Je A\ R F O R R JE AT B AT T
] e T B A S e 18 2 B e 1R BB,
TR A WS R L 26 Hp T 4 45 TEL L e
FRANE B 2 MR M A A

Tyl R AR SR - AR LA
FAEBECZIR— AN B B EHER
BERRAE - 5 EA RO R
FE DATHE (R PR BRI 2 1 Bl ol 1] s 00 £
H o BEAb > AGE B AR A G AR AR
AR B A TE AR A 52 5 (I 2 ATk
] > e ORAE SR i []  BHRTHR 7E
R BAERHR B - AERL > AL
R R S AR B B AR R 2 A5 R
B CL B PRI -

MEE &2 EEEBAR > B AR
G35 3 J B MR B AR M A %
A5 BRI R Z AT -
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 7. BT H (4)
(b) S5 BG4S 2 H A R BOSR (%)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by
geographical locations is mainly in the PRC (2013:
PRC), which accounted for 35% (2013: 43%) of the
total trade receivables as at 31 December 2014.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 13%
(2013: 33%) and 63% (2013: 70%) of the total
trade receivables was due from the Group’s largest
customer and the five largest customers respectively.

The credit quality of the counterparties in respect of
amounts due from subsidiaries are assessed by taking
into account their financial position, credit history
and other factors. The directors of the Company
are of the opinion that the risk of default by these
counterparties is low as these counterparties have net
assets values at the end of the reporting period.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
and the Company monitor and maintain a level of
cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group’s operations and
mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.
The management monitors the utilisation of bank
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan
covenants.

The following tables detailed the Group’s and the
Company’s remaining contractual maturity for its
non-derivative financial liabilities based on the
agreed repayment dates. The tables have been drawn
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the
Group and the Company can be required to pay.

The tables include both interest and principal cash
flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating
rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from
interest rate curve at the end of the reporting period.

fr B Ja bR (4)

HEFE—NEFZH=F—H > A%
I i b Sl il 2 B P A R B A
AHE (=4 P E) B S
FEW R K MR 2 35% ( —F— = 4F -
43%) °

745 1 T A5 B R B A P RS O
JRE s R R AR R A Al A 13% (=%
— =4 1 33%) M63% (F—ZAE
70%) JHREWRAS SE [ B — e R E P
AR EF WEIE o

BT 05 W 2 R ORI ER
JI2H WA 2 BARUL ~ {5 R sk &
HoAth R ZAEAT WAl o ALY Al SRR
o WSROI RO R B
TRAE - DRI 72 46 JL A

i B) B < B

TE LB E & By o AR A
2N E) B R B A e B S (B R A
R PR 58 /0 R 2 K > DLEAT
AR 2 KRB S R B
R o i PILRE BT ACARAT 1 B o 1
U AR ST B A o

N RARGE b E 2B RSB
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ZERIFIHIIRR o 2R HE AR L&
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 7. SBTH (4)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) BAW RS BE H AR R BUR (4H)
policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) B & B (4E)
Liquidity tables MEB)EEIIR
The Group ARSI
2014
e
More than More than
On demand one year two years Total
or within butless than butlessthan ~ More than undiscounted Carrying
one year two years five years fiveyears  cash flows amount
HER K —HRM R4 REBBE
B4R [IEE2] LR hADE i B4 T £
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
Ti#t T# T# T# T# Ti#
Non-derivative financial Fetrt: e £ 15
liabilities
Trade and other payables JERTE 5 B ARk 92,242 - - - 92,242 92,242
Amounts due to related B B i A ] O
companies 61,593 - - - 61,593 61,593
Obligations under finance MEHERE
lease 160 160 159 - 479 444
Amount due to ultimate A eS8 P
holding company VA - 45,262 - - 45,262 41,998
Amount due to a director JE A — S B - 16,594 - - 16,594 15,397
Secured loan AR 14,119 114,694 - - 128,813 100,847
Bonds % 1,200 1,200 3,600 23,600 29,600 20,000
169,314 177,910 3,759 23,600 374,583 332,521
2013
Y S
(Restated)
(EH3)
More than More than
On demand one year two years Total
orwithin  but less than  but less than More than  undiscounted Carrying
one year two years five years five years cash flows amount
HREK —HERMA TR ARBBLE
4R F IR TR DR A i i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tt Tt Tt Tt Tt Tt
Non-derivative financial Fefiik Am A R
liabilities
Trade and other payables JERHE 5 B H AR 2 66,134 - - - 66,134 66,134
Amounts due to related JHE A B 8 ] O
companies 45,655 - - - 45,655 45,655
Obligations under finance BEHERT
lease 160 160 319 - 639 577
Amount due to ultimate T B 48 P
holding company ALk - 17,852 - - 17,852 16,565
Amount due to a director A — 4 5 30R = 17,759 - - 17,759 16,478
Secured note R 8,821 132,074 - - 140,895 116,316
120,770 167,845 319 - 288,934 261,725
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7.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 7.

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Liquidity tables (Continued)

il TH (45)
(b) S5 B 48 PR H A2 S BOR (48)

B2 bR (A)
B EEIIR (4)

The Company Ao
2014
-
More than More than
On demand one year two years Total
or within butless than butlessthan  More than undiscounted Carrying
one year two years five years fiveyears  cash flows amount
HER K —HRM R4 R RGBS
4R [IEEA] LR BN L i B4 e £
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
T# T#t T# T#t Ti# T#
Non-derivative financial Fetit: S 15
liabilities
Other payables HAWREA R 3,641 - - - 3,641 3,641
Amounts due to subsidiaries  HEFBHE /A 7 0E 14,136 - - - 14,136 14,136
Amount due to ultimate JE A AR P
holding company YNGIE O - 45,262 - - 45,262 41,998
Amount due to a director MR — % B H R - 16,316 - - 16,316 15,140
Secured loan AR 14,119 114,694 - - 128,813 100,847
Bonds &% 1,200 1,200 3,600 23,600 29,600 20,000
33,096 177,472 3,600 23,600 237,768 195,762
2013
“F-=k
More than More than
On demand one year two years Total
orwithin  butlessthan  but less than More than  undiscounted Carrying
one year two years five years five years cash flows amount
HHERE —HEH&H & H RAGBIBLE:
4R [EEN AR TN E i B At I (B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tt Tt Tt Tt Tt Tt
Non-derivative financial Fefit: & A 1%
liabilities
Other payables HAWREAS R 1,805 = = = 1,805 1,805
Amounts due to subsidiaries  FEfF Bt &2 7 30H 11,053 - - - 11,053 11,053
Amount due to ultimate FEAT AR
holding company Ak - 17,852 - - 17,852 16,565
Amount due to a director HER— 2 E B H0R - 17,662 - - 17,662 16,388
Secured note B R 8,821 132,074 - - 140,89 116,316
21,679 167,588 = = 189,267 162,127
Fair value () AREMA

The directors of the Company consider that the
carrying amounts of financial liabilities recognised in
the consolidated and the Company’s statements of
financial position approximate their fair values.

RAFIEHERRS > RERE BRI
A Rl &R A TA B AR DLAR T Bk 2 4 il
B B R AR T (AT Y o
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REVENUE

Revenue represents the sales of goods to customers less
goods returned and trade discounts, rental income under
operating leases and service income from hotel operation.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and
sales of electronic components, properties investment
and hotel operation. During the year ended 31 December
2014, the Group has a new reportable segment, properties
development upon the completion of acquisition of Best
Dollar Group. The Group’s reportable and operating
segments, based on information reported to the chief
executive officer, being the chief operating decision maker,
for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment
of segment performance focuses on goods or services
provided are as follows:

(1) Composite components segment

Sales and manufacture of composite components for
electronic appliances and communication equipment.

(2) Unit electronic components segment

Sales and manufacture of unit electronic components
for electronic appliances and communication
equipment.

(3) Properties investment segment

Leasing office premises to generate rental income.

(4) Hotel operation segment

Operation of a resort in Canada.

(5) Properties development segment

Properties development in the PRC.

No operating segments identified by the chief operating
decision maker have been aggregated in arriving at the
reportable segments of the Group.

W sk

Weid I HEIE T F 2 E b 2 SHEHEE > 40
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i BRIy 2EEE R 8B o AR 2 v Bl X
BHEATRBBEERITEN R E
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. AHFEHR (7H)
Segment revenue and results 41 AR W g S S A
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and VAR B4R B 2 Wt S SE AR P] 2 8
results by reportable and operating segments: o ER TR Z S0 AT
Year ended 31 December 2014 BREZE-WE+ A=+ —HILEE
Unit
Composite electronic ~ Properties Hotel ~ Properties
components components  investment operation development Total
wWadl gt LB/ g B0 At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T#% T#% T#% T#% T# T#x
Revenue Wiad 140,916 160,616 900 46,098 - 348,530
Segment (loss) profit S0 (BH) A (29,983) (18,019) (5,938) 5,442 (5,651) (54,149)
Unallocated operating income RENTABRA 7117
Unallocated operating expenses RN E Y (29,745)
Finance costs RhE A (17,276)
Loss before tax Bt 1 (94,03)
Year ended 31 December 2013 BE-F =t H=t—HILFE
Unit
Composite electronic Properties Hotel Properties
components  components  investment operation  development Total
Hadlt BAETC ESId<t G eSS Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T T T
(Restated) (Restated)
(#EHE5) (KEHE5)
Revenue g 145,750 146,934 1,662 4,376 - 298,722
Segment loss iR (11,864) (17,985) (6,656) ®75) (1,230) (38,610)
Unallocated operating income REAEAERA 4,646
Unallocated operating expenses RO BAUE I (20,575)
Finance costs AE A (2447)
Loss before tax BBl (56,980)
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9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. AHFEHR (7H)
Segment revenue and results (Continued) vig: L&Y ES WE )
The accounting policies of the reportable segments are A 2o AR g BUR B AR ] gt B
the same as the Group’s accounting policies described in (AN EE4 B adt) AR o 4280 (5 1R) i
note 4. Segment (loss) profit represents the (loss from) FIHE &S (B8 P F) - & il
profit earned by each segment without allocation of other I3 BB 43 2 HAMO ~ Ho A 268 78 BH S
income, certain other operating expenses and finance RV BLA o 1T ) 3 v R R DA
costs. This is the measure reported to the chief operating PUE BURRLE R RBUS G 2 5t & o
decision maker for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment.
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and VAR AR B 2 B J A % m] 2 4R
liabilities by reportable segments: FfEZ 3t
Year ended 31 December 2014 BREZZ-NE+T A=+ —HILEE
Unit
Composite electronic Properties Hotel Properties
components  components  investment operation development Consolidated
wadl gt LB/ T B2 At

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$/000 HK$/000
Tl Tl Tl Tl Tl Tl

Segment assets NG E 80,380 58,579 - 104,589 74,569 318,117
Unallocated assets KABEE
— Restricted bank deposits - IR 12,940
— Short-term bank deposit with - B H R =00 2

original maturity more than JEHISRATIE R

three months 1,000
-~ Bank balances and cash - RITEER A 31,921
~ A disposal group classified - ARHEREZ

as held for sale HEHR 86
- Others - At 4,424
Consolidated assets HAGE 368,488
Segment liabilities A 35,291 40,226 - 5,528 66,585 147,630
Unallocated liabilities REDEA K
- Others - Hih 199,770

Consolidated liabilities A aE 347,400
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9.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9

Segment revenue and results (Continued)

Year ended 31 December 2013

srabE R (%65)

Vi L& ES W)
BEZ—=4F+_HA=1+—HI4EE

than restricted bank deposits, short-term bank
deposit with original maturity more than three
months, bank balances and cash, a disposal group
classified as held for sale and part of other receivables.
Assets used jointly by reportable segments are
allocated on the basis of the production capacity; and

all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments
other than part of other payables, amounts due to
related companies, obligations under finance lease,
deferred tax liabilities, amount due to ultimate
holding company, amount due to a director, secured
note/loan and bonds.

Unit
Composite electronic Properties Hotel Properties
components  components  investment operation  development  Consolidated
wall BAET T ESid< TEEE LB M5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tt Tt Tt Tt Tt Tt
(Restated) (Restated)
(#E5) (#E51)
Segment assets O ETE 57,785 52,696 29,843 115975 58,804 315,103
Unallocated assets R B ERE
~ Restricted bank deposits - ZIRHISRATA K 10,007
—Bank balances and cash - SITERRE S 68,370
- Others - s 14,205
Consolidated assets AR 407,685
Segment liabilities =L 27,064 27,284 74 7,832 47,789 110,043
Unallocated liabilities KENRRRE
~ Others - 166,049
Consolidated liabilities Regsli 276,092
Segment assets and liabilities Sr R A e AL
For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and RERBE_F-NE+A=1t—HRK
allocating resources between segments for the years ended “ER - =FE T A= HIEmREER
31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013: YRR B R £ JE ] 23 il R
e all assets are allocated to reportable segments other o BRZMRMISATAE - JREIH H k=

8 A B REIISRATAT K~ SRATAA B S B
& SRR R I BB AL DA R
R HA REWSGRIE ST > BT A 7 20 T
F AR IR o AT SHILE
ZEERERREESAL s K

o BRERINHABMERT IR - BEAT B A
FOH - AEMERIE - BEBIHA
i~ BB BB A R ARIE - A —
HEHFIE ~ RITEIR R
> BT A B AT HCGE O o



ANNUAL REPORT 2014 127

“E-MFFR
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 ¥ 3R Y 5E
For the year ended 31 December 2014 8% — & — U4+ = H =+—H [LFHE
9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. AHFEHR (7H)
Other segment information FoAts 73 8 R
Amount included in the measure of segment profit or loss PATN oyt o2 20 v M) s 48 0 3 L T
or segment assets: FEAZ R
Year ended 31 December 2014 BREZE-WE+ A=+ —HILEE
Unit
Composite electronic Properties Hotel Properties
components ~ components  investment operation  development  Unallocated Total
weAt  BEEr LIES 134 R LB A a5t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T#7 T#7 T#7 T#7 T#7% TH#T T#T

Additions to non-current R E FREEE

assets 769 1,648 - 1,014 547 - 3,978
Depreciation e 4,838 2,167 - 2,943 109 461 10,518
(Gain) loss on disposal of ~ H/EHHE « B &

property, plant and B raticl &

equipment (1,155) - - - 6 - (1,149)
Loss on disposal of HEREYEER

investment properties - - 6,716 - - - 6,716
Impairment loss recognised  MERRHEIE 53R 2

on trade receivables Wl 57 66 - - - - 123
Allowance for inventories {7 & ffi - 1,644 - - - - 1,644

Reversal of allowance for 77 & [ 5
inventories (1,642) - - - - - (1,642)
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 # % ~F— M4+ H=1+—H IL4FE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. JrEbER (%0
Other segment information (Continued) vig: L&Y ES WE )
Year ended 31 December 2013 BE-_F =+ -HA=+—HILEE
Unit
Composite electronic Properties Hotel Properties
components  components investment operation  development  Unallocated Total
wallt BB e ESI4 T EE B 1 Ei At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tt Tt Tt Tt Tt Tkt Tk
(Restated) (Restated)
(K EF) (& EF)
Additions to non-current ¥ B FERE &
assets 3212 3,234 - 114,420 167 1,741 122,774
Depreciation e 4241 4275 - 346 6 459 9,327
Gain on disposal of HEWE - BER
property, plant and B2 s
equipment - - - - - (50) (50)
Change in fair value of fEmEL
investment properties AREHEEE - - 5,157 - - - 5,157
Loss on disposal of HEREMEL EH
investment properties - - 2,956 - - - 2,956
Impairment loss recognised  AEHIE + #6285 Mk fis
on property, plant and TR 2 Wi B
equipment = = = 873 = = 873
Impairment loss recognised ~ MERRIEIE 53R 2
on trade receivables WEER 35 36 - - - - yl
Reversal of impairment  HERBMENE 51 iR 2
loss recognised on BUEEE R
trade receivables (158) (159) - - - - (317)
Reversal of allowance for &l
inventories (1,063) (1,071) - - - - (2,134)

Note: Non-current assets excluded deposits for purchase of property,

plant and equipment.

BFRE - IR U N ELAE I R - R Rl
o
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9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. AHFEHR (7H)
Geographical information il I8 2 ¥
The Group’s operations are principally located in Hong ARG B AR E - wE - s
Kong, Korea, Canada and other parts of the PRC (excluding R B B Ho A . (F HEBRAR) o
Hong Kong).
The Group’s revenue from external customers and AL B AN %P 2 Wit B A B HL R Ui
information about its non-current assets by geographical B & 2 RN EE IR BRI -
location of the assets are detailed below:
Revenue Non-current assets
W i B & e
2014 2013 2014 2013
“ERNE —F= R4 —F=&
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
Tt THTT T T
(Restated)
(REE5)
The PRC iR
(excluding Hong Kong) (A EEREE) 120,718 109,820 15,248 41,231
Hong Kong i 82,431 79,636 4,133 12,366
Korea i 84,338 88,312 17 =
Canada JIEPN 46,097 4,375 102,313 113,246
Others HoAthy 14,946 16,579 - -
348,530 298,722 121,711 166,843
Information about major customers ARTEEERZER
Revenue from customers of the corresponding years AR A B8 P R AL i A48 A A R0 i
contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the Group 10% K% F #IaT
are as follows:
2014 2013
—ZF N4 —F—-=
HK$’000 HK$'000
T#x TH#TT
Customer A’ EEH! 72,465 64,373
Customer B xEZ! 44,374 N/A A3 F 2
Customer C' EFER! N/A A i 32,333
! Revenue from composite components segment and unit ! 2 B 18 S AL S B T IE R R MR ©
electronic components segment.
2 The corresponding revenue did not contribute 10% of the total 2 A BRI A M7 A 722 38 A 4 B A 25 1 10 % ©

revenue of the Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #% ~F— M4+ H =1+—H IL4FfE

10. OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 10. FAbA KWisi
2014 2013
—F 4 —F—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
T THETT
(Restated)
(e H#%1)
Interest income from bank deposits SATA R Z AR IA 576 639
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEYE - B
equipment BEipAlE 1,149 50
Scrap sales REFI S & 246 389
Gain arising from initial recognition of Fe N FABER) S TR AT
amount due to ultimate holding company 58 S LI NI e
at fair value JT A 2 Wit i 3,264 1,287
Gain arising from initial recognition of Fe s RAEAER A WERR EAT— 2
amount due to a director at fair value FEHRIEE A 2 ks 1,197 1,281
Reversal of impairment loss recognised B 5 IR KRR 2
on trade receivables AR e 4 (] 43 - 317
Others HAth 685 683
7,117 4,646
11. FINANCE COSTS 11. BB A
2014 2013
—F —F =
HK$'000 HK$000
Tt THETT
Interest on: T EHEAZAE
— Finance lease - AEHE 27 35
— Bank loans wholly repayable within — N AR R R BUER 2
five years BATEFK - 727
— Secured loan/note — MR R 15,182 1,679
—Bonds it 376 -
Imputed interest on amount due to ultimate  FEfT A FERL/A Rl IHZ
holding company fhEEFE 848 =
Imputed interest on amount due to a director A} — 44 2 F 3 H 2 Al B AE 843 =
17,276 2,441
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 % & — U4+ = H =+—H LA
12. INCOME TAX CREDIT 12. PifdBidika
2014 2013
N
HK$’000 HK$'000
T#t TH#IT

Hong Kong Profits Tax HHENEB

Over-provision in prior years AT AF B R A - (5,879)

PRC Enterprise Income Tax e I i 3 P 74

Provision for the year AAE FEAR 3,115 2,107

Deferred tax (Note 32) MEAEBIE (FfhiE32)

Credited for the year AAEFEFA (5,362) (325)

(2,247) (4,097)

Notes: BfFGE -

(@)  For the years ended 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, (a) HRAEEEE —F—NFEF+ A =+—H
no Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided in the financial e ek S s ey s BN R p
statements as the Group has no assessable profits for both JERRBL i A1) > WOl M B R TR I
years. Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the WERIIGBL o U FIAGRE 2440 47 BE Al B R
estimated assessable profits for both years. i 2 16.5% wHE o
Provision for the PRC Enterprise Income Tax for FEHIFEAE FIDEREBTHRAR (TEIDEE]) &t
BT AT, Shenzhen Kwang Sung Electronics Co., Ltd. BETES (FI) ARAR ((CEETHE
(“Shenzhen Kwang Sung”) and St & & T E 2 (I A RAF, Sy (YN 1) 2 w4 25 BT A5 B 48 e 5 LA T
Kwang Sung Electronics Trading (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (“Kwang AR 4E L 2 Al R B R4 25% (— % —=
Sung Electronics Trading (SZ)”) are calculated at 25% (2013: A1 25%) FHE -

25%) of the estimated assessable profits for both years.

The Korea Branch operated in Korea are subject to Korean A W R 22 W R 0 ) L AR A i R 2 B
Corporate Income Tax. The basic Korean Corporate Tax rates for BB BME_F-NUEF_A=Z+—HR
the year ended 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013 are SR -EFTAET—HIREE S A
11% on the first KRW200,000,000 of the tax base and 22% for kR A 2E B R B B 200,000,000 %
the excess. In addition to the basic tax rate, there is a resident F511% > BB 2 H ORI E 22% o BRIEABI R
surcharge of 10% on the income tax liability. No provision for S TRREATIRBLE AR 10% i BB -

taxation has been made as there is no assessable profit for the MEEZF-WEF A=+ —HE =%
years ended 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013. — AR A = IR AR N I R

Bl A o S BEAE B A -

Canadian Corporation Tax is calculated at Federal tax rate of WE_F—WEF " H=+—HIHFEZIA
15% and British Columbia provincial tax rate of 11% on the BH G AE P 5 K8 FE I — R — =4+
estimated assessable profits for the year ended 31 December H=A4—H IR > mER AR ELI L
2014 and for the period since commencement of hotel Akt TR RS Vi M e R % 15.% S o = A
operation to 31 December 2013. No provision for taxation has PR B BEAR 11% 7HEF o FH BIIR TSR 5 482
been made as there is no assessable profit for the period since EVRE T4+ = — H IR R
commencement of hotel operation to 31 December 2013 and FWE_FE—NFEFH=+—HILFE -

for the year ended 31 December 2014. A ST S0 B GRUBE 36 R o I AT B 43

i o
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12. INCOME TAX CREDIT (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)  The Group carries out manufacturing activities in the PRC
through its subsidiary, Shenzhen Kwang Sung and under the
terms of a processing agreement with a third party factory, and
has substantial involvement in these manufacturing activities
undertaken in the PRC. The profits earned are thus considered
to be partly arising and derived from the manufacturing
activities carried out in the PRC and partly from other activities
performed in Hong Kong. Accordingly, the Group claimed
a 50:50 offshore concession in respect of Hong Kong Profits
Tax which had been agreed with the Hong Kong Inland
Revenue Department (the “HKIRD”) in the year of assessment

1999/2000.

In 2008, the HKIRD enquired the Group the basis of its 50:50
offshore claims for the years of assessment 2001/02 to 2006/07
in relation to the Group’s manufacturing activities carried out in
the PRC, and issued an additional assessment of approximately
HK$3,318,000 for the year of assessment 2001/02 on the basis
that the Group was not eligible to the 50:50 offshore claims
for profits derived from manufacturing activities carried out
by Shenzhen Kwang Sung. The Company lodged an objection
against the additional assessment and purchased a tax reserve
certificate of approximately HK$3,318,000 as demanded by the

HKIRD in 2008.

In March 2009, the HKIRD issued another demand note for
additional tax payable for the year of assessment 2002/03
amounted to approximately HK$6,423,000 in relation to the
above 50:50 offshore claims. The Company lodged an objection
against the additional assessment and purchased a tax reserve
certificate of approximately HK$6,423,000 as demanded by the

HKIRD in the year ended 31 December 2009.

In March 2010, the HKIRD issued another demand note for
additional tax payable for the year of assessment 2003/04
amounted to approximately HK$9,334,000 in relation to the
above 50:50 offshore claims. The Company lodged an objection
against the additional assessment and purchased a tax reserve
certificate of approximately HK$9,334,000 as demanded by the

HKIRD in the year ended 31 December 2010.

In March 2011, the HKIRD issued another demand note for
additional tax payable for the year of assessment 2004/05
amounted to approximately HK$4,305,000 in relation to the
above 50:50 offshore claims. The Company lodged an objection
against the additional assessment and purchased a tax reserve
certificate of approximately HK$4,305,000 as demanded by the

HKIRD in the year ended 31 December 2011.

12. Frfa ik (%)

BERE - (D)

(b)

A FIE I FL I 2 Rl R YIDE 2 L R AR YR B
55 =07 TIRT 3Lz — B Tt sk Z Ak AE
BEAT RO I ) o AR 2 BLAE R EEST 2
WA PSR W) o R LRI A o Al
AL P BREAT 2 B ) o A RIUAS
TR A8 o T W M AT 2 LA T8 88 o E 7
L WAG o diu > A B2 [l 7 i MU AR B R oy
50:50 2 B S H1 R K > 1A vE B S 1 it
%hﬂﬂ/iiiiﬁﬁiﬁﬁ%@%%ﬁ

BT AR F B ) A8 M A A
B A S B A P B T3 A 7 SR 0 B T R
— BB BTN FELFBAE RN
50:50 B FH AR Bk 2 AR o 3 A A A (A
AE GG FL YNGR HEAT 2 R 15 B BT AL
it = A 50:50 2 B R > ik 2 —
R AR I B RE AN S B 40 3,318,000
WL o AN AR TR ) AEE RSN LR
R IR R R SR B E B R A
3,318,000 #5 T ©

RFEFIUE=H > FBBUE RS — 0
BONPRUE AT » B BB R = ERLAR
JE8% A B Ll 50:50 Bl R 2 BEHANERL
#16,423,000 70 c AAFREE _EFEI
T H = H IR RSN SRR
B> N 4 7 v BB R R R BSR4
6,423,000 %5 C °

AT —RAEZH o FWBE R S — 0
FANGEBOE A g BT = TR
AE BEBE AT B E 2 50:50 Bt B R 2 BHAMET
479,334,000 70 © RA R R E —F—
TAE+ A =+ — B4R B AN TR R
RS SRR USRS R BRI B B 54
9,334,000 #5 7T ©

RET——F=H o FWBERES S —0
E PN R | = e 2 L e~ - 7 e
JE 38 A B Ll 50:50 B H R 2 BEAN SRR
#14,305,000% 70 c AAFEE —F——
T H = B IRAFE AN R BR
S N4 WS BRS JR B R B B B K
4,305,000 # T °
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #% ~F— M4+ H =1+—H IL4FE

12. INCOME TAX CREDIT (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

The Group’s operation has remained unchanged since
1999/2000, in view of the stringent approach adopted by the
HKIRD in treating 50:50 manufacturing offshore profits claim,
the Group had made provision for the previously 50:50 offshore
claims of approximately HK$35,996,000 during the year
ended 31 December 2009. In February 2012, HKIRD and the
Company have reached a compromise settlement in relation
to the Company’s taxation affairs for the years of assessment
2001/02 to 2007/08 (the “Period”). Based on revised notices
of assessment and letters received from HKIRD, net profits
tax payable for the Period has been revised to approximately
HK$24,239,000. As the Company had made provision for Hong
Kong Profits Tax of approximately HK$33,891,000 for the Period,
the excessive tax provision of approximately HK$9,652,000
made in prior years had been reversed in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for
the year ended 31 December 2011.

On 30 December 2011, the tax representative of the Group sent
a compromising letter to the HKIRD for the settlement of the
above tax demand notes. The HKIRD agreed to the compromise
and issued tax returns to the Group in February 2012. In 2012,
the tax reserve certificates of approximately HK$23,380,000
included in other receivables had been fully utilised to settle the
above mentioned tax payables.

Pursuant to a Deed of Indemnity dated 23 June 2003, two
former shareholders, Mr. Yang and Kwang Sung Korea,
Ltd. would indemnify the Group for any tax liabilities for
period prior to 30 June 2003. Out of the above tax liabilities
of approximately HK$24,239,000, a sum of tax expenses of
approximately HK$8,478,000 should be therefore borne by the
two former shareholders. The amount was recognised in prior
years.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company
has received revised notices of assessment from HKIRD, for
the three years of assessment 2008/09 to 2010/11. Based on
revised notices of assessment, net profits tax payable has been
revised to approximately HK$3,084,000. As the Company had
made provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax of approximately
HK$8,930,000 for the Period, the excessive tax provision of
approximately HK$5,879,000 made in prior years had been
reversed in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December
2013. The net profits tax payable of HK$3,084,000 was fully
settled during the year ended 31 December 2014.

ANNUAL REPORT 2014
“E-NFEFR

12. Frfa ik (%)

BERE - (D)

(b)

(#0)

AREEEH— UL, BB TAEDR Z EHE
HERRASEE > (R R W BUES R 76 1 B 50:50
Rk L5 i R R R B BUR AR T
o AREFEE R A 2 50:50 B R
B oEENET A=+ — B IEEERS
35,996,000 5 JTHE M - A —F— 4 " H >
FWBL R AARAF S TR G
BUEERE T L T\ GEBAEE (3%
M) Z AN A Bl 5 25 2 B — TR AT R A i
T o MIEFH W B 58 2 BB RT 5B
AN K R > TR R A 2 R A5 B TR A
ELERT £ 47 24,239,000 3 7T o H AR A E
TR % 1A ARt s R A5 B 4 0 40 33,891,000
W0 > WO 4F B T A 2 R AR T B 4
9,652,000 ¥ TG E [l it B E —F——4F
g;g—ﬁt@ﬁZ%ﬁ@ﬁ&ﬁ@éﬁ&

NoFE -+ H =1 H > AEEBIBAC
1) Hb B0 SRl A A e o (e A0 B 2 oy
D AT | = N2 [ R e
— AR H AR E B AL o R E
4> B BI#) 23,380,000 # T 2 B (FEA
%WE@%%)E%%%%%ﬁutﬁﬁﬁ
I\o

WIEB WA —FE=4FA _+=H2Z®
AR IRA > T4 AR AR S A i B
Bt D EE=ZEANH =AM AT
AR B M 1) A 52 AR SRR 0 - Rk > HE
424,239,000 ¥ o 2 BLIE B & > JAFHAY
8,478,000 ¥ 7T 2 Bt TEL B <2 M 1 5% T 44 i 3R
HRYE o BITE D S B AR T o

BEF—NEFH=+—HILEE > &
AN EL RN | FW B Rt E R
PR R E—F R =
FEBLAE B 2 SAERTRERUE AN o ARIBRETT
FEBLE A EAT Z RSB EE BT EL
3,084,000 % 7T © H1 A A2 | E Bk aZ% ) 1
HH A s R A5 18 445 40 8,930,000 7 T - iU
PR AF J3 i A 2 8 %8 B JE 48 4 40 5,879,000 5
JSCERBEEHE -F =4+ _H=+—H
IR 2 AR AR E R R b -
A5} ) #5815 48 3,084,000 s T B A AR 2 %
— P4+ H =4 B IR R -

133



SN

134

FOREBASE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
FREBIRIZRERA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B %5 3R AR Y &
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12. INCOME TAX CREDIT (Continued)

The tax credit for the year can be reconciled to the loss
before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income as follows:

12.

FrfeBiik e (78)

TS 18 i B At 2 T Wi i 2 P AR 4R BE L
TEHK S SRR A 18 < IR

2014 2013
e S UG —F-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
Tt THTT
(Restated)
(#EH71)
Loss before tax 4 i s 12 (94,053) (56,980)
Notional tax on loss before tax, calculated Tz BRAE AR BB HS 7] v b
at the rates applicable to profit in 1 48 75 A1) <2 78 T B
the tax jurisdictions concerned Rt ERBLAE R
# FEPLIE (14,951) (8,763)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for HUBLIE A& = A AT
tax purpose FIER BH S 2 BB 3 2 12,783 11,910
Tax effect of income not taxable for BT AR 5 R
tax purpose B 2 i 5 5 288 (6,180) (5,754)
Tax effect of tax losses and other temporary [ A fE 8B JE s 15 S
differences not recognised HAt g etE 2R 2
BLBRY 6,101 4,389
Over-provision in respect of prior years AT AF B R AR - (5,879)
Income tax credit for the year A S B (2,247) (4,097)

Details of the deferred taxation are set out in note 32.

ST B 2 R A B L 32
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13. LOSS FOR THE YEAR 13. A4FE g R
2014 2013
e S K4S —F =
HK$'000 HK$000
Tt THTT
(Restated)
(REE5)
Loss for the year has been arrived AR Z BRI (GEA) -
at after charging (crediting):
Auditor’s remuneration 1 BRI 4 800 515
Minimum lease payments for rented KOBTHE T 2 SR 3K
premises under operating leases 8,963 7,266
Gross rental income less outgoings of FHA WA SBEE (F1BR 8
HK$84,000 (2013: HK$130,000) 84,000 70 (=& — =4F ¢
130,000 #7T) ) (816) (1,532)
Staff costs (including directors’ remuneration 8 THA (G35 Kl 5E 14 35 5%
disclosed in note 14) 2 EH B4
— salaries, wages, allowances, long service ¥4 TE - BL - B
payment and other benefits in kind 5 <6 B FLAt B A ) 103,394 74,033
— retirement schemes contributions — BREHE 2 Atk 4,776 2,536
— Equity-settled share-based payment — DUBCHESE S 2 ety B 52
expenses (included in administrative (FHAAT BB 32)
expenses) 829 -
108,999 76,569
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense  Tlsa 44 B 32 2 17 & BLA 198,582 174,697
Loss on disposal of investment properties HEREYE EiE 6,716 2,956
Impairment loss recognised on trade BRI 5 IR AR 2
receivables (included in other operating HEEER (FEA
expenses) HAh A& B ) 123 71
Impairment loss recognised on property, WY - B
plant and equipment A e R 2 B e 1 - 873
Net foreign exchange losses BEE 50 5 18 13 A 524 2,086
Allowance for inventories I (GEASE A)
(included in cost of sales) 1,644 -
Reversal of allowance for inventories T B3 A 1] 438
(included in cost of sales) (FEASHE BLA) (1,642) (2134)
Depreciation e 10,518 9,327

AR EEHRE | T &2 &8A
1,790,000 # 70 (=% — =4F : 1,459,000 #
J0) o IR ERTE B TIRAN

Minimum lease payments include an amount of
approximately HK$1,790,000 (2013: HK$1,459,000) for staff
quarters which is also included and disclosed in staff costs.
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14. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 14. #EHH RITBHARZ 4

EMOLUMENTS
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 12 (2013: CAYERREAT T 12 8 RATEARR (—F
17) directors and the chief executive were as follows: —=AE L 17) ZBEITR
For the year ended 31 December 2014 BEZZ-NET A=+ HILEE
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefits Share-based
and benefits schemes payment
inkind contributions expenses
Fees #i4 ~ MK BIREH DB XA Total
e B it 3t % Zh% At
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
Tk T T Tk Tl
Executive directors WiTES
Mr. Hong Sang Joon Bt - 1,135 17 - 1,152
Mr. Leung Kin Pang (Note 4) RIEWIEE (HE4) - 375 4 - 379
Mr. Li Zhi (Note 7) RS (HET) - 1,200 - - 1,200
Mr. Ronald Lew Podlas (Note 7) BEEEE (K57 - - - - -
Mr. Shen Ke H A - 600 - - 600
Mr. Shen Yong W - 1,200 - - 1,200
Mr. Xu Li Jian (Note 4) TR B (HfE4) - - - - -
Mr. Kwan Man Kit Edmond (Note 6) B SCEEEAE (FitaE6) - 2,037 13 829 2,879
Independent Bor kTS
non-executive directors
Mr.Yu Lei REFRE 120 - - - 120
Dr. Jiang Ying (Note 5) L (FfsEs) 41 - - - 41
Ms. Zhang Cui Lan RAML L 120 - - - 120
Mr. Ernst Rudolf Zimmermann AR 180 - - - 180

461 6,547 34 829 7,871
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #% ~F— M4+ H =1+—H IL4FE

14. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 14. ERPITBARZME ()

EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2013 BE-F-=F+"HA=1+—HILEE

Salaries,  Retirement

allowances benefits ~ Share-based

and benefits schemes payment

inkind contributions expenses
Fees ¥r WAGK  BIRRA  DURHSIA Total
e EWEM s ZBX At

HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO0  HK$000
T Tt Tt T Tt

Executive directors Hir#EF
Mr.Yang (Note 1) P (D = 91 92
Mr. Lee KyuYoung (Note 1) ZEISE (B - - =
Mr. Hong Sang Joon BRI S = 1,124 1,139
Mr. Leung Kin Pang R{Em e - 1,625 1,640
Mr. Li Zhi BRI - 1,060 1,060
Mr. Ronald Lew Podlas (G S = = =
Mr. Shen Ke il Pt - 600 600
Mr. Shen Yong (Note 3) WEEA (FEE3) = 1,142 1,142
Mr. Xu Li Jian A=y - 2,400 2,400
Non-executive director FanES
Mr.Yang Ho Sung (Note 1) iR RAE (M 4 - 4
Independent Bk ES

non-executive directors
Dr. Kim Chung Kweon (Note 1) SIFHER L (FaE1) 2 - 2
Dr. Han Byung Joon (Note 1) BREEL (M5 2 = 2
Mr. Kim Chan Su (Note 1) SEREE (HEE1) 3 = 3
M. Yu Lei (Note 2) RERE (WE2) 118 - 118
Dr. JiangYing (Note 2) L (fsE2) 118 - 118
Ms. Zhang Cui Lan (Note 2) RERM L (MHE2) 118 = 118
Mr. Ernst Rudolf Zimmermann ARG SCEA (FEE3)

(Note 3) 171 - 171

536 8,042 31 - 8,609
Note 1:  The directors resigned on 7 January 2013. MEE1 - EEFEFN-F—=F—H L HEHE -
Note 2:  The directors were appointed on 7 January 2013. Mak2 © RZEESEN F = L HERT -
Note 3:  The directors were appointed on 18 January 2013. BEGE3 ?%§$ﬁ§:§—zﬁz—ﬂ TN HEZ
%o
Note 4: The directors resigned on 1 April 2014. Biftd © RESFEFHR F—DUFEN A —HFHT -
Note 5:  The director resigned on 5 May 2014. BEEES5 @ AT AT A TH BHE o
Note 6: The director was appointed on 10 June 2014 and resigned Bizte © TSR _FHENA T HERE
on 13 March 2015. R E—HAEZA T ZHEUT -

Note 7:  The directors resigned on 16 February 2015. ffaE7 « SZEESR F—HEZH TS HEHUE -
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B %5 3R AR Y &

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #% ~F— M4+ H =1+—H IL4FfE

14.

15.

DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Mr. Yang Jai Sung was the chief executive of the Company
during the period from 1 January 2013 to 7 January 2013.
Following his resignation, Mr. Ronald Lew Podlas was
the chief executive of the Company and ceased to be the
chief executive of the Company upon the appointment
of Mr. Kwan Man Kit, Edmond on 10 June 2014. Their
emoluments disclosed above included those for services
rendered by him as the chief executive.

Neither the chief executive nor any of the directors waived
any emoluments during the years ended 31 December
2014 and 31 December 2013. No emoluments were paid or
payable by the Group to the chief executive nor any of the
directors as inducement to join or upon joining the Group,
or as compensation for loss of office during the years
ended 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013.

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in
the Group, four (2013: five) were directors and the chief
executive of the Company whose emoluments are included
in note 14 above. The emoluments of the remaining one
individual, who is a member of senior management, for the
year ended 31 December 2014 (2013: nil) was as follows:

14.

15.

R RATHAEZ S ()

RERSAR F—=F—-HA-HE_F
— = AL M AAL AATERRR -
BRHER - BB R AR RAT
BE > BRERESHEAER ZF—EANH
T HERE/AR N FATEHBERE S - &
S R A% S 2 P 4 4 1S I AR AT AR
B AR P

BE_F-NEER_F—-=4+_H
=+ —HILFE > BT BUR R BT E
HRFAL TS - BE—F—UFER-F
—ZAET A= HIRERE > AREEY
I A BURE A T 47 B AR B o] oA Ao
P > DU BESE I A AR 42 B 0 i A AR
A T Ry 22 800 5 1 2 A e 2 A 1

T L7 T

hAgmmH ALE > Hhus (ZF—=
i RA) BANEESE RATERE . K
P <t 7% b ST R 14 A e R o HL A
—Z AL (RRERERE) REE—F
—MEFZA=Zt—HIEFEEZHME (
T—=4 &) @I

2014 2013

S-S 111 3 —E =4

HK$'000 HK$000

Tt T

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind Fra o~ AL S EYAE 1,456 -
Retirement benefits schemes contributions B4R A5 E14E 3K 17 -

1,473 =
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #% ~F— M4+ H =1+—H IL4FE
15. EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) 15. BB HM (78)
Their emoluments were within the following bands: 8 46 2 T < SR [ B A
Number of employees
B A%
2014 2013
—EomE F=E
HK$1,000,000 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,000 % 7T % 1,500,000 #5706 1 -

No emoluments were paid or payable by the Group to the
five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group, or as compensation for loss of
office during the years ended 31 December 2014 and 31
December 2013.

16. DIVIDEND

No dividend was paid or proposed during the year ended
31 December 2014 (2013: nil), nor has any dividend been
proposed since the end of the reporting period.

16.

BE_F-NEER-_F—-=%1+2A
=t HIRAFRE - WA ) 045 B A
SR > DA AVR A A i A A S I
A7 S [ IR 22 0D BAE 7 WG IR 2 4

i -

Jik &

BE-Z-NE+_H=1+—HILFEEF
S YR B ER R IR B S (S — AR
I0E) > R AR SIf 4 78 e IR 2 AT ] it
El o

S

139



SN

140
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #% ~F— M4+ H =1+—H IL4FfE

17.

LOSS PER SHARE 17. WREH
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share AN A N A 5 JIR B A o e v s 12
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the ELEIIE ¢ T
following data:
2014 2013
—F M —F=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
Tt T T
(Restated)
(RE&ET)
Loss JEs 18
Loss for the purpose of basic and diluted loss  F AR A A 34 2
per share H 1R 2 1R
Loss for the year attributable to owners of A E A N EAL A AR B 22
the Company 515 (91,806) (52,883)
Number of shares Jietn B H
Weighted average number of ordinary shares il DAGTHE 5 B LA
for the purpose of basic and diluted loss T e 1R Y 2
per share JINHEST- 2 4 325,036,659 323,896,933
Notes: BFGE -
The computation of diluted loss per share does not assume the HAEE T —UET A=+ —HIFFEEAR
exercise of the Company’s share options as the exercise price of those ) i JBOE 2 A7 008 3% 8 TR AR O R By 2 P 2
options was higher than the average market price of the Company’s f > PR A 4 s £ I S e R AT e %
shares for the year ended 31 December 2014. S5 IR -
The diluted loss per share is the same as basic loss per share as the MREE —F =+ " A=+ —HILFERR
Company has no dilutive potential shares outstanding for the year 3 VAR B 2 Iy > WO SR T i 4R B

ended 31 December 2013. BRI B AR
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=
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 8% — & — U4+ = H =+—H [LFHE
18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. W12k ~ s Kkt
The Group A4
Land and
buildings Other
held for property,
own use at plant and
cost model equipment
TRAKR Plant and Leasehold Motor Hib
it EA machinery  improvements vehicles  #1% > 3% Total
ZHUREE  BEREE  HEREEE HH Rt it
HKS/000 HKS/000 HKS/000 HKS/000 HKS/000 HKS/000
T T T T T T
COST Bk
At 1 January 2013 (restated) jigme S i
(&E7) - 90,208 3709 1262 40490 135,709
Fxchange adjustments i 4 2703 8l 7 428 343
Additions HE 109,710 4773 850 1,947 5,49 122,774
Disposels & - = = (202) = 200)
At 31 December 2013 (restated) REF-=E+ZH=1-H
(&EF) 109,714 97,704 4,660 3,054 46412 261,524
Bxchange adjustments it (8811) ) (71) ) (475) (9,639
Additions E - 1245 567 360 1,806 3,978
Disposals e - (5,150) = = (37 (5,187)
At31 December 2014 REFEFZA=4—H 100,903 93,525 5,15 3,391 47706 250,681
DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT % R
At 1 January 2013 (restated) REE-=F-A—0 (EF) - 7730 3561 949 30,745 112597
Bxchange adjustments Esia (37 1,968 78 16 484 2509
Provided for the year KRR 3 5,380 433 G 2971 9327
Impairment loss recognised S 2 873 = = = = 873
Eliminated on disposals iR = - - (202) - (202)
At 31 December 2013 (restated) R-Z-=F+-H=1—H
(&E7) 1,059 84,690 407 1,083 34200 125,104
Bxchange adjustments e (179) (230) ®) i) (149) (564)
Provided for the year AR 1806 148 387 569 37 10518
Fliminated on disposals R - (5,129) = = 1) (5,141)
At31 December 2014 REF—WEFZA=F—H 2,686 83,816 4453 1,651 37311 129917
CARRYING VALUES Wi
At31 December 2014 RZF-WEFZA=F—H 98,217 9,709 703 1,740 10,3% 120,764
At 31 December 2013 (restated) REZ—-=F+-A=+—H
(&E7) 108,655 13,04 588 191 12012 136,420
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #% ~F— M4+ H =1+—H IL4FfE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

18. Y3 - BEES Bkt (78)

(Continued)
The Company A2
Other property,
plant and
Leasehold equipment
improvements Hf¥3¥ - B Total
ViiN=C/E 3 30 Rk thi MGt
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tl Tl T
COST BA
At 1 January 2013, W_F—=4F—H—H-
31 December 2013 and —E-=4F+_H
31 December 2014 =+—H Kk =F—4E
+=H=+—H 850 63 913
DEPRECIATION g
At 1 January 2013 R_F—=%—H—H - - -
Provided for the year ARG B A 307 26 333
At 31 December 2013 W_F—-=412H
== 307 26 333
Provided for the year ARG BE AR 260 19 279
At 31 December 2014 W FE—HE+T A
=1—=F 567 45 612
CARRYING VAULES W T
At 31 December 2014 W —4E+—H
=+—H 283 18 301
At 31 December 2013 W_FE—=4F1+2H
=1—=F 543 37 580

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on straight-line basis over the following useful

lives:

Leasehold land and buildings held for own use
situated thereon are depreciated over the shorter
of the unexpired term of lease and their estimated
useful lives, being no more than 50 years after the
date of purchase

Plant and machinery 4 —10 years
Leasehold improvements Over the term of the leases
Motor vehicles 5 years

Other property, plant and equipment 3 -5 years

EAySE ~ AR Bl Y T B AR
% AR RIS

FE B 2 FH 8 o B M K i T
LA AF ) B HL A w0 4R ) 2 B
(HEHE 2 HEF ARG S504F) E1T
e

s Mot 4-104F
LN/ E S PR AR
TRH 54
HAb 3 - #ed St 3-54F
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #% ~F— M4+ H =1+—H IL4FE

18. Y3 - BEES Bkt (78)

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

Notes: i

(@  During the year ended 31 December 2013, an impairment @ BEE_F-=Ft+"A=+—HIFE
loss on land and buildings held for own use at cost model of Bt A L AR A R ERE 2 £
the Group of approximately HK$873,000 (2014: nil) had been b B A5 2 i B M 45 40 873,000 ¥ 7 (%
recognised in profit or loss. An asset is impaired when its — VU4 ) BRI TR o B WEAE
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The estimates T 22 SR T (B (DR A0 JEL T i 0 < 8 o mT o [ <
of recoverable amount were based on its fair values less costs of TR Al O Hhy 28BS o PP A AR L e MR
disposal, which was assessed by Roma Appraisals using market (B B A T 4 T 55 LU IR TR 2 A R A 7
comparison approach by reference to recent sales price of SERUUEE 2 WIS AR (W J o) B e
similar assets within the same industry, adjusted for differences MR ER) MEEE -
such as remaining useful lives.
The impairment losses have been included in profit or loss in FZBE NG E FE A £ ZATELB SCAIHE -
the administrative expense line item.

(b)  As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s land and buildings by MREEWEFZA=Z1—H > REHEDES

©

held for own use of approximately HK$98,217,000 (2013:
HK$108,655,000) were pledged to secure secured loan/note
issued by the Group. Details are set out in note 34.

The land and buildings held for own use are situated in Canada
under medium-term leases.

©

FIEA M2 T RS E{E%798,217,000
HEIT (- F—=4E 1 108,655,000 T) £ F
A E 2 B8 A7 AR 48 [ 2 SIS0 B 30/ S 2 4
P GEIG RO M aE34) o

W AHE EUT 2 R T R Sk DA v 4
HAFA -
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #% ~F— M4+ H =1+—H IL4FfE

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 19. HEWZE
The Group
AL
2014 2013
—ZF—N4 —F =
HK$’000 HK$000
Tt TH#TT
Fair value VADINIEi:

At 1 January w—H—H 29,823 56,292
Exchange adjustments e 51, ] 4 (151) 395
Disposals s (29,672) (21,707)

Change in fair value recognised in B PR
profit or loss A RfEEES) - (5,157)
At 31 December w+—H=+—H - 29,823

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating
lease to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purpose are
measured using the fair value model and are classified and
accounted for as investment property.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s investment properties
of approximately HK$20,223,000 (2014: nil) were pledged
to secure banking facilities granted to the Group.

The investment properties are situated in Hong Kong and
the PRC under medium-term leases.

A E RA RN R Z A R A R A I
PR & BB A THE 2 Y36 LE - T)
o REEEXGE . B8R RURE
LUE VN "X

MoFE—=4FE+A=+—H > AEEL
20,223,000 70 (—F—P4E : &) 2 H/HE
YEE TIRIE R A SE H 2 ST RV
B AR -

AR a-cVE JRIAIN R T SR
WA -

Breakdown by location: Hb L 734
The PRC H
Hong Kong ik

The Group

A SR

2014 2013
e K2 —F—=

HK$’000 HK$'000
Tt T T
- 20,223
- 9,600

- 29,823
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #% ~F— M4+ H =1+—H IL4FE

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 19. #EWE (78)

Fair value measurement of investment BREWEZ A AREMEGE
properties
The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s R A A R A e
properties measured at the end of the reporting period on RGN RIEE -
a recurring basis.
The Group AL

Fair value Fair value

asat measurements
AREME  AREEEE
2013 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#E T T T
Level 2
(55 —#0)
Recurring fair value measurement: KA B AR R
The PRC i 20,223 20,223
Hong Kong ik 9,600 9,600

There were no transfers between levels in fair value BEF—=Ft+"A=+—HIL¥ERN
hierarchy during the year ended 31 December 2013. 7 482 FoARAE 55 A i BE 2 T ) S AR I A
The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at AEMZBEYER —F-=F+"A
31 December 2013 had been arrived at on the basis of a = B2 Fo B (R B AR [ S A R
valuation carried out on that date by Roma Appraisals, an P S B A (R P G IR R R AT o AR
independent qualified professional valuer not connected R 0 BT A 7 3 BT % 7 A o B
with the Group. Roma Appraisals is a member of the B> HLIgH R L 3 3 A I B R 8T
Institute of Valuers, and have appropriate qualifications and A KEB o N AREE T % T35
recent experiences in the valuation of similar properties LS5 ] E Y S N BT S B 2
in the relevant locations. The fair values were determined TP 75 REEVESH & AR 1T 8 E -
using market comparison approach by reference to recent
sales price of comparable properties on a price per square
foot basis using market data which is publicly available.
In estimating the fair value of the investment proprieties, MBI YI 2 N RAEERY > 25
the highest and best use of the properties is their current Z H i B B PR RE A BRI 2 0 R

ol
use. He °
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #% ~F— M4+ H =1+—H IL4FfE

20. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 20. A& R Z R4
The Company
A W]

2014 2013

R —Y4E R

HK$’000 HK$'000

T# T T

Unlisted equities, at cost JE ETREAS > ANE
At 1 January w—H—H 253,855 260,250
Less: disposal W - (6,395)
253,855 253,855
Less: provision for impairment loss (Note i) ¥ : Jsi (BB 1R (st (148,487) (66,906)
At 31 December Wt —HA=+—H 105,368 186,949
Amounts due from subsidiaries (Note ii) JRE VAT R I8 s Rk TE. (B 3T i) 134,486 118,243
Amounts due to subsidiaries (Note ii) AT R 2 Tk TE. (Bt aE i) (14,136) (11,053)
225,718 294,139
Analysed for reporting purposes as: OYFTAE 3R %

Non-current assets JE B E E 105,368 186,949
Current assets & E 134,486 118,243
Current liabilities BB & (14,136) (11,053)
225,718 294,139

Notei: The directors of the Company had reviewed the carrying
values of the investments in subsidiaries and considered
that in light of the operating losses of the subsidiaries and
the market conditions, impairment loss of HK$81,581,000
had been recognised during the year ended 31 December
2014 (2013: nil). The directors of the Company were in the
opinion that the impairment was made based on the share
of net assets of the subsidiaries as at the end of reporting
period.

Noteii: The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and
repayable on demand.

BfF5Ed

BtE i :

AN F RO A E A A2 B &
Z WR T (E > IR 4 R B A R 2 A
ERERU LTI R E S F I
+ZH =+ — HAEE R AR RS
81,581,000 7T ( & — —4F : fE) - K
NEIEBER S WA TR B R 4
T B 2 ) 2 VB T R A o

A BRI S ~ S0 B BT R A -
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #% ~F— M4+ H =1+—H IL4FE

20. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 December

2014 and 2013 are as follows:

ANNUAL REPORT 2014

R -MEFR

20. KB A ZRELR (78)

BE_FE-NER—F-=FF A=+

H > RAFME LA ZFHENT

Place and

date of Issued and

incorporation/  Classof  fully paid

establishment/  shares share capital/

operations held registered capital Proportion ownership interest
Name of subsidiaries AR/ R B CERREERA/ held by the Company Principal activities
B HEWHRAE  EH gt g A AL T A7 2 i e b FERH

Directly Indirectly
HH#%
2014 2013 2014 2013
“FNE ZFcF ZR-NE ZFCF

Kwang Sung Electronics Hong Kong Ordinary ~ HK$253,855,129 100% 100% - = Investment holding
Holdings Company Limited ~ Lak 253851987 PR

ERETERARAA

Kwang Sung Technology Hong Kong Ordinary ~ 2014: HK$194,198,829 - - 100% 100%  Sales of electronic
Holdings Company Limited ~ % Tk 2013 HKS10,000 components
(“Kwang Sung Technology”) i Sy HEE T

HERERARA 194,198 829 ¢
(DEERHL) i St

10,000i#7

Shenzhen Kwang Sung PRC Ordinary ~ US$10,561,780 - = 100% 100% Manufacture and sales
(Note al Hi TR 10561780F T of electronic

FYDEE (Bika) components

RERAEET il

SRR (B AR PRC Ordinary ~ RMB500,000 - - 100% 100%  Provision of sales
(Formerly known as Kwang ! Tk ARMS5000007 agency services
Sung Electronics Trading to the Company
(Shenzhen) Company A AR
Limited) (Note a) HERTRE
(FLEETE S (F)

HRAT) (Bita)

AEREET () PRC Ordinary 2014 US$2,100,000 - - 100% 100%  Manufacture and sales
HIAH (Notea) i TR 2013:US$824,370 of electronic
(Wfika) i g components

2,100,000 %7 Bt R R Tk
“E-EA

824 370E 7t

147
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #% ~F— M4+ H =1+—H IL4FfE

20. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 December

2014 and 2013 are as follows: (Continued)

20. KB A ZRELR (78)

BE_FE-NER—F-=FF A=+

Ho ARFMBEAFZEET - ()

Place and
date of Issued and
incorporation/  Classof  fully paid
establishment/  shares share capital/
operations held registered capital Proportion ownership interest
Name of subsidiaries AR/ BBy CEARERREK/ held by the Company Principal activities
kA BEWHERN  EM St g A AR 2 i HERERE H i FECEH
Directly Indirectly
% i3
2014 2013 2014 2013
ZEME CT-cF ZF3NE CF-cF
Forebase Canada Limited Hong Kong Ordinary ~ HK$1 - - 100% 100% Investment holding
(Note b) Eib a1k aeadle
HAEMEAARAR (Hikb)
Forebase Group Limited Hong Kong Ordinary ~ HK$1 100% 100% - Investment holding
(Note ¢) i LEy  lEx Eazeade
FEREARAT (Wit
Forebase Victoria Holdings Canada Ordinary ~ CAD1 - - 100% 100%  Hotel operation
Limited (Note ) (Hfikd) &K HEk I
Forebase Enterprise Hong Kong Ordinary ~ HK$1 100% 100% - Investment holding
Limited (Note e) His Lk 1 Rt
HAREARAT (fte)
Forebase China Limited Hong Kong Ordinary ~ HK$1 - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
(Note ) &b Tk 1k BUEH
AR EARAR (L)

Forebase Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary ~ HK$1 - - 100% 100%  Provision of
Limited (Note g) Fil TEk Lk administrative
HEFEARAR (g support to group

companies
HERARRH
LSt
Best Dollar International BVI Ordinary ~ USD1,000 - = 100% Investment holding
Limited (Note h) (Hfzkh)  HEELHE  LEK  100%% et
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 8% — & — U4+ = H =+—H [LFHE
20. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 20. PR R 2 T 2 HEdR (%)
(Continued)
Details of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 December RoFE-NER-F-ZFF A=+
2014 and 2013 are as follows: (Continued) H > AAFIMBARZ#EW T - (58)
Place and
date of Issued and
incorporation/  Classof  fully paid
establishment/  shares share capital/
operations held registered capital Proportion ownership interest
Name of subsidiaries AR/ BBy CEARERREK/ held by the Company Principal activities
kA BEWHERN  EM St g A B 2 A R e FIH
Directly Indirectly
i i3
2014 2013 2014 2013
ZEME CT-cF ZF3NE CF-cF
Excellent Top Corporation Hong Kong Ordinary ~ HK$1,000 - - 100% - Investment holding
Limited (Note 1) (FffiEi) Eib TEE 100087 TR
ERMECRERARAT  PRC Ordinary ~ USD500,000 - - 100% - Investment holding
(Notesaandj) (W&tatj)  HH& TER  500000%7T BEHER
ERENEHHRA PRC Ordinary ~ RMB2,000,000 - = 100% - Investment holding
(Notesaand k) (Hfzka Jik) TER AR®2,000,0007C A
ARG FEHERBEERAT  PRC Ordinary ~ RMB10,000,000 - - 100% - Hotel operation and
(Notesaand ) (fita 1) LR E#10,000,000 78 properties
development
TR RSB
Ultimate Frontier Limited BV Ordinary ~ USD1 - - 100% - Investment holding

(Note m) (HfzEm) REEGHE LAk 1FEx b8 tid
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #% ~F— M4+ H =1+—H IL4FfE

20. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)
Notes: B 5
(@  These entities were established in the PRC and are wholly (@) LS FERE B v B BT 2 A P A2 o

foreign-owned enterprises.
(b) It was incorporated on 9 August 2013.
() It was incorporated on 8 January 2013.
(d) It was incorporated on 14 August 2013.

(e) It was incorporated on 18 November 2013.

(b) FEAFIR
(0 FEAF

F— =4 NHIUH ML
F—=H—H/\HgE o7 -

@) AR F =R 1 A R R -
(@ HAFRRE St A AR
M‘o

(H It was incorporated on 8 November 2012 (acquired on 16 (h  #EeaER FE— 4+ —H/\H MG
October 2013). (A ZZF— =41 H o8 H ) -

(g) It was incorporated on 10 January 2013.

ﬁg‘:
I

(® AFR ZE = A B R AGE -

(h) It was incorporated on 30 October 2011 (acquired on 18 ) FEAFENFE——F+H =1 H MR
September 2014). O =F—W4ESUA +/A H ) -

(i) It was incorporated on 28 December 2011 (acquired on 18 @)  EAFRE——AE A = /NH R
September 2014) Sz (A ZE AL + /N H IE) -

G) It was incorporated on 9 June 2014 (acquired on 18 September G) AN TR ZF— AR AL El FE RS
2014). :$*W$hﬁ /N H i)

(k) It was incorporated on 20 June 2014 (acquired on 18 September k) FEoFRFE-UEASH T H R A
2014). (A =ZF— P4 JUH A+ /VH didis)

) It was incorporated on 20 November 2012 (acquired on 18 ) FZ/NG e it oy e s S E S 11 57 VA
September 2014). OA =F—4E LA +/VH ) -

(m) It was incorporated on 30 October 2014.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at

the end of both years or during both years.

(m) AR E A=A HEERGL -

ABESBEAT: 7 R Jag 2 w0 % 18] 4 J3E A 40 5 A4 ]
BATAL M B R

21. CLUB MEMBERSHIPS 21. Pk
The Group
ASE |
HK$000
THs T
COST A
At 1 January 2013, 31 December 2013 W_FE—Z4F—H—H  ZF—=
and 31 December 2014 TZAEt—HERZFE—NET A =+—H 759
IMPAIRMENT TRAE
At 1 January 2013, 31 December 2013 W_F—Z4F—H—H  _F—=4F
and 31 December 2014 +o A= —H R _FE—FE+ - H=+—H 159
CARRYING VALUE W Vi
At 31 December 2014 and A E—UEF"H =+ —H &
31 December 2013 x4+ H=+—H 600
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #% ~F— M4+ H =1+—H IL4FE

22. INVENTORIES 22. 8
The Group
AL
2014 2013
“EF 4 —F =
HK$’000 HK$000
Tt T T
Raw materials JEA R 13,651 8,676
Work-in-progress 1R, 7,901 5,134
Finished goods B 7,101 11,435
Food and beverages B KAkl 692 778
Hotel merchandise WG T 234 362
29,579 26,385
During the year ended 31 December 2014, certain impaired PBEF—-NET A =+—HIEF
inventories were sold at profit. As a result, a reversal of B> AETOEHMMEZHFEEMEEL - #
allowance for inventories of approximately HK$1,642,000 I o 7 B B A TR 4 491,642,000 %5 08 (—
(2013: HK$2,134,000) has been recognised for the year Z—=4F 12,184 000%70) CIAEE-F
ended 31 December 2014. — WA A =4 H R AR -
During the year ended 31 December 2014, certain impaired REE_F-NEF+_A=+—HI14¥
inventories of approximately HK$902,000 were written B> #HT EaE A7 B AT 902,000 # 7T
off due to obsolete. During the year ended 31 December C R B Sy - MR E — T — =4+
2013, certain impaired inventories of approximately A=Z+—HIFE > ATEBHEHZAFEE
HK$15,541,000 were written off upon the cessation of the {EL#715,541,000 # 7 E 7% — [H] f} i 22 /] 2
operation of the Korean branch of a subsidiary. i B 73 > AR RS L IR WS o
23. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 23. BEPWE
The Group
A SR
2014 2013
— & —F=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
T T T
(Restated)
(K& H1)
At beginning of the year ) 57,441 -
Exchange adjustments P 5, ] B (513) 752
Additions wNE 10,022 56,689

At end of the year TR 66,950 57,441
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #% ~F— M4+ H =1+—H IL4FfE

23. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 23. FEREHBWE (H)
(Continued)
2014 2013
SEomE %=
HK$’000 HK$000
T T T
(Restated)
(&)
Represented by: Hrp a4
Land use rights b fe I 53,164 52,014
Construction costs and capitalised TR AR B B AL B S
expenditure 13,786 5,427
66,950 57,441
The carrying values of properties under development AL B AH 8 b B ) 2 2 IR T
situated on the leasehold land in the PRC are as follows: #IE
2014 2013
—Bomg %=
HK$’000 HK$'000
T#t TH#IT
Medium-term lease Fh AT A 15,666 13,441
Long-term lease A 51,284 44,000
66,950 57,441
Properties under development are classified as current H A TE A B ) S B 85 0E B 2 BB I
asset as the construction period of the relevant property 1E s A R SE R > EOEE R ) SE M
development project is expected to complete in the normal T

operating cycle.
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24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 24. FEWCE 5 B ARk
The Group The Company
AL AR
2014 2013 2014 2013
SReWE SF-SF Cg-mE Fs
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
T T T T
(Restated)
(K= %1))
Trade receivables TEUCE 5 IRk 85,249 62,332 - =
Less: allowance for impairment loss & : Ik {FL s 8488 6 (10,965) (10,960) - =
74,284 51,372 - -
Deposits and other receivables e M HoAh I R 2k 29,051 20,477 978 4,616
Prepayments A RIA 966 6,790 145 6,023
Total trade and other receivables  JEW'E 5 &
HoAb AR R A 104,301 78,639 1,123 10,639
(@) Ageing analysis (@) MRS B

The Group does not hold any collateral or other

credit enhancements over its trade receivables.

The Group allows an average credit period of 30 to 90
days to its trade customers. The following is an aged

analysis of trade receivables net of impairment loss
presented based on the date of delivery of goods or

A 3 S B 2 MR A AT
AT HRAT it LA £ P 388 568 i i

AEBGTHE S EF 2 FHEEH
F530% 90 H » DL AR LT & f
R LIRS 1Y B (BG4 e RE H 4
AHFT) 5251 ) S8 1B e (s R B i

date of rendering of services which approximated the E 5 MR BRI o
respective dates on which revenue was recognised.
The Group
AL
2014 2013
—F g =
HK$’000 HK$'000
Tl THIT
(Restated)
(& E51)
Within 90 days 90 H A 67,770 50,054
91 to 180 days 912180 H 5,515 1,318
181 to 365 days 1812365 H 999 -
74,284 51,372
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24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 24. JEWE 5 B HAb Rk (48)

(Continued)

(b) Impairment loss on trade receivables

Impairment loss in respect of trade receivables is
recorded using an allowance account unless the
Group is satisfied that recovery of the amount is
remote, in which case the impairment loss is written
off against trade receivables directly.

At 31 December 2014, the Group’s trade
receivables of approximately HK$10,965,000 (2013:
HK$10,960,000) were individually determined to be
impaired.

The movements in allowance for impairment loss
recognised during the year are as follows:

(b) MW B 5y sk Z Vol EL s 61

A bR RESCE 5 IRk 2 S (B 48T 18 1)
A HRARRC Bk o AR 4 I 2 Wi (e I
Z WG ELAIBRSN - LEBUE DL B(E
M TR BT B A B 5 AR v s

REE—TEFZH=+—H o &g
] 2 JE i 5 B 3K 4 10,965,000 # JT
(& —=4F : 10,960,000 ) 14
Al B 28 T I AH -

A T . ifE R U8 A 1R 98 Al 2 2 B
T

The Group
A

2014 2013

SRoWE F oA

HK$’000 HK$'000

T#x THEIT

At 1 January w—H—H 10,960 11,194
Exchange adjustments EE 5, ) B (118) 12
Impairment loss recognised E MR E 1R 123 71
Reversal of impairment loss A 4R ] 45 - (317)
At 31 December wt+—HA=+—H 10,965 10,960
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24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 24. JEWE 5 B HAb Rk (48)

(Continued)

(o) BV H Z 518 38 3115 I sk
i Z MW BT 5 Wk 2 B i 2 AT

(c) The ageing analysis of trade receivables
which are past due but not impaired
presented based on the due date:

The Group
AL
2014 2013
e S 112 =
HK$’000 HK$'000
T#t THIT
Within 30 days 30 HA 15,236 12,700
31 to 90 days 31290 H 2,653 5,215
91 to 365 days 91 %365 H 87 178
Total HE 17,976 18,093

Included in the Group’s trade receivables balance
are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of
approximately HK$17,976,000 (2013: HK$18,093,000)
which are past due as at the end of the reporting
period for which the Group has not provided for
impairment loss.

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired
related to a number of independent customers that
have a good track record with the Group. Based
on past experience, the management believes that
no impairment loss is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change
in credit quality and the balances are still considered
fully recoverable.

FEAAR L E B ) WK A B 2 R T
HEA) 17,976,000 70 (—F—=4F :
18,093,000 # 7t) - ARG H HAK J&§ i
2 MEMCHR R > T A 42 130 NI S st 1
PWERRE -

O 78 11 0 Bl (< R R e B A
B LA N A RIFERA SR 2 48
SRR o ARYELIEREE - fR e
FE R ME R > 0 EA B AR
AR aR Ao AT ol e > SO B ARG
P JEURERS 5 S BR AR IR (LIRS
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25. RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS/SHORT- 25. ZFRGIRIT R R B BB

TERM BANK DEPOSIT WITH ORIGINAL
MATURITY MORE THAN THREE
MONTHS/BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Restricted bank deposits

Restricted bank deposits represent deposit placed to the
government as security for custom of import and export of
trading. The deposits will be released upon the end of the
contract.

Short-term bank deposit with original maturity
more than three months

Short-term bank deposit carries interest at 1.4775% per
annum. The amount will be matured on 16 July 2015.

Bank balances

Bank balances of the Group represented short-term
deposits with a maturity of three months or less. Bank
balances carry interest at market rates which range from
0.01% to 0.42% (2013: 0.01% to 0.39%) per annum for the
year.

Bank balances of the Company represented short-term
deposits with a maturity of three months or less. Bank
balances carry interest at market rates which is 0.01% (2013:
0.01%) per annum for the year.

= B I BRAT AR BT
iR BB &

52 PR il SR AT A7 5K

32 PR A SRAT A7 K598 A7 OR BUR Z A7 3K >
ER R F N R 5y 2R Gl o %K
A R S 5 RS BRI

JECF ] H R = A 7 R SR AT A7
K

J SR AT A AR AR 1.4775% /HE o A B
AR —F—TAEEAT/NHE -

SRAT & B

A SE [ 2 SRAT AR T8 =AW H sk DA 23
ZIEIAFERR o IAAAERE » RATAS R Th R T
LA REH0.01% F0.42%5HE (& —=
1 0.01% £0.39%) °

AN T 2 ARAT AR T 48 = A =L E 3
ZRHIAE R - AR > SRAITH BRI %
WA REF001%FME (ZF— =4
0.01%) °
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26. A DISPOSAL GROUP CLASSIFIED AS
HELD FOR SALE

On 8 January 2015, a subsidiary of the Company entered
into a share transfer agreement with Vitsmo HK Limited,
an independent third party, to dispose of the entire equity
interest of 3 WESRIH (EII) AR A (formerly known
as Kwang Sung Electronics Trading (Shenzhen) Company
Limited) (“Ai Bi Cu Technology”) at a consideration of
approximately RMB1,581,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$2,004,000), settled by cash. The assets and liabilities
attributable to the Group, which is expected to be sold
within twelve months, have been classified as disposal
company held for sale and are presented separately in the
consolidated statement of financial position (see below).
The net proceeds of the disposal are expected to exceed the
net carrying amount of the relevant assets and liabilities
and accordingly, no impairment loss has been recognised.

The assets and liabilities of Ai Bi Cu Technology classified
as held for sale are as follows:

26. 3 BUR Mt B AL

W —HAE—H/NHE > RE®E—HHE LA
] B — & 37 %8 = J7 Vitsmo HK Limited 7]
S B A R R AR A AR
1,581,000 7G (4 & A £92,004,000 # 75)
EYHEER - (BYD) FIRAR (R
BEETES (FY) ARAF) (3L EFR
) MR > DIBIEAE o TSN
T A A T A S A AR
ENBARHERENHEAR » HEREE
G BRI ERES] (RT3 - HEE
Wi i T R TEL S R R A B B R
T FE > R > IR s (s 1R

VAR 2 20 SR 20 R AR 6 19 3L EE B ) B
ERAM

2014

—F 4

HK$’000

T

Property, plant and equipment ED S Y& -
Bank balances and cash SRATHE R B 86

Total assets classified as held for sale

SR BTE BN R EE 86
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27. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 27. BEAT R 5 B FCAtb IR 5K
The Group The Company
A M AL
2014 2013 2014 2013
SROWE CF-SF SR OWE D% SF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T THIT T THIT
(Restated)
(% 51)
Trade payables TR B 5 Rk 51,393 45,028 - -
Accrued expenses and other R} i & Hift
payables (note) MERTHRER (Fi5E) 53,077 22,587 3,641 1,805
104,470 67,615 3,641 1,805

Note: Included in the balance represented an amount of
approximately HK$16,530,000 (2013: nil) deposits received
from constructors as a guarantee for the construction project.

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the

BFFEE : &5 B AL 35 40 16,530,000 T (& — =4F ¢
M) ZEWURBEMA SEAERER ZE
1%0

DATR Z AR BB 5 S B R 2 51 1 JE
i Ty Mk B it AT

reporting period.
The Group
A5 M
2014 2013
e S LK —F—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
T#t THIT
(Restated)
(R =E5)
Within 90 days 90 HIX 43,207 36,046
91 to 180 days 912180 H 5,925 412
181 to 365 days 181 £ 365 H 69 459
Over 365 days 365 HEA | 2,192 8,111
51,393 45,028

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 0 to 90
days. The Group has financial risk management policies
in place to ensure that all payables are settled within the
credit timeframe.

MR 2 FHERNA0EI0H « AL
A7 < g i BB > e R T AR AR AR K
R AR SRR A& -
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28.

29.

AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED
COMPANIES

Included in the balance, certain amounts are unsecured,
non-interest bearing and repayable on demand. The
remaining balances were arisen from normal purchase
transactions, which are unsecured, non-interest bearing
and expected to be settled according to their respective
credit terms which are similar to those with third parties.

28.

ANNUAL REPORT 2014
“ER-MEFR

VB ASF I3 738 2 ] sk IR

HA G BRI T AR S~ S B R
BBORMER - RIBRASBRZC A — BRI 52
S o Ry AR - R R AR B
fREH (B =J7 M) 4558 -

OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASE ~ 29. Bi¥& & HIE
The Group
AL
2014 2013
R 4R —F—=
HK$’000 HK$000
T# T Tt
Analysed for reporting purposes as: I MAE R
Current liabilities ) B AR 140 133
Non-current liabilities FE HLEh B fE 304 444
444 577

The Group has leased a motor vehicle with cost of
approximately HK$702,000 (2013: HK$702,000) under
finance lease during the year ended 31 December 2014.
The lease term is 5 years. Interest rate underlying the
obligations under finance lease is fixed at respective
contract dates at 2.75% (2013: 2.75%) per annum.

REE —FE—WFE+ A =+—HIL4F
B> AREE UGS —3RE -
7K #1702,000% 6 ( = F — = 4F : 702,000
wot) o FEM ARG - MEME ST M
BRI RE 2 BA K HIFERER275% (%
— =4 1 2.75%) o
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29. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASE

(Continued)

Minimum lease payments

29. MhEMERME ()

Present value of
minimum lease payments

KA £k KA sk B
2014 2013 2014 2013
“RNE CF-EF SR -NE CF-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
RN T T T T
Amounts payable under il A B B AT AR IR
finance leases
Within one year —FERAN 160 160 140 133
In more than one year but i — A
not more than two years AN T 4 i A 160 160 148 140
In more than two years but 388 T A E
not more than five years R A 159 319 156 304
479 639 444 577
Less: future finance charges W ARARENE B S (35) (62) N/AARBEH NAREF
Present value of lease FHEAIERE
obligations 444 577
Less: amount due for settlement  Ji : i+ 1 A
within twelve months A2 A 45
(shown under current I (FIfE
liabilities) B & &) (140) (133)
Amount due for settlement Tt AE H
after twelve months E HA A5 A B H 304 444

The Group’s obligations under finance lease are secured by
the lessor’s charge over the leased asset.

AL MEHEERUHEAREE
FE B BT A HEAE 1T o
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30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. JBEA
Number of shares  Share capital
T B H A
‘000 HK$’000
T Tt
Authorised: BisE
At 1 January 2013 and 31 December 2013 MEF—=F—H—-HK
e S Y |
=—F
— Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each — BRI 0.1 T 2 1 ik 1,500,000 150,000
At 31 December 2014 = ZF—U4E+—H
=+—H Note fftzE 1 Note Fft5E 1
Issued and fully paid: CRAT B
At 1 January 2013 and 31 December 2013 MR-F—=F—HA—HEK
s S Y |
== 323,897 32,390
Transfer from share premium upon B o T {ELIRFARE PR 3
abolition of par value (Note 2) Ton (B AR (BfRE2) = 58,566
Issue of shares (Note 3) AT (BfEES) 4,000 8,120
At 31 December 2014 W= ZF—U4E+—H
==
— Ordinary shares with no par value — e T A 327,897 99,076
Notes: st -
(1) Under the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), (1) RIEE ZF A=A = HAMHEBA

@

©)

with effect from 3 March 2014, the concept of authorised share
capital no longer exists and the Company’s shares no longer
have a par value. There is no impact on the number of shares in
issue or the relative entitlement of any of the shareholders as a
result of this transition.

In accordance with the transitional provisions set out in section
37 of schedule 11 to Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622), on 3 March 2014 any amount standing to the credit of
the share premium account has become part of the Company’s
share capital.

On 18 September 2014, the Company has allotted and issued
4,000,000 ordinary shares each of HK$2.03 in respect of a
consideration of the acquisition of Best Dollar Group.

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled
to one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All
ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s
residual assets.

@

©)

H

iif:

AR (5 622 %) > ELRFRAFTERE E IRA Y
& > AR AW B AT A A E o %5k
; B R BEEAT IS 1A R AT AT R A AR B
R o

MR IR A Hs 2w ikl (5@622% W 11 56 37
£ ST S A R AR S > R PR = H =
H 5T A A T 1 H A4 AT ] 4 8 B B A AR
1353 AR o

R FE—ESA B > ARAFIC A K
547 4,000,000 i 4 B 2.03 5 G 19 4 48 )1 -
1 By Best Dollar 5 9 4CAE -

WA A N A RO R E IR 2 S,

i /NI DN = ST K54 4 i
S e A NFZ B EREM S - A

T B A (] SF R o
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31. RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

31. Aol faf

Retained
profits
Share (accumulated
Share Contribution options  Exchange losses)
premium reserve reserve reserve  TREGEF Total
Befril  hEG WRERE  ExEG (REHER) At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
Ti#T Ti#ET Ti#ET Ti#ET THT THT
At1]January 2013 RoF—=k—f—H 58,566 8478 - (12623) 7999 134380
Loss for the year and total AR K
comprehensive expense AR T SO
for the year - - - - (11,820) (11,820)
At 31 December 2013 RoZ-SHEF-AZt—H 58566 8478 - (12,623) 63139 122560
Loss for the year and total AEREER
comprehensive expense AR 2T
for the year - - - - (114,536) (114,536)
Transfer upon abolition of TRERH A 2 Rl R
par value under the new R T
Hong Kong Companies (i3 30)
Ordinance (Note 30) (58,566) - - - - (58,566)
Recognition of equity-settled HERATRHES B 2
share-based payment PR RIRRBA L (Wf7E43)
expenses (Note 43) - - 829 - - 829
At 31 December 2014 REF—EFZA=+—H = 8,478 829 (12,623) (46,397) (49,713)




163

ANNUAL REPORT 2014
“ER-MEFR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 ¥R 3 MY &

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #% ~F— M4+ H =1+—H IL4FE

32. PWHEREIE

The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities A A ] 22 B 5 IR L 2 A e R 2 R B AR A
recognised in the Group’s consolidated statement of i JE A 5 B R 4 A B i 1 4R B 2 5 ) A
financial position and movements thereon during the Ik

current and prior years:

32. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

The Group AL
Revaluation of
land and
buildings
Depreciation held for
allowances own use and
in excess investment
of related properties
depreciation  EfEFEAH
& A BT Z el e b Total
Z B VY E:4:E7ES At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tt THTT TH#TT
At 1 January 2013 N_FE—=4FE—H—H 207 9,976 10,183
Charged (credited) to profit or A48 % 1 (FHA)
loss (Note 12) (f5E12) 124 (449) (325)
Release of deferred tax upon A HoAt 4 i i ffE 58 2
disposal of investment K R g
properties recognised in R IR SER IH
other comprehensive income - (2,211) (2,211)
At 31 December 2013 REZF—=F+=H
=t—H 331 7,316 7,647
Credited to profit or loss R HEA (KR 12)
(Note 12) (120) (5,242) (5,362)
Release of deferred tax upon ~ J# ﬁf’[ﬁéﬁq&ﬁ_ﬁﬁﬁﬁz
disposal of investment PR d<¢7/E ]
properties recognised in Rk 2 R AE R I
other comprehensive income - (2,074) (2,074)
At 31 December 2014 W_F—-NETH
=+—H 211 = 211

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unused
tax losses of approximately HK$113,997,000 (2013:

T R - A KR T B A By A E
Fe v 10 B Ja§ > W) 2 o filE ) B TE s 4R 40

HK$85,415,000) available for offset against future profits 113,997,000 # 7T (—ZF—=4F : 85,415,000
in respect of the Korea Branch and the PRC subsidiaries, won) W e —E—-LFEE o WA
which will expire in 2017, subject to the approval and IBH 50 05 W R VA D T o A IR TERE R

confirmation by the relevant tax authorities. No deferred
tax asset has been recognised in respect of the above tax
losses due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.

AR i M AR > I S A 20 R T s 18 A R
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32.

33.

34.

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
deductible temporary differences of approximately
HK$47,150,000 (2013: HK$47,150,000). No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in relation to such deductible
temporary differences as it is not probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utilised.

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, effective from 1 January
2008, the Company is subject to a withholding tax at
the rate of 5% for any dividend payment from its PRC
subsidiaries. Deferred tax liabilities of approximately
HK$418,000 (2013: HK$212,000) in respect of temporary
differences relating to the undistributed profits of
subsidiaries operating in the PRC of approximately
HK$8,353,000 (2013: HK$4,239,000) have not been
recognised as the Company is able to control the dividend
policy of these subsidiaries and it has been determined
that those profits will not be distributed in the foreseeable
future.

AMOUNTS DUE TO ULTIMATE
HOLDING COMPANY/A DIRECTOR

At 31 December 2014, the amounts are unsecured, non-
interest bearing and repayable in June 2016 (2013: June
2015).

The effective interest rate of the amounts due to ultimate
holding company and the director is 5% (2013: 5%) per
annum.

SECURED NOTE/SECURED LOAN

On 20 November 2013, the Company issued a 13%
guaranteed senior secured note due 2014 with aggregate
principal amount of US$15,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$116,271,000) (the “Note”). The Note
is guaranteed by two directors of the Company, has a
maturity term of two years and bears a fixed interest rate of
13% per annum with interest payable annually in arrears.
The Note is secured by, among other things, the land and
buildings of the Group of approximately HK$108,655,000.

32. MEMERIIA (4H)

33.

34.

TR ¥ IR A S A AT 10 Iy 22 R A
47,150,000 # 7T ( =% — = 4F : 47,150,000
HETT) o ASR BRA % AT 1B 22 A
AR SE B IH 2 > o Y Hh B R U A A
S AT ATBLIER Ry 22 B B AR

HoFE/NE—H—HE > REFESZE
FRAR B » AR A ZE 8 Hh B B B A W ¢
5} Z AT AT B 245 5% 2 T I B R4 TE 40
Bl o Slf7 405 BT o B 2 [ A W 2 R
o BE A 55 A BE 2 T IR 25 B 40 418,000
JC (& —Z4F 212,000 % J0) i RR R A
i TE £ {5 49 8,353,000 #5 J0 ( & — = 4F ¢
4,239,000 % JT) - JE I 2 AR N F) HE o % S
W S 7] 2 P S BOR > HLEL IR AS B A AT
W2 A i % % T B

VE A B 5 e I A W) — B B
I

R_FE—WEFZA=+—H» &R EY
ﬁfﬁ*qﬂ %Au\&/Eﬁ/\ 72—‘/éi'zg\ (g
F—Z4F  ZR AN NEE -
INBS S SEY UNTIS &5 IEZ%F?*'Q;

FAERZ 5% (ZF—=4 : 5%)

AR TR Bk

R oFE =4+ —H o+ H > ARFET
T2 — VO AF ) B A8 AR 42 %8 4% 15,000,000 3£
JC (AHZ i #7116,271,000 # 7C) 22 13% 1
TR RA R EE (2] - 5%
MAN AP EEEAERA > 2

H AW FLEEELI13% B EFE > 7
BEFERIA o %L (P afE) A48

4] 1 (H £ 108,655,000 & 1 2 + 3t M #5241
p LTI
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34. SECURED NOTE/SECURED LOAN 34. HEIPEIR HEIEK (4D
(Continued)
The proceeds of approximately US$15,000,000 (equivalent BAT SR PR A ERIA ) 15,000,000 32 7T (AR
to approximately HK$116,271,000) was used for financing 2N #)116,271,000 % 7T) > T3 A RilE Ik
the acquisition of certain assets pertaining to the operation A7 1 i 5 K S g R Y 5 5 #fE 22 A s T
of a resort located in Victoria, British Columbia, Canada. K 2 AR S F o B o
During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company REE_F-NFE+_A=+—HIL4
repaid the principal amount of US$2,000,000 (equivalent to B AN E] B E R R 4 #02,000,000 2 7T
approximately HK$15,530,000). (FHEE R %) 15,530,000 #E7T) ©
On 24 December 2014, the Company signed a secured AZFE—PETZH A ME > AR FEE
term loan facility with aggregate principal amount & —THAR £%H13,000,000 £ 7T (AHSFIR A
of US$13,000,000 (equivalent to approximately 100,847,000 # 7T) A KA R ) 5 Al
HK$100,847,000) to refinance the Note issued on %o LR FE—=F+—H T H#T
20 November 2013. The secured term loan facility is ZEEBETERE o ZA KA R &
guaranteed by its subsidiaries, two directors of the Ry FCR R A R AR R H A
Company and a related company, has a maturity term of = e — B A FERIERA - EI A 5
two years and bear a fixed interest rate of 14% per annum MAF - FLEBEFELL14% B EFE - REF
with interest payable annually in arrears. The secured term FERSAS o 52 A AT A PRI B3R G AA
loan facility is secured by the land and buildings of the 48 15 (B %9 98,217,000 #& 7T 2 L #th K i 5
Group of approximately HK$98,217,000. YRR HEA 5 o
The Group and the Company AR [ Je AR )
Secured note Secured loan
A= 5 kA Bk
US$'000 HK$'000 US$'000 HK$'000
Tt Tt TRt T

On date of issue REATH 15,000 116,271 - -
Exchange adjustment HEE 50, 58 - 45 - -
At 31 December 2013 R_F—=%+-A

=+—H 15,000 116,316 - —
Exchange adjustment 1 HEE 8 4 - 61 - -
Repayment during the year N (2,000) (15,530) - -
Transfer to secured loan LS E VRN (13,000) (100,847) 13,000 100,847
At 31 December 2014 REF—NE+ZA

=+—H = = 13,000 100,847
In the opinions of the directors of the Company, the AN B R A A AR B R R S A SRR
effective interest rate of the secured loan and secured note B MR 0 Bl 2% B 2 ST A 2 14%
approximated to the nominal interest rate of 14% and 13% K13% °

per annum respectively.
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35.

36.

BONDS 35. fe%

The Group and the Company
A SR I B A 2 )
2014 2013
. =
HK$’000 HK$'000
Tt T T
HK$20,000,000 bonds carry fixed coupon 20,000,000 i G2 &5

rate of 6% per annum Z V] 72 S AR A 2 6% 20,000 -

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company
entered into two placing agreements with a placing agent
on 12 June 2014 and 12 September 2014. Pursuant to each
of the placing agreements, the placing agent has agreed to
endeavour to procure placees to subscribe for the bonds in
an aggregated principal amount of up to HK$150,000,000
within the placing period. The bonds will be placed in
denomination of HK$1,250,000 and will be utilised as
general working capital, repayment of bank loan of the
Group and/or for future properties development of the
Group.

The Company issued two 6% HK dollar denominated
bonds with the aggregate principal amount of
HK$10,000,000 each on 6 August 2014 and 10 October
2014 respectively. The amounts are repayable within 96
months from the date of issue.

LONG SERVICE PAYMENT
OBLIGATIONS

The Group made provision for probable future long service
payments to employees in accordance with Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance, as further in note 4. Pursuant to
Chapter 10 of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance,
the long service payment is to be offset with the accrued
benefits derived from the Group’s contributions made to
MPF Scheme for the employees and subject to a cap of
HK$390,000 per employee. The provision represented the
management’s best estimate of the Group’s liability at the
end of each reporting period.

REE -F—WFE+ A =+—HIL4F
FE > AR A B — R AR =R — 0 AR N
A+ ZH R _F—PFESHA T HFTLMH
13 T 65 T k. o AR A5 T 5 o > Pl B AR
] 75 0 75 T AR > %% 4 0 R A i B 1A
TN R I AN 4 48 %8 i e 2 150,000,000 #5702
B o (5351 {E 1,250,000 #5 T HLE
Wik AE—REEES > RAMERARE
B 2 SRAT B M A A R R ) 2
)Eo

AN AR FE—TENANH K F—
A H A H 4 il 47 AR 4: %674 10,000,000
WL W 6% W CRHMEME S - Z%E S
BN AT H WIS 96 10 A N FEE -

36. &= MR 4R 5

HR PR Hs (R e 1] > AN 42 B3 BAE T
RE R AR IR TS & 13 48 > FEIE M R4 o
R 5 75 R IR 1 1156 10 % > R IR 4 ]
H A A B 1) 3 P 4 T B4 H )RR T A A
) REST AR AT > b R A 507 4 B 390,000
TEIC o sZ B T P S A AR N S
BRI A B BAEME -
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36. LONG SERVICE PAYMENT 36. MM SR ()
OBLIGATIONS (Continued)
The most recent actuarial valuations of the present value 3 5L A A A I BUE Y Bl R S A (L
of the defined benefit obligation were carried out as at 31 H 2R RS B R WAl A PR A Rl & — 104
December 2014 by Roma Appraisals Limited. The present A=+ —BEST - RERMARYE LA
value of the defined benefit obligation, and the related B8 R 5 B AN ) BB T 4% 1 TE AT B A RT AR
service cost, were measured using the projected unit credit Ak
method.
Movement of present value of provision for long service R S BUEZ ST
payment is as follows:
The Group
ASE
2014 2013
e S UE 2 —F—-=
HK$’000 HK$000
T#t T#IT
At 1 January w—H—H - 451
Charged to profit or loss JiSiEEnEi 5 - 97
Actuarial gains recognised in 7 HAth 2 T i i i AR
other comprehensive income A - (548)
At 31 December wt+—-H=+—H - _
Movement of present value of the defined benefit ASAF BE 5 AR R AR IS 2 BL(E 2 S8 B 1% DL an
obligation for the year is as follows: T
The Group
A SR
2014 2013
e
HK$’000 HK$'000
T T T
At 1 January w—H—H - 451
Current service cost "B B A - 72
Interest cost B A - 25
Actuarial gains recognised in T LAt 2 T i £ R 2
other comprehensive income KA - (548)

At 31 December wr+—A=+—H - -
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36. LONG SERVICE PAYMENT
OBLIGATIONS (Continued)

Amounts recognised in consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income in respect of these
defined benefit plans are as follows:

36. MM SR (4

T Figt 5 48 i R % FL A 4 T WA A 3R AL % S AR
E AR B ERD 2 S

The Group
AL
2014 2013
“E 4 —F—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
T TH#TT
Current service cost RS AR - 72
Interest costs FE A - 25
Components of defined benefit costs AR R FERR 2 e
recognised in profit or loss R A A 2 LR o3
(included in staff costs) (FEA B THA) - 97
Remeasurement on the net defined benefit liability OB A E AR A RIS
The Group
AL
2014 2013
“F 4 —F =
HK$’000 HK$'000
Tt TH#TT
Actuarial gains arising from changes in P AR o 5 ) i AR 1Y)
financial assumptions LR - (548)
Components of defined benefit costs A At 4 T i i fERR 2
recognised in other comprehensive income  F 72 & Fl Sl A 2 1 B 43 - (548)
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36. LONG SERVICE PAYMENT 36. MM SR ()
OBLIGATIONS (Continued)
The amounts recognised in consolidated statement of A fo 4 A 2R A 2 T i A AR R 4
profit or loss and other comprehensive income are as BHAE -
follows:
The Group
AL
2014 2013
—ZF— N5 —F—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
T TH#TT
Net actuarial gains during the year AR BERG S WA A 4 A - (548)
Cumulative amount of actuarial gains AR SR 2wk S i < A
at the end of the year - (548)
At 31 December 2014 and 2013, the amount is calculated M F—ERZE— 4+ =+ —
based on the principal assumptions stated as below: H - ABERIRE T o R REE
2014 2013
ZF 4 —F—=
Discounted rate applied to long service JRE AR B IR B
payment obligations BTRIEZ BB AR 1.96% —2.93% 2.47% —3.65 %
Expected rate of salary increase FHi > TEHA I B = 4.02% 4.73%
Annual turnover rate for employees with AEERIN 10 R 0E B 19
less than 10 years of service FEJE A Tk & 14.21% 10.71%
Annual turnover rate for employees with A R AR 10 AR08 B 1Y
more than 10 years of service R TR 8.33% 0%

Retirement age IRARAE 65 65
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37.

BUSINESS COMBINATION UNDER
COMMON CONTROL

On 24 July 2014, one of the subsidiaries of the Group,
Forebase China Limited (“Forebase China”) had entered
into an acquisition agreement with Mr. Shen Yong, a
director of the Company, to acquire 100% of equity interest
of Best Dollar Group, which in principally engaged in
property development, at a consideration of HK$8,120,000.
The consideration was settled in full by the issue of
4,000,000 new ordinary shares at an issue price of HK$2.03
per share. The acquisition was completed on 18 September
2014. Since the Company, Forebase China and Best Dollar
Group are ultimately controlled by Mr. Shen Yong both
before and after this acquisition. The acquisition was
accounted for using the merger accounting.

No significant adjustment was made to the net assets and
net results of Best Dollar Group as a result of the common
control combination to achieve consistency of accounting
policies.

Summary of the effects as a result of the
common control combination

Statements of adjustments for business combinations
under common control occurred during the year ended
31 December 2014 on the Group’s financial position as at
31 December 2014 and 2013 and 1 January 2013 and the
results for the year ended 31 December 2014 and 2013 are
summarised as follows:

37. IR T BSEB A B

W E—PAELH U H » AEEES
— [V B R ) R R A PR A (T HA 3
W ) BEAS N F R OB AR T S — 1y
W 1 > LAMRAE 8,120,000 #E JT Ui I Best
Dollar 4E B 2 4= # B A 1 25 > Best Dollar
SEEERBYESR - REC IEITE
2,03 W J0EETT 4,000,000 HE 3 5 48 A 2
7 A MAEAT o szl C R —F— 04
HT/NH M o HRAAR] ~ H3E B &
Best Dollar 42 [l A 2 U U5 i i 1% 35 H H 55
So s B A > R I RZ B R A DR st
BARR -

S 48 [R] A 4T AL ] 2 W 265 A DR R L B e st
B — 00 ¥ Best Dollar £E [H 2 8 & & K
A R o

BRI 3 [a] 422 ol 38 8 5 O i 2 Ak 2
WEE

M E —FE—NE+ " H=+—HILEEF
B 2 SLE R R 2 A P A
RoF—NFER—FE—=F+ A =+—
AR K =F—=F—H—HZBHHERIL
DR E R F—=4F+H
= — B IR 2 AT SR R A RS
T
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37. BUSINESS COMBINATION UNDER 37. PG TRER SO (8)

COMMON CONTROL (Continued)

Summary of the effects as a result of the
common control combination (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2014

PRI 3 [ 2 i) 5 5 - D o s 2 2 S

mE% (%)

BEZZ-NET A=+ —HIL4EE

The Group The Group
(excluding Best (including Best
Dollar Group) Best Dollar  Dollar Group)
A Group ALEH
(A5 Best Best Dollar (4% Best
Dollar 5 ) %M Dollar %)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TH#T T#7 TH#T
Revenue & 348,530 - 348,530
Cost of sales S A (341,850) - (341,850)
Gross profit EA 6,680 - 6,680
Other income and gain HAbA Rl sz 7113 4 7,117
Selling and distribution expenses 15 S HB S (8,380) (3,393) (11,773)
Administrative expenses TR (31,235) (2,240) (33,475)
Research and development expenses THEsp (13,142) - (13,142)
Other operating expenses HA S B (32,120) (64) (32,184)
Finance costs & A (17,276) - (17,276)
Loss before tax BRI 12 (88,360) (5,693) (94,053)
Income tax credit Priamiik o 2,247 - 2,247
Loss for the year AFERER (86,113) (5,693) (91,806)
Other comprehensive (expense) income Hitzm (B0 i
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: A REM M EE 1R HEH
Release of deferred tax upon disposal of WER G
investment properties IEAERIH 2,074 - 2,074
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to ~ HERGEHMEERZH
profit or loss: JEH :
Exchange differences arising on translation ~ RI#- 1 A 2 B b 2 4 (9,392) 325 (9,067)
Other comprehensive (expense) income ASERHA R (B30 h
for the year (7,318) 325 (6,993)
Total comprehensive expense for the year AR A T B AR (93,431) (5,368) (98,799)
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37.

BUSINESS COMBINATION UNDER

COMMON CONTROL (Continued)

Summary of the effects as a result of the
common control combination (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2013

37. JRREEH T BER A BF ()

PRI 3 [ 2 i) 5 5 - D o s 2 2 S

mE% (%)

WEF S A= L

The Group The Group
(excluding Best (including Best
Dollar Group) Best Dollar Dollar Group)
N ] Group AREE
(NELHE Best Best Dollar (f#5 Best
Dollar £ &) £ Dollar 42 )
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
it it it
Revenue Wiz 298,722 - 298,722
Cost of sales AR (292,923) = (292,923)
Gross profit T 5,799 - 5,799
Other income and gains HARA Boliegs 4,643 3 4,646
Selling and distribution expenses S T BB (7,899) (435) (8,334)
Administrative expenses BB (25,622) (795) (26,417)
Research and development expenses WEEBA S (11,057) - (11,057)
Other operating expenses Hith & B (14,019) = (14,019)
Change in fair value of investment properties ~ # &2 /A B A H) (5,157) - (5,157)
Finance costs BB A (2,441) - (2,441)
Loss before tax BBt AR (55,753) (1,227) (56,980)
Income tax credit PrisFii 4,097 = 4097
Loss for the year LGS o (51,656) (1,227) (52,883)
Other comprehensive income HAb 2 E AR
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: A A EMMEZ s HIEH
Actuarial gains on long service payment RIMHs SR A
obligations 548 - 548
Release of deferred tax upon disposal of HER G
investment properties EAERLIE 2,211 - 2,211
2,759 - 2,759
Items that may be reclassified subsequentlyto ~ AZE X G EHMEERzHIEE -
profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising on translation R 0T e 2 B S 2 % 2,194 290 2,484
Other comprehensive income for the year ARAEFE HAL 2T 4 4953 290 5,243
Total comprehensive expense for the year ARG A TR B SRR (46,703) (937) (47,640)
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37. BUSINESS COMBINATION UNDER 37. LIS T REE & 0F ()
COMMON CONTROL (Continued)
Summary of the effects as a result of the PR 36 [l 362 ol 36 35 5 F T 2 2 RS 2
common control combination (Continued) ME (#8)
As at 31 December 2014 RoE-NUEFZH=+—H
The Group The Group
(excluding Best (including Best
Dollar Group) Best Dollar Dollar Group)
N Group Merger ALEH
(AL Best Best Dollar adjustments (fL4 Best
Dollar 4 ) £ LT L Dollar 4:H)
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$’000
TH#7 T#7 T#7 T#
Non-current assets B &
Property, plant and equipment VERR TS 120,171 593 120,764
Club memberships o 600 - 600
Deposits for purchase of property, — HEE I3 » #aE &
plant and equipment By VA 347 - 347
121,118 593 121,711
Current assets B
Inventories R 29,579 - 29,579
Properties under development B - 66,950 66,950
Trade and other receivables TEU 5 B AR SR 97,274 7,027 104,301
Amount due from a subsidiary TS — RIS 0 ] 0B 4,005 - (4,005) -
Restricted bank deposits Z IR RAT R 12,940 - 12,940
Short-term bank deposit with original J5tZI 1] H & =@ § 2
maturity more than three months  FEHISRIT7F3K 1,000 - 1,000
Bank balances and cash BiTEGRRBE 30,463 1,458 31,921
175,261 75,435 246,691
A disposal group classified as HEARHELEZ
held for sale HEHR 86 - 86
175,347 75,435 246,777
Current liabilities HEaE
Trade and other payables HERT 5 5 B AR SR 87,088 17,382 104,470
Amounts due to related companies {5 B /A 7l R - 61,593 61,593
Amount due to a subsidiary T — RIS 2 ] 50 - 4,005 (4,005) -
Tax payables FERTBIR 2,440 - 2,440
Obligations under finance lease MEHEEL 140 - 140
89,668 82,980 168,643
Net current assets (liabilities) REEE (AE) T 85,679 (7,545) 78,134

Total assets less current liabilities ¥ 7 284 il i B) £1 & 206,797 (6,952) 199,845
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37.

BUSINESS COMBINATION UNDER
COMMON CONTROL (Continued)

Summary of the effects as a result of the
common control combination (Continued)

Je ] = T H9SEB A B ()

23 I‘H”’%’J%i‘%‘*ﬁﬁﬁ%iz?ﬁéﬁ

ME(

As at 31 December 2014 RoE-NUEFZH=+—H
The Group The Group
(excluding Best (including Best
Dollar Group) Best Dollar Dollar Group)
N Group Merger ALEH
(AL¥ Best Best Dollar adjustments (245 Best
Dollar 4 ) £ LT L Dollar %)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TH#7 T#7 T#7 T#
Capital and reserves B R Gk
Share capital A 99,076 8 ®) 99,076
Reserves (¥t (71,036) (6,960) 8 (77,988)
Equity attributable to owners of ENGE 2PN L
the Company and total equity HE AR M AR £ 28,040 (6,952) 21,088
Non-current liabilities R A
Deferred tax liabilities HRIE R 211 - 211
Obligations under finance lease B SR 304 - 304
Amount due to ultimate holding ~ MEf AR/ Al FKE
company 41,998 - 41,998
Amount due to a director JEA— 4 8 S 30H 15,397 - 15,397
Secured loan AR 100,847 - 100,847
Bonds it 20,000 - 20,000
178,757 - 178,757
206,797 (6,952) 199,845
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37. BUSINESS COMBINATION UNDER 37. PG TRER SO (8)

COMMON CONTROL (Continued)

PRI 3 [ 2 i) 5 5 - D o s 2 2 S
W% (4)

Summary of the effects as a result of the
common control combination (Continued)

As at 31 December 2013 W_FE—=4F+_H=+—H
The Group The Group
(excluding Best (including Best
Dollar Group) Best Dollar Dollar Group)
ARAEH Group Merger AR
(L4 Best Best Dollar adjustment (4% Best
Dollar % ) A Al Dollar % )
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T Tk Tk T
Non-current assets FE B & e
Property, plant and equipment E B VT 136,259 161 136,420
Investment properties BEE 29,823 - 29,823
Club memberships B e 600 = 600
166,682 161 166,843
Current assets WEEE
Inventories & 26,385 = 26,385
Properties under development B - 57,441 57441
Trade and other receivables TR 5 T AR 2 77,437 1,202 78,639
Restricted bank deposits Z IR RATE K 10,007 - 10,007
Bank balances and cash RATES R BBl % 67,859 511 68,370
181,688 59,154 240,842
Current liabilities B A
Trade and other payables JEATE 5 R AR 65,481 2,134 67,615
Amounts due to related companies JAEAT B ] 30E - 45,655 45,655
Tax payables FEfBR 5,239 - 5,239
Obligations under finance lease MEREET 133 - 133
70,853 47,789 118,642
Net current assets bk b 23 A 110,835 11,365 122,200
Total assets less current liabilities ¥ 7 4% fif Il i B) £ 1% 277517 11,526 289,043
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37. BUSINESS COMBINATION UNDER 37. FERIFEH T RS & DF ()
COMMON CONTROL (Continued)
Summary of the effects as a result of the PR 36 [l 362 ol 36 35 5 F T 2 2 RS 2
common control combination (Continued) MR (%)
As at 31 December 2013 WoE =+ H=+—H
The Group The Group
(excluding Best (including Best
Dollar Group) Best Dollar Dollar Group)
ARAEH Group Merger AR
(L4 Best Best Dollar adjustment (4% Best
Dollar £ ) £ Al Dollar 42 )
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T TH#T TH#TT
Capital and reserves B R Gk
Share capital A 32,390 12,460 (12,460) 32,390
Reserves B 87,677 (934) 12,460 99,203
Equity attributable to owners of A\ AR e e
the Company and total equity RS 120,067 11,526 131,593
Non-current liabilities FEwm fa ik
Deferred tax liabilities IEREBIAA R 7,647 - 7,647
Obligations under finance lease Mg ERE 444 - 444
Amount due to ultimate holding ~ FEfTRAHMR A /IF0H
company 16,565 - 16,565
Amount due to a director Tef—4 & H R 16,478 - 16,478
Secured note 1R AR 116,316 - 116,316
157,450 = 157,450
277,517 11,526 289,043
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37. BUSINESS COMBINATION UNDER 37. FERIFEH T RS & DF ()
COMMON CONTROL (Continued)
Summary of the effects as a result of the PR 36 [l 362 ol 36 35 5 F T 2 2 RS 2
common control combination (Continued) MEZE (78)
As at 1 January 2013 N_FE—=4F—H—H
The Group The Group
(excluding Best (including Best
Dollar Group) Best Dollar Dollar Group)
AR Group Merger ES 3L
(VL4 Best Best Dollar adjustment (f24 Best
Dollar %) £ ey Tk Dollar 52 )
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T BRI Tt Tt
Non-current assets T B
Property, plant and equipment ERR ST 23,112 = 23,112
Investment properties BEE 56,292 - 56,292
Club memberships B e 600 = 600
Deposits for purchase of property, — MEE Y ~ B Kkt
plant and equipment 2% 106 - 106
80,110 - 80,110
Current assets bk b2 g3
Inventories 3 26,384 - 26,384
Trade and other receivables PR 55 B At sk 65,478 28,658 94,136
Restricted bank deposits IR HATHF K 11,009 - 11,009
Bank balances and cash WITH R LBE 99,241 127 99,368
202,112 28,785 230,897
Current liabilities nE A
Trade and other payables TEft 88 5 B ARk 74,513 = 74,513
Amounts due to related companies 1B H1/A ] HIH = 16,322 16,322
Tax payables FEfTBR 10,757 = 10,757
Bank borrowing AT
~ due within one year -~ RE 19,548 - 19,548
104,818 16,322 121,140
Net current assets 80 2 A 97,294 12,463 109,757

Total assets less current liabilities % 7 48 W V7 B £ 5 177,404 12,463 189,867
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37.

BUSINESS COMBINATION UNDER
COMMON CONTROL (Continued)

Summary of the effects as a result of the
common control combination (Continued)

As at 1 January 2013

37.

JE R REB A PF (56

PRI 3 [ 2 i) 5 5 - D o s 2 2 S
W% (4)

W —=4—H—H

The Group The Group
(excluding Best (including Best
Dollar Group) Best Dollar Dollar Group)
LSS Group Merger AL
(A£G Best Best Dollar adjustment (145 Best
Dollar £ &) £ Bl Dollar £ )
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TH#T T T TH#T
Capital and reserves G Rt
Share capital A 32,390 12,460 (12,460) 32,390
Reserves fik 134,380 3 12,460 146,843
Equity attributable to owners of AN FIHEA NN 4
the Company and total equity Y&l 2 166,770 12,463 179,233
Non-current liabilities FER B ffE
Deferred tax liabilities IRAEBLIA S 10,183 - 10,183
Long service payment obligations 2 MIIRH & 7R 451 = 451
10,634 = 10,634
177,404 12,463 189,867

The effects of adopting merger accounting for common
control combination on the Group’s basic and diluted

earnings per share for the current and prior years:

P LA 35 A O 71 45 A
5 2 TR ST D SR 4 O
it

Impact on basic earnings Impact on diluted
per share earnings per share
BRI AR 2% BRI 2 S
2014 2013 2014 2013
SROWE CFSE CFOWE CF=F
HK cent HK cent HK cent HK cent
il il il il
Reported figures before TR
adjustments SR E 6 (26.49) (15.95) (26.49) (15.95)
Adjustments arising on PR] e ] 22 i SE 5
common control combination 5 {F &4 Z PR (1.75) (0.38) (1.75) (0.38)
Restated figures after B
adjustments #6557 B (28.24) (16.33) (28.24) (16.33)
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38. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES 38. B AIEHE =tk

CONTRIBUTIONS

Hong Kong

The Group operates a MPF scheme under the Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
for employees employed under the jurisdiction of the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is
a defined contribution retirement scheme administered
by independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the
employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees’
relevant income. The mandatory contributions from each
of the employer and employees are subject to a cap of
HK$1,250 per month before 1 June 2014 and HK$1,500
per month from 1 June 2014 onwards. Contributions to the
MPF scheme vest immediately.

Korea

Employees in Korea participate in a National Pension
Scheme which is a mandatory insurance scheme under the
National Pension Act (the “Scheme”). Under the Scheme,
the employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the Scheme at a specified rate of the
employees’ monthly income, subject to adjustments and a
cap of monthly income stipulated in the Scheme.

The PRC

The Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC participate in a
defined contribution scheme organised by the PRC
municipal government. The subsidiaries are required to
contribute a specified percentage of its payroll costs to the
scheme. The contributions are charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the scheme.

B

AR S EAR PR R s o 1 ME AT A Rl BG4
FIRIEE S RG] BT e 2 18 B 44t
WS E - mBEEEE RS EITA
B2 FOE SR IRET B - RIEmRAE S5
B> 8 £ R HAR B & A IR BB A
Z.5% 2 ek s BE AR - R KR
B & A 2 sl sk bRk —F—m4ES A
—HAETASH 1,250 50 > i —F—H4EN
H—HZ%& 51,500 #00 - ke shH 2 1t
B BRE B 2 B S 1R B AR A

LY

TSR 2 R B 2 B 5B R e mt &) > H A
— YR I B SR IR < vk 2 o PR B
# (TRZwt# ) o MRyEZarE > 8 £ LR
B % A A% R B4 A A 245 7€ Bl
FEEAE AR (T i % > B DLaZat &l B
BlE R A Z ERRFTR) -

H g

A5 B I 2z A R 2 ) 22 B gl B T
i W 2 B G # o B 2 R JH R
HLAR B ¥ A 2 s Lt B AR AR
AR o RZ AR AR PR T E B S AT R AR
o TR A0 B A 4 T 3R P S o
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38.

39.

40.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES
CONTRIBUTIONS (Continued)

Canada

Employees in Canada participate in a Canada Pension Plan
(the “Plan”) which is a mandatory scheme under Canada
Pension Plan Regulations. The employer and the employees
are required to make a total contribution of 9.9% on the
pensionable earnings, subject to a cap of pensionable
earnings of CAD51,500 (equivalent to approximately
HK$362,000 (2013: equivalent to approximately
HK$373,000)).

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

In December 2011, the Group received PRC government
grants with proceeds of RMB543,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$670,000) to finance the development
of new software system of the continuing operations.
The grant, which is included in trade and other payables,
is initially measured at its fair value. The benefit derived
from such grant will be recognised in profit or loss on the
same basis as amortisation of the related software. Such a
government grant is measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method at the end of reporting period.
During the year ended 31 December 2014, government
grant of approximately HK$69,000 (2013: HK$51,000) has
been recognised and included in other income and gains
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group
acquired certain property, plant and equipment of
approximately HK$108,713,000 (2014: nil) settled by issuing
a secured note. In addition, interest of approximately
US$975,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$7,558,000)
(2014: nil) was withheld by the note holders upon the
issuance of the secured note.

38.

39.

40.

AR R At 8z sk (78)

mER

IE- P I=F XY WNT S EY N |
([RZwrE)) » Hm—HR R SRR ks
S AR R E o BERZETE - R E X
18 B 783 H WA 2 A 3£9.9% staZat #I1E
Rk > BREAEIA £551,500/m 7T (4
K 362,000 70 (T —=4F SR
#1373,000%7C) ) ©

B i B

R T —— A AR E
TR G 2 FRIE A R ¥ 543,000 70 (AH & 7
#1670,000 % 70) > DAZ FRAESCE 7 2 B
B R SRS E & o SR K ER
N SAEERN A EE o A B Al B RSB BT A5
IS 148 £ HP R TR A 8 45 ] ik v o
ATHERR o RZIBURT A R £R F BT I F) 2R 1k e 4
FHRA R IR ARG E - REE_F—
FE+TH=+—HIFFEE > 469,000 # 0
(T F—=4F 0 51,000 00) ZBUFHIRLE
A A Wi i A 2 T i 25 R R TR o

FEIIEBRERZH

WEE -F—=4F+-H=F—HIHF
FE > AL T - 8 i E
#1108,713,000 % JC ( & — U4« F) >
AT A R AR O A o A A
975,000 3£t (FHZ 7247 7,558,000 #7T) (-
F—PUAE &) Z A A IR S 8T
1% i =R AR -
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41. OPERATING LEASES 41. HEME

(@) The Group and the Company as lessee (@) A B AR w R ARMA
At the end of the reporting period, the Group and AR AR - AR B A RIAREN
the Company had commitments for future minimum AR ERACEAL B A H AR 2 SRR A
lease payments under non-cancellable operating BRI REWT -
leases which fall due as follows:

The Group The Company
ALH A
2014 2013 2014 2013
“F-NE _F-=F ZFNE —F=F
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T#T TH#T
Within one year —AE R 7,569 7,163 1,073 1,692
In the second to S AR B AR
fifth year inclusive (B E M) 10,994 15,449 - 1,073
18,563 22,612 1,073 2,765
Operating lease payments represent rentals payables ROEAH BRI TR A [ S A m A
by the Group and the Company for certain of THAEYE NS o ALK
its office premises. Leases are negotiated for an AR\ T 2 RHLA AWk 7 1% - 24 5 194 |
average term of 5 years and 2 years for the Group TLAE R WA > AR B e AN /] 2 A
and the Company respectively. Rentals are fixed for 400l ] 78 AP 2 W 4F e —4F o
an average of remaining 4 years and 1 year for the
Group and the Company respectively.

(b) The Group and the Company as lessor (b) AL F AN w4ER B A
Property rental income earned during the year was AR T TR 2 W) E T A K S
approximately HK$900,000 (2013: HK$1,662,000). 900,000 #: 7T (—F—=4F : 1,662,000
The property is expected to generate rental yields of HIT) o TIY A R A AR A 2 4R
3.0% (2013: 5.6%) per annum on an ongoing basis. H3.0% (—F—=4F :56%) - B E
All of the properties held have committed tenants “E =+ A=+ —HIEEE
for the next one (2014: nil) year for the year ended 31 ZUTFRA Z W ER R (ZF

December 2013. — P04« ) WA EKFHEEE -
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41. OPERATING LEASES (Continued) 41. BEME

(b) The Group and the Company as lessor
(Continued) (78)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group and
the Company had contracted with tenants for the
following future minimum lease receipts which fall
due as follows:

(%)

(b) AL RA v E R AL

R R > A B B AR w2 AR
Fil#1z BgREHEENT -

The Group The Company
AR E Y. /|
2014 2013 2014 2013
R 1112 THR A R TR
HKS$000 HK$'000 HKS$’000 HK$'000
T AR T AR
Within one year —AE R - 1,293 - =
In the second to S Sy i
fifth year inclusive (B E M) - 249 - -
- 1,542 - -
42. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 42. BEARKSE
At the end of the reporting periods, the Group and the AR BIR > AREE AN T BA LUK
Company had the following commitments: #
The Group The Company
AR AT
2014 2013 2014 2013
R4 TER-EAE R TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
T T T T T
Capital expenditure in respect L FT#H M AR
of the acquisition of property, — BAHS ¥ £ H2 1
plant and equipment e 2E
contracted for but not s Sttt 2
provided for in the financial & ABH 2
statements 456 - - -
Capital expenditure in respect L FT#H M AR
of properties under AR R SR
development contracted NG Gk E S
for but not provided for in fEth 2 EABH X
the financial statements 138,544 7,059 - -

139,000 7,059
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43. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 43. VA B3 BER S A3 5

TRANSACTIONS

The share option scheme (the “Old Scheme”) adopted by
the Company on 16 June 2003 expired on 15 June 2013.
The Company has adopted a new share option scheme (the
“New Scheme”) on 3 June 2013 whereby the directors of
the Company are authorised, at their discretion, to invite,
among other eligible participants, employees of the Group
(including directors of any member of the Group), advisers
and consultants, to take up options to subscribe for shares
of the Company. Each option gives the holder the right to
subscribe for one ordinary share of the Company. The New
Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of ten years
ending on 2 June 2023, after which no further options can
be granted.

At 31 December 2014, the number of shares in respect of
which options had been granted and remained outstanding
under the New Scheme was 3,238,969 (2013: nil),
representing 1.0% (2013: nil) of the shares of the Company
in issue at that date. The total number of shares in respect
of which options may be granted under the Scheme is not
permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of the Company
in issue at any point in time, without prior approval from
the Company’s shareholders. The number of shares issued
and to be issued in respect of which options granted and
may be granted to any individual in any one year is not
permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any point in time, without prior approval from the
Company’s shareholders.

No consideration is payable on the grant of an option.
Options may be exercised at any time from the date of
grant of the share option to the second anniversary of
the date of grant. The exercise price is determined by the
directors of the Company, and will not be less than the
higher of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares on
the date of grant; (ii) the average closing price of the shares
for the five business days immediately preceding the date
of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s
shares.

AROSEI R ZEEZAEFS A IS H R 2 i
JERERTE ([EFHE ) B =F—=4H
T H JE o RIEARA T —EHR F— =
N H = H BRA o B RE R ) (TR st
#1) > AN FEFEZERE R (BFEE
G GRS ELE) REHER (A4
WAL 8 > 7l 2 FE ) ~ B Xdsf A
Tmtﬂfﬁ@iﬁ%ﬂxﬁzgz@ > DLERIEEAS A 7] B
o BRI B I RE S R RERR A NGB — AR

/\Tjt% o Brat B AL TE S BHE
TERTEFNATHIE . HEAAR
SN IBERE -

RoFE—PFE+—H=+—H  REHF
B2 s K o RATAH 2 B FERE BT v I 2 B4y
B H %5 3,238,969 B (—F—=4F ¢ %) > 4k
FZHARNFEBITRMNZ1.0% (ZF—=
A ) o ARPERZENE TR R T i S
zﬂ%\m BN BT AT R AR A ) 3%
TR 2. 10% - 1 328 25 S B AR 2 =) i
ﬁiz#tt‘(& AT AT — 4452 T Sl 5 T AT fa]
BN 22 B FBEHE T 3 S 2 L8847 Ml 7 3847
JBE03 B B AN A5 B A AT A IR AR ) B 34T
Wty 2 1% > T HH B RS A RN R Z
HEUE -

R A MR ZE A A2 L R IR MR I S A o R RE
R AP ) B FRORE L SBTAE A F SR
Ak 2 B BEREAT A o A7 (8 b A A Al
HEE > AFEATREE : () 2AF
JB gy A s B A 2 T 5 (i) A \ﬁ/\gﬁ
O ET TR S B RSBl E 5 &
(iii) A2 F AR Z TH{E -
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43. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

43. VAR 2 RE BRI R 5 (7))

Details of specific categories of options are as follows:

S MR R R < RS AT

Fair value at
Category Exercise grant date
participant Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period price B AEZ
S HH R it H i I 0 it frfifE AR
HKS$ HKS$
T T
Director 10 June 2014 10 June 2014 1 April 2017 241 2.38
R “Z—EAATH to 31 March 2017 to 9 June 2024
ZE-NEAATEE ZE-LHFENEA-AF
“E-HEEAET-E ZERDEAANA

The validity period of the share options 10 years from the
date of grant of the share options and the share options
will be vested on 31 March 2017.

The following table discloses movements of the Company’s

il PR 2 A RO A A B ST AE > i
=t+—HEE -

H_F—tH=H

TREFEFRNEFHFA AL A

share options held by a director during the year. ) o
Outstanding at Granted Outstanding at
Category 1 January 2013 and during 31 December
participant Date of grant 31 December 2013 the year 2014
R_F—=H—H—H RZF—M4E
AZZF—=812A +ZA=+—H
S 5K i H = HEARTTH EARE AT B8
Director 10 June 2014 - 3,238,969 3,238,969
B “F-MENATH
Exercisable at
the end of the year 3,238,969
TREEAR AT AT
Weighted average
exercise price HK$2.41 ¥7T HK$2.41 470
IHEF- S5 17 R

During the year ended 31 December 2014, options were
granted on 10 June 2014. The estimated fair values of the
options granted on the date is HK$4,172,000.

B E—E—U4E+—H =1+—HIF
B TR AN A H B R
HE o iNEZ H IR 2 BERRE AL 51N A (E A

4,172,000 # G °
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43. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

43. VAR 2 RE BRI R 5 (7))

44.

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

The fair value was calculated using the Binomial model.
The inputes into the model were as follows:

A REETER “IHAB R E 5 AR
ZH AR

Grant date share price HK$2.38 B B IR fE 2.38 57T
Exercise price HK$2.41 FrsifE 24170
Expected volatility 54.65% TE B 54.65%
Option life 10 years TR A 0 104F
Dividend yield 0% i dsgs 0%
Risk-free interest rate 2.053% e o A1) 2 2.053%
Early exercise multiple for director 2.8 S SRR T AR 2.8
Exit rate for director 10% EHIR A 10%

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of companies that were similar in business nature
as the Company. The expected life used in the model has
been adjusted, based on management’s best estimate, for
the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions and
behavioural considerations.

The Group recognised the total expense of approximately
HK$829,000 for the year ended 31 December 2014 (2013:
nil) in relation to share options granted by the Company.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group entered
into the following material related party transactions.

(a) Transactions with shareholders

During the year, the Group entered into the following
transactions with Kwang Sung Korea, a former major
shareholder of the Company:

44.

T W T 45 S B P B N R A 2
Rl 2 JRE S S o AT BT 2 A
O 1 HIL R 2 e (Al R RS W] B
ZHERE ~ ATR W R AT B R R 2 R
TR A% -

HE_F—NWFE+_H=+—HILFE
A [ e AR S 4% M 2 S e R 4 B
#1829,000¥ 70 (—FE—=4F : &) -

HAREANLRZS

R A B 5 Sk 2 HLAt M 7 P 45 B 2 22 5 b
AL FERBEAN LS

(@ HBRZIZSH

JRAEIA > A4 [ BELAS 2 ) i R BUBER
LT B SRS

2014 2013
e LS —F—=
HK$’000 HK$000
T TH#TT
Sales of finished goods S B - 908
Referral commission paid/payable A AT A 4P - 6
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44, MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 44, ERBEMAN LR S (78)

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(a) Transactions with shareholders (Continued) (@)

The directors of the Company are of the opinion
that the above transactions were conducted in the
ordinary course of business and were on normal
commercial terms.

RN 225 ()
AATZEERE > RS R A
T RS o 5 1 P S
A -

(b) The Group had the following material (b) AR » AL CHE T
transactions with related parties during HARBEALZRY :
the year:
Name of company Nature of transactions 2014 2013
AR 2o E &4 —F-=5F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
i Tt TH#TT
M RE AR A Purchase of equipment (i) &(ii) 96 -
A
Supply of electricity (1) &(ii) - 338
HtE
HEHALEE (M) Accommodation expenses
AR paid thereto (i) &(ii) 7 -
EATETE B 52
BTy fOK B M AR AL Service fee paid thereto
AR L fiF AR 5 22 (i) &(ii) 727 413
HEHREFHEMEARAR  Meeting expense
F LR IR paid thereto (i) &i(ii) 31 -
et g
Notes: 5T -
() These transactions were carried out at terms determined @) B2AE 38 Gy ) A AT [ B R e N 7 K T 7

and agreed by the Group and the relevant parties.

(i)  Mr. Shen Yong, the controlling shareholder of the (ii)
Company has beneficial interest in these companies.

M feOEST -

PN el L PSP INGE 2
A% -
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44. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c) Transactions with other related parties

(i) Compensation of key management
personnel

The remuneration of directors and other

44. HABEAN LR (4)

(0 HHEARBPDENLZRZ5
() FEEHABZME

R AR AR

members of key management during the year R HEIIINT
was as follows:
2014 2013
—ZF N “EF =5
HK$’000 HK$000
T T T
Short-term benefits K A B AR A 9,055 9,245
Post-employment benefits R A% A8 A 64 41
Equity-settled share-based payment USRS 2
expenses Jedm Atk B 52 829 -
9,948 9,286
The remuneration of directors and key #HR N EEATBA B ZFHM T
executives is determined by the remuneration HI BT & B & 5 R AR B K
committee having regard to the performance of TS E o

individuals and market trends.

(ii) During the year ended 31 December 2013, the
Group paid a consultancy fee of approximately
HK$69,000 (2014: nil) to Mr. Yang Han Ho, a
close family member of Mr. Yang Jai Sung, a
director of the Company. No consultancy fee
was outstanding at 31 December 2014 and
2013.

) WEE_F—-=4+_H
=t —HIREE AL H A
AR ERRERGAE —HER
Yang Han Ho 5 4= 32 £+ i 4 2
#169,000 # T (=% — U 4F
) R_FE-NER—F—=
HE+ZH=+—HI R
i Z ] 2 o
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45.

EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE
REPORTING PERIOD

(a)

(b)

(c)

Disposal of a subsidiary

Subsequent to 31 December 2014, the Group
disposed of its entire equity interest of Ai Bi Cu
Technology at a consideration of approximately
RMB1,581,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$2,004,000). The transaction has been completed
on 17 February 2015. Upon the completion of the
disposal, the Group lost its control on Ai Bi Cu
Technology.

Issue of bonds

On 23 January 2015, the Company issued a 8%
HK dollar denominated bonds with the aggregate
principal amount of HK$10,000,000. The amounts are
repayable within 96 months from the date of issue.

Placing of bonds

On 16 March 2015, the Company entered into a
placing agreement with a placing agent. Pursuant
to the placing agreement, the placing agent has
agreed to endeavour to procure placees who
are not and whose ultimate beneficial owner(s),
if applicable, are not, connected persons of the
Company on a best effort basis to subscribe for the
bonds in an aggregated principal amount of up to
HK$100,000,000 within the placing period. The bonds
will be placed in denomination of HK$5,000,000.

45. W WIE R I

(a)

(b)

(c)

&R E 2 W

REoF—NFEF+ZA=+—H%& > &
AL DUARE A9 N R ¥ 1,581,000 7T (#H
HA 12,004,000 00) HE L LESR
2R - Zc B e R —F—1H
FZHTEHENR - HEERE A
42 ] L Z B30 LU SRR Y 42 il B o

BT ESF
R-F—HFE—H - +=H > AR
BT 8% R LEHEME R - AL
#510,000,000 ¥ 7T © F B 3 HZE A H
4T H IR 96 18 H MR -

HC % 5 27

e el T SR = By aA = B N7
— e B AR BT o7 — TR ok o AR
AW T S AT Rk
B T B A T 5 D R A 4 AR
#100,000,000 ¥#5 7 [ & 55 - 5% 55 48
(RPN EFNECE S ErE. LD
WA WIEARNFREEANL - HH
525516 1. 5,000,000 9 TC 1 T AH L B -
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hEHBHRE
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
F-FE R ZF-F ZF—= e Sl 113
(Restated)
(RHEF)
Consolidated statement %A #HE K&
of profit or loss and Foftr 4z 1hi
other comprehensive W i %
income (HK$’000) (F#0)
Revenue & 680,793 558,528 475,174 298,722 348,530
Profit (loss) before tax KRBT A (E1H) 14,018 (57,389) (51,187) (56,980) (94,053)
Profit (loss) after tax R Z NG|
and attributable to VA AL
owners of the Company A (E1E) 8,087 (52,946) (52,339) (52,883) (91,806)
Basic earnings (loss) B LA J )
per share — HK cents (f518) — #sAll 2.50 (16.35) (16.16) (16.33) (28.24)
Diluted earnings (loss) A HS AT )
per share — HK cents (E51H) — sl 2.50 (16.35) (16.16) (16.33) (28.24)
Consolidated statement % & WM HRIFE
of financial position (F#)
(HK$'000)
Non-current assets & 163,708 220,113 80,110 166,843 121,711
Current assets B 366,194 332,908 230,897 240,842 246,777
Current liabilities b UB=i (141,586) (215,813) (121,140) (118,642) (168,643)
Net current assets EEE R E 224 608 117,095 109,757 122,200 78,134
Non-current liabilities FEE) A K (14,332) (13,191) (10,634)  (157,450)  (178,757)
Net assets B TR 373,984 324,017 179,233 131,593 21,088
Share Information (HKS$) JE4r& B (#T)
Highest share price B BE $0.98 $0.76 $1.61 $2.38 $3.11
Lowest share price B R AE $0.41 $0.21 $0.38 $0.99 $1.73
Year end closing share price 4F# Wi 7 Bt E $0.65 $0.60 $0.98 $1.82 $1.96
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

Board of Directors
Executive directors

Mr. ShenYong (Chairman)

Mr. Kwan Man Kit Edmond (Chief Executive Officer)"

Mr. Ronald Lew Podlas™
Mr. Shen Ke

Mr. Li Zhi”

Mr. Xu Li Jian"

Mr. Leung Kin Pang®
Mr. Zhao Enze"”

Mr. Fan Jiangang"®

Mr. Hong Sang Joon

Independent non-executive directors

Mr.Yu Lei

Dr. JiangYing *

Ms. Zhang Cui Lan

Mr. Ernst Rudolf Zimmermann

Executive Committee

Mr. Shen Yong

Mr. Kwan Man Kit Edmond”
Mr. Ronald Lew Podlas”

Mr. Shen Ke

Mr. Li Zhi”

Mr. Xu Li Jian®

Mr. Leung Kin Pang®

Mr. Zhao Enze"”

Mr. Fan Jiangang”

Mr. Hong Sang Joon

Audit Committee

Ms. Zhang Cui Lan

Dr. Jiang Ying *

Mr.Yu Lei

Mr. Ernst Rudolf Zimmermann
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Remuneration Committee
Mr.Yu Lei

Dr. JiangYing *

Ms. Zhang Cui Lan

Mr. Ernst Rudolf Zimmermann

Nomination Committee

Mr.Yu Lei

Dr. JiangYing

Ms. Zhang Cui Lan

Mr. Ernst Rudolf Zimmermann

Independent Board Committee

Mr.Yu Lei

Dr. Jiang Ying *

Ms. Zhang Cui Lan

Mr. Ernst Rudolf Zimmermann

#

appointed on 10 June 2014, resigned on 13 March 2015 and remained
as Chief Executive Officer
resigned on 16 February 2015

8 resigned on 1 April 2014

o appointed on 16 February 2015
* resigned on 5 May 2014
Company Secretary

Mr. Tang Sze Lok

(resigned with effect from 23 October 2014)
Mr. Leung Tak Chee Frankie

(appointed with effect from 23 October 2014)

Authorised Representatives

Mr. Leung Kin Pang
(until 31 March 2014)
Mr. Li Zhi
(from 1 April 2014 until 16 February 2015)

Mr. Tang Sze Lok

(until 23 October 2014)
Mr. Leung Tak Chee Frankie

(from 23 October 2014)
Mr. Zhao Enze

(from 16 February 2015)
Mr. Fan Jiangang

(from 16 February 2015)
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Registered Office and Principal Place of Business

Room 3805, 38/F., The Lee Gardens
33 Hysan Avenue

Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

Auditors

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Share Registrar and Transfer Office

Tricor Standard Limited
Level 22

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

Stock Code
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited: 2310

Company Website

www.kse.com.hk

Shareholders’ Calendar

Announcement of 2014 Final Results
31 March 2015

Closure of Register of Members
27 to 29 May 2015
(both days inclusive)

Annual General Meeting
29 May 2015
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